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Highlights

Consolidated revenues utility Millions111 $3365
Consolidated revenues nonregulated Millions 1834.7

Margins utility Millions

Margins nonregulated Millions

Net income loss from co

Net ii loss attn

Common stock price at year end

Shares outstanding at year end excludes restricted

stock and shares in deferred compensation trust 77350079 75980143

Total assets Millions $9818 $11844.6

Refer to Managemertb Os uss on and Analysis for an expianation of changes from prior year

cerla amounts have een retrospective adusted due to change in accounting poiicy related to nvestment tax cred ts in the fourth quarter of 2010

N/A Not Aopiicab

ntegrys Energy Group nc integrys

Regulated Electric Regulated Natural Gas Electric Transmiasion investment Nonregulated Holding Company

and Other

mLv
d5TIih

Integrys

Dividends per common share

Book value per share

$272 272

3757 37.51 0.2

$451 $41.99 15.5

1.8

17.2
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AtAG1ance

integrys
Integrys Energy Group is holding company

headquartered in Chicago Illinois Subsidiaries

provide products and services in both regulated

and nonregulated energy markets The following

descriptions are reflective as of December 31 2010

REGULATED OPERATIONS

Business

Estab ished in %55 acqured by Integrys Energy

Grouo in 2007

Regu atea nature gas utiLy

Operates nois see mao bwow
082 emp oyees

Market

Serves approx nate 9000 resider tial

omneroal ard rdustnal retail sacs and

trars ortaton stor era te cty of Chi ago
Natural gas raserues are omprsed of lOOo

reta sacs

Facilities

Approx rr etc 44 es ratura gas

str btlon and tw smso main 5apo ne
z12o cast ror main ard 24%

plastic main

natural gas str buS on ard transmisson gate

statiors ard approxnate 517000i atural gas

atera sarv ces

Owns and operates 38.2 bi ior -cubA foot

underground ratural gas storage resarvor Man

Geld ard on cubic-foot iquefed natural gas

In entral nois

Owns natura gas pipe ne systa tha usc from

Maniove Fied located central MAo to Chicago

07 major terstata pa ne iterconnacts at

car us ponts

Business

Estab shed in 1883

Regu ated ectrc ar atura gas uti ty

Operates northeas aid certal Wis on/n and

ar adjacart portior
of Upper Mch gan 5sae map on

the it

363 amp oyeas

Market

Serves approx isa 439000 electr and

approx mate 318000 natura gas customers thin

11 000 square service area

actA ao n0tra gs pru ard

serv cas to esidenta farm cow marc al and

dustra cuss cars Also prov des electr wei

to wholesa ustomers

ectric opera ons accounted r0 77o and natural

gas oparatois accourted for 23o of 2010 revenues

biecric revenues ra comprised of 80 retai sales ard

20c who esa sales

sconsn custome accounted for 98o and

chigan usi nrers accourted for 2o of

2010 reverues

Facilities

actrc gereratrg capacty based surnn cr

apa ity rat/ga 2180.4 egawats nclud ng

the Ut itys
share ont owned fa il/as pea

dmn and was raahad August 2010 tb

yssem emend 292 egawatts At that ma

of th surrrner peak tota irm esources Ca
panerat on pus firm pur hasas ta ad

945 megawatts
actric property ncludas approx mate 21700

wiles of ectr distrbuton lines 97 which

are operated at 24.9 Is ovoits and 23

distr buti substatons

Natural gas property rc udas approxirnsoly E50

miles strbuton ai trans ss or main 74

plastic sa 87 natura gas stribution and

traP smission gate stations and approx mate

297000 natural gas ateral services

Business

Natural gas distfbstion operations for more thar 70

years acquired oy Intagrys Erergy Group 2006

Operates ir Minnesota see ap below

216 employees

Market

Provoas natura gas distr buS or scrvi as to

approximate 212000 ratural gas ustorrars

65 onrrur as

Natuia gas revenues are owprsa Os 100o

ratai sales

Facilities

Natural gas property udas approximate

4500 as of distr but on and trarsmssion ma

sapprox mately 65 as/c main 154 nature gas

stributon and trarsmiss on gate stators and

202000 natural gas ateral services

Business

Natura gas st/b it on operations sir ca 1859

acqu red by Integrys Esargy Group in 2006

Operates southern and western Mich gan sea

imp below

159 employees

Market

Prov des natura gas str but on sersics

approximate 166000 natural gas ustomars

147 commusitas

Natisra gas revenues are mor sad af 100

eta sales

Facilities

Owns 39 bi on ubc-foot atura gas

storage fia

Nat ira gas oparty nc udas aoproxinsa

3800 mies of dstr but or and trarsmis/on

approxima 51 as/c main 33r mel
but and rarsm ss or 9ata is and

aoor cirna 163000 natura gas asaral sarv as

Business

Establish in 1900 quirad by ntegrys Encrgy

Group in 20071

Ragu ated natura gas Ut ity

Operates in lfno see in ap be

166 employees

Market

Serves appros mate 158000 ras dent

ommerc al and indus ral retail sales and

Iransportation
custon ars ocatad 54 comm in as

with/i the rtl am suburbs o5C nag

Na ura gas revenues am comprsad of 100

at/I sales

Facilities

Approximatciy 243u as asura gas

oistrbut on rd tr ss on war sapprox m0tE

38 tc mair natural gas stn but on ar

transmi on ton and approx mate

147000n tur nal arvi

Business

tab 1884 paired by Is agry Enarq

Group in 1998

Regu rcut ty

Oparaia primer rura untryside over rg

of tr ouris es ii ire Uppar an

chigar saa ma be owl

31 rnployaas

Market

Serves approx msate.y 52000 act/c cus oo

118 orimunt as

act/c revenues are mo/sad of 89/0 rate

and 110 who esale sacs

Facilities

Elactr genai ing capa/ty based on su ft mm

apacity ratings
56.7 magawa ts peak des and

was reached or August 3020100 systeri

demand of 12 mgawatts At tie nsa fthd peak

tote Em resources otald 133 nn agav at

cIct/c propant sc udes apo sate 30C

las of alectr distr buti sas and 58

stm butior substatons

1p

rpM- P.o

11111 55
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At-AGIance

ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION
NVESTM ENT

Business

fc egu at mo an -r ss on or

Co ronyt at on ar ins oonors mc
opc es alsO 550 as Ct WY onsY

MrcF ga vi esct see rr ap at gf

Asse pere cvi vs and ooeraed b1

rut aeee trcut rtvisaervrgtheupperMdwe
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or car Car pissor Compary rn or es ha

icr ferrea tra srr ssi ass to Ame can

rar 1SS Corr
par re lOvs equ oser cia

Tfc 1/rdves doe eriSy tw OperaS SO

Are Ar or rsrnasnr mrs-as oe at or

the Car sir as or Oste

Pegu ted Pedera Enc gy Regu at

orr SS ra ard tar or by tf

tea wh F- operates for no

so issi fro rucure

Dcr rfe Un eo St1te ard begs

oerators n200

tegrys egy Group era opprox rr 34o

Arre ar rn srras rrpanf

Ws Os OuolcgervceardjoperPer nsu 1P ye

Pr ode construc on no 06 ci aerv es and

cccv notwc rk Si smissor se ces porn Air er

smssor oaly

rteg ys Energy Group has $4 ir Hr lvestad

Air en an ra- syrss Corn an

Facilities

$2.9 bY on ftrd sac ase cons st rg 9440

mcut as oftra am ss ire o15 substators

rahol on rtly lrmeo

Ape ar Ca bsor Co -r any pG vmS

approximate $34 br F- our rg the ext 10 ear

based or 20 ron Year Tr rs as

Syster Assessrm

LA rT
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NONREGULATED
OPERATIONS

Business

Estob vFeH 199

rr ot re atura gas an tr ty supp

ary wr rch as osana ope ate

var us cpu cctrc ganerab Fac ties

pfraa or scr og reta dstr nrnerc

resden era nO -ast quadran

hUnte Statasv 65cc ye vesmens

re cwabre Pr cot Fr on

try Eta ea

er ergy rr nk tog go at ed nvr

cuCcrres or eo cc ap at gI

poyce

OTHER

Products and Services

nO ovdes rdv duo zed ratura sardolec

supply so utrons ructured products ard
strvteg

ea

that low .ustor ens anage neroy need

ac ted DENct eMncr mpotete F-n gy

ow cu tor to rro hon aid nange then
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1lner mi rem _aoort so he
rgorlorr

iatnbued gone on renewab auc as solar

aldb gas mel as otHer csar ue gerenat

Facilities
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2463r vats Ftadto
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me maCa 1F- 150 to so
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INTEGRYS BUSINESS SUPPORT LLC

Business
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Fellow Shareholders

ttRr tO fRhOl

lntegrys Energy Group we are

______ moving onward The shoes may

have changed in the last yeat but

the direction is the same With our strategy

refined and our plans in ace we moved

forward at deliberate pace to meet our

objectives in 2010 We continued our

focus on mproving our utilty operations

We remained steadfast on completing

the restructur ng of lntegrys Energy

Services our nonregulsted energy services

subsidiary to reduce ts scope sca and

nsk profile whi allowing controlled growth

opportunities selected markets within the

United States

Setting

Our cost rr

the entire

our very
talented employees With the

modest economic recovery dunng 2010

and more focused operation at lntegrys

Energy Services we reduced our overall

workforce compsnyrwide to match the

reduced workload and control costs We

began our planning efforts late in 2009 and

implemented the changes early in 2010

While workforce reductions are difficult

for everyone our emp oyees responded

with resolute professionalism that

ultmately allowed us to provide value

to our shareho ders while still providing

outstanding safe and re lab service to

our customers

To match prudent costs with revenues we

completed rate cases at five of our utilities

Peoples Gas North Shore Gas

Upper Peninsu Powet Wisconsin Pub

Service and Minnesota Energy Resources

The combination of our process improvement

cost management and rate case eftorct

allowed us to mprove our earnings 2010

and move all of our utilities oser to earnng

their authorized rates of return

We recently kicked off our Acce crated Main

Replacement Program AMRP CHcsgo

which is sllowng us to upgrade our natura

gas system to state obthe art standards and

reduce ong term maintenance costs We will

oe investing more than $2.5 billion over the

next 20 years on 2000-mies of natural
gas

iain infrastructure Chicago with th AMRP

costs covered under rider mechanism

approved by Ilinois regulators This is an

exciting project and truly win-win-w th

T3

spanned

nvolved all of



To match prudent costs with revenues we

completed rate cases at five of our uuIities

system improvement and greater

reliability
for our customers employment

opportunities for contractors and existing

employees and an investment opportunity

for our shareholders

Integrys Energy Services

On The Right Path

Throughout 2010 we continued the efforts

we began in 2009 to restructure and refine

lntegrys Energy Services in order to improve

the risk profile of the company We reduced

our invested capital from about $1 billion at

December 31 2008 to about $300 million

at April 30 2010 eight months ahead of

schedule and we reduced our collateral

support requirement from $2.6 billion at

March 31 2009 to about $500 million as

expected at December31 2010 for our

nonregulated retail energy marketing

business Now that we have exited the

wholesale and trading businesses entirely

Integrys Energy Services is once again

focused on retail natural gas and retail

electric marketing in the northeast quadrant

of the United States where we began this

business in 1994a geographic footprint

that we know
very well and where we have

an established reputation Throughout the

year the experienced employees at Integrys

Energy Services remained focused on

executing its business plan and

re-establishing the company as trusted

supplier in the markets we have served for

many years

In October Integrys Energy Services

announced joint venture with Duke Energy

Generation Services to build and finance

distributed solar projects throughout the

United States This partnership will focus on

rooftop and smaller ground-mounted

photovoltaic solar distributed generation

projects delivering renewable solar energy

to customers through long-term power

purchase agreements These long-term

agreements are the core to ensuring

dependable returns This endeavor

is complementary to our ongoing

development of renewable energy projects

at Integrys Energy Services and will enhance

our operations in this growing arena

An Environmental Focus

Everywhere one looks today there is

common theme be green For an energy

company like Integrys it means we must

provide our customers with energy while

finding ways to preserve clean healthy

world Our environmental vision of

creating energy solutions for sustainable

tomorrow is guiding our actions We

ask our employees to think about the

environment in the things they do every

day so those ordinary things can add up

to extraordinary benefits for our world

Were also looking at the big things like

our companies emission rates and use of

renewable resources Big and small were

making changes every day Our most visible

efforts in the environment center around the

way we produce and deliver energy At our

electric utilities we strive to make the best

environmental decisions for our customers

investors and employees Our natural gas

utilities are focused on providing one of

the cleanest fuels on Earth And at Integrys

Energy Services our customers focus on

green living is driving new products and

services Ultimately at every Integrys

company were keeping our eye on the

environment To learn more about our

environmental activities visit our website at

www.integrysgroup.com

Safety As Our Focus

Ensuring safe environment for our

customers and employees alike is extremely

important Consequently we have placed

safety at the top of our key initiatives for

2011 We expect to not only improve our

workplace but also the environment around

us because lets face it the energy products

we provide are some of the most essential for

everyone to enjoy comfortable way of life

Governance Honor

Throughout all of this we remained

focused on our board governance to

ensure that we are prudent stewards of

your investment In December Governance

Metrics International GMI recognized

Integrys Energy Group with an overall

global rating of 10making us one of only

43 companies in the GMI database of over

4200 companies to receive such rating

This impressive honor is based on ratings in

six broad categories board accountability

financial disclosure and internal controls

shareholder rights remuneration market for

control and corporate behavior

Financial Implications

These tremendous efforts moved us

onward enabling us to achieve our financial

objectives for the year and stay on track

with our long-term plans Im pleased that

as result of these efforts our earnings

improved year over year We achieved

2010 total return performance of 22.4% and

beat the one-year return of 5.5% for the

SP utilities index and 15.1% for the SP
500 Importantly in 2010 we were able to

maintain our common stock dividend and

we are proud to have paid dividend for 70

consecutive years

Strategy For The Future

Our successful efforts in 2010 have further

cemented firm foundation for shareholder

and customer value We know the path

onward wont be easy uncertain energy

pricing slowly rebounding national

economy and new regulations that are

either currently in place or being considered

could impact the company Nonetheless

our strategy is sound

key component of our strategy is

operational excellence which involves

making Integrys and its subsidiaries

more efficient more effective and more

customer-focused than ever before by

providing systematic and sustained

approach for continuous improvement of

our systems and processes Its an effort that

challenges us to look at our everyday work

processes from the customers point of view

Operational excellence calls for us to

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP INC 2010 ANNUAL RSPORT



think about our business from process

perspective using tools and techniques that

have been successful in both manufacturing

and service organizations It is disciplined

approach to working with suppliers and

customers to identify and remove waste

from our systems and processes This

improves our efficiency and leads to

increased customer satisfaction

second component of our strategy is risk

management which involves identifying

quantifying and developing solutions

to the commodity credit and financial

risks confronting Integrys Energy Groups

business units engaged in natural gas

and electric marketing It also involves

risk analysis for new energy projects and

evolving hedging strategies risk reporting

and price risk and credit exposure

reporting all in an effort to deliver stable

predictable earnings at reasonable risks

The final component of our strategy is asset

management which involves continuous

assessment of our existing assets The focus

is on potential acquisitions that complement

our existing business and strategy as well

as the disposition of assets including plants

and entire business units which are no

longer strategic to ongoing operations are

not performing as expected or which would

reduce our risk profile

We will create long4erm value for our

shareholders customers employees

and the communities we serve through

operational excellence risk and asset

management improving our environmental

performance investment in our utilities and

the American Transmission Company and

execution of our restructured operations at

Integrys Energy Services We are up to

the challenges

Leadership Changes

Integrys is fortunate to have excellent

dedicated employees We had few

leadership transitions in 2010 and Im

grateful for the contributions of those who

have retired In particular thank Larry

Weyers our former Executive Chairman

and Tom Meinz our former Executive Vice

President and Chief External Affairs Officer

both of whom retired in March 2010 for

their efforts and dedicated service spanning

several decades Also thanks to Brad

Johnson our former Vice President and

Treasurer who retired in November 2010

Stepping in to fill some big shoes are

Jim Schoft who was appointed Vice

President External Affairs effective

April 12010 and Bill Guc who was

appointed Vice President and Treasurer on

December 12010 In addition Mark Radtke

was appointed Executive Vice President

and Chief Strategy Officer effective

December26 2010 lam confident that

these individuals and the rest of our staff

throughout the company will do great job

of providing the best value in energy and

related services

Onward

am excited about our future We are well

positioned to provide value to all of our

key stakeholders The management team

and all of our employees are committed

to keeping Integrys profitable well-

respected company as we move onward

Thank you for the confidence you have

shown with your investment in Integrys

Energy Group We will continue managing

your company with integrity to protect and

grow your valued investment as we

proceed onward

Sincerely

Charles Schrock

February 28 2011

NTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP NC

Dividends Per Common Share
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Equivalent average annual return of 8.5%

Assumes $100 investment in common stock

at year-end 2000 and all dividends reinvested

quarterly cumulative total return for the
ten-year

period is equivalent to an average
annual return

of 8.5%
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2010 lntegry

moved forviard with rer.

expect from us We remained

be an energy company

Onward describes how our leaders employees and inc

on making smart decisions determined to provide value to

we serve and the envronment we al enjoy

As we move into 2011 were finding many efficient and effective

and Growing Energy Company

ly implemented the strategic objectives

nderstandng of what our customers

onquered challenges and focused on

mpanies deliver every day We mantain our focus

holders customers the communtms

our vision of



Greater Safety Across Integrys

Safety has always been paramount at

Integrys and it remains top initiative for

us Weve witnessed how building safe

behaviors into our culture results in better

processes improved attitudes cost

savings and measurable improvements

to our safety records

To mprove safety performance ntegrys

developed five-year plan in 2008

our daily work at Integrys We accomplish

this through innovation perseverance

and dedication as the following

examp es illustrate

investing Chcagos Future

Peoples Gas ushered in 2010 with

plan for accelerated natural gas main

replacement in Chicago This is the

largest project any of our subsidiaries

has undertaken

customers whose power was restored

the following day

new outage reporting system

implemented earlier in the yeat was put

to the test during the storm It enables our

customers to report outages and request

estimated restoration times online and via

an interactive voice response system Not

only does this benefit our customers but it

reduces operational costs

Our aim is to achieve first-quartile safety

performance an achievement that

by 2014 would ace us among the

safest companies nationwde measured

by Occupational Safety and Health

Adminisrration recordabe rates

As we progress toward this goal each

business unit must achieve annual targets

reflecting the ncremental improvements

needed to reach first-quartile standing

At the same time we continue deepening

our culture of safety among employees

and the public

With 2010 marking Year of our plan

we have made considerab progress

exceeding our safety goal for the year

In 2011 we wIl contnue striving for

improvement solidifying our position as

best-in-class company regarding safety

Continued Reliability And Service

For Customers

Providing customers with reliable energy

arid satsfying service is the purpose of

The 20-year endeavor to replace

approximately 2000 miles of cast iron

pipeline in Chcago will position Peoples

Gas as leader operational excellence

by increasing reliability and reducing

maintenance costs specal rate rider

will allow recovery of the costs to make

these improvements

Providing Comfort Storms

Our electric customers count on us in

severe weather October 2010 brought

what some termed the storm of the

century with hgh winds blowing

throughout Wisconsin and Michiganh

Upper Peninsula for several days

uprooting trees and tossing branches into

power Ines Wisconsin Public Service and

Upper Peninsula Power were prepared

and came to the aid of 71000 customers

who lost power Lines newly restored by

our crews were knocked out repeatedly by

relentless winds But by the day the storm

ended power was on for all but 2000

nts Lower Costs

November 2010 marked the advent of

new energy-efficiency tools for

Mnnesota Energy Resources customers

Printed Home Energy Reports and

Web portal help reddents lower their

monthly utility
bills because theyre

armed with information

Through comparative home energy

reports residents track their natura

gas use and receive household-specific

energy-saving tips This gives customers

of Minnesota Energy Resources the data

they need to make smart energy choices

ano simple adjustments tnat can add up

to significant savings

Growing The Customer Base At

Michigan Gas Utilities

As part of five-year growth plan

Michigan Gas Utlities undertook

10-mile natural gas main expansion

in Ida Township Michigan in 2010

Kicking off in June this was the utilitys

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP INc 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



most ambitious natural gas project yet

The new main provides the option for

natural gas service to an additional

220 Michigan Gas Utilities customers

who did not have access to natural gas

service in the past

The project was completed in early

September and by December 88 new

natural gas customers had signed on

The goal is to reach an 80 percent

sign-up rate within the expanded service

Successfufly Refocusing

Nonregutated Markets

Integrys Energy Services achieved its

strategic objectives in 2010 though

no one said moving onward would be

easy The change included divesting

of its wholesale energy business and

other non-core business segments

restructuring the organization and

the difficult task of reducing the size

of its workforce

Creating The Company Of The Future

In 2010 Peoples Gas management came

to an agreement with Gas Workers Union

Local 18007 that will change how union

employees enter and progress through

the ranks Until now field employees

chose path dedicated to either natural

gas distribution or natural gas service

work Moving onward new employees will

be cross-trained for both types
of work

through new technical training program

Getting McCure Hydro Back On

Upper Peninsula Power completed

$19 million upgrade at the McClure

Hydroelectric Facility in Michigan and

returned it to service in November 2010

The upgrade allows the two hydro

generating units at the facility built in

1919 to produce megawatts of clean

renewable electricity for Upper Peninsula

Power customers

The project involved installing new

automated flow-monitoring system

upgrading powerhouse control systems

and replacing 2.5-mile 7-foot-diameter

water pipe

As leaner stronger company Integrys

Energy Services is well positioned for the

long term In fact in 2010 Integrys Energy

Services focus on customers continues to

result in high scores in customer delight

measured by performance in key service

areas including commercial and industrial

gas and electric markets mass markets

and call center

Advancing Operational Excellence

Operational excellence means being

alert to ways we can increase productivity

reduce costs and improve service The

forward-thinking changes that result like the

ones that follow here improve the bottom

line and position us to move onward

on both types of projects at higher skill

level And the cross-trained workforce

of the future will give Peoples Gas the

ability to place qualified employees

where theyre needed most for the main

replacement project

Sending Lighter BiHs

Mailing bills to customers is considerable

expense even with bulk postage rates

Wisconsin Public Service used operational

excellence techniques to save an

estimated $80000 in 2010 by reducing

the number of overweight bills those with

multiple pages and using more precise

process to measure the weight of bills

Wisconsin Public Service was the first

Integrys subsidiary to implement this

increase productivity reduce costs and improve ser

INTBGRYS ENERGY GROUP INc 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



cost-saving measure We will look to

implement it at our other utilities as well

Engaging The Workforce Of The Future

Closely linked to operational excellence

is the development and retention of an

engaged motivated workforce that will

move us onward Limiting unwanted

turnover and advancing the best and

brightest within our ranks is still the most

cost-effective way to meet the needs of

our customers and shareholders

In recent years individual business units

implemented mix of development

initiatives including an online system

for performance reviews structured

job profiles and refined way to set

development and performance goals

In 2010 we brought these efforts

together into an integrated talent

management process one that reaches

across Integrys with consistent tools

and processes

The year saw us focusing on bench

strength ensuring employees have the

skills and talents needed to perform at

the highest level Formalized leadership

development addresses the acumen

needed to move us forward Succession

planning ensures smooth transition

when key positions in the company

become open

Work will continue on all of these fronts

through 2011 makng the most of our

greatest asset our people

Realizing Our

Environmental Vision

Integrys has an environmental vision

of Creating Energy Solutions for

Sustainable Tomorrow Were proud of

our environmental stewardship and how

steady progress in small ways is adding

up to real differences for the world

around us You can read more about

these efforts in our 2010 Environmental

Performance Report online at

www.integrysgroup.com

Investing In Renewable Offerings

In 2010 Integrys Energy Services entered

joint venture with Duke Energy Generation

Services to jointly own solar energy

projects that deliver electricity to credit

worthy commercial government and

utility customers under long-term power

purchase agreements

Such partnerships give us the ability to

invest in more energy projects alongside

strong peers creating greater diversity

within our asset portfolio In this case the

joint venture is expected to invest up to

$180 million in various solar power projects

over the next two years

Our hope is that this investment provides

Integrys customers with more options

for affordable energy and earns Integrys

favorable economic returns

Helping Wisconsin Go Green

In late 2010 the Shirley Wind Project

eight turbines providing about

2.5 megawatts of renewable energy

each began operating just south of

Green Bay Wisconsin Since Wisconsin

Public Service is already meeting its

renewable energy requirements for

customers it is purchasing the energy

and renewable credits from the project

and then selling the credits to the state

With these credits the
utility

is helping

Wisconsin reach its 20-percent statewide

renewable energy goal

Leading The Way In Anaerobic

Digesters

In 2010 Wisconsin Public Service

purchased biogas-produced electricity

from 11 of Wisconsins 25 active

farm-based anaerobic digesters or

44 percent of all digesters in the state
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Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of

Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 You can identify

these statements by the fact that they do not relate
strictly to historical

or current facts and often include words such as anticipate believe

estimate expect intend plan project and other similar

words Forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions and

uncertainties therefore actual results may differ materially from those

expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements Although

we believe that these forward-looking statements and the underlying

assumptions are reasonable we cannot provide assurance that such

statements will prove correct

The following is cautionary list of risks and uncertainties that may affect

the assumptions which form the basis of forward-looking statements

relevant to our business These factors and other factors not listed here

could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in

forward-looking statements

Resolution of pending and future rate cases and negotiations

including the recovery of deferred costs and other regulatory

decisions impacting Integrys Energy Group regulated businesses

The individual and cumulative impact of recent and future federal and

state regulatory changes including legislative and regulatory initiatives

regarding deregulation and restructuring of the electric and natural

gas utility industries financial reform healthcare reform changes in

environmental and other regulations including but not limited to

greenhouse gas emissions other environmental regulations impacting

coal-fired generation facilities energy efficiency mandates renewable

energy standards and reliability standards and changes in tax and

other laws and regulations to which Integrys Energy Group and its

subsidiaries are subject

Current and future
litigation

and regulatory proceedings enforcement

actions or inquiries including but not limited to manufactured gas

plant site cleanup third-party intervention in permitting and licensing

projects compliance with Clean Air Act requirements at generation

plants and prudence and reconciliation of costs recovered in revenues

through automatic gas cost recovery mechanisms

The impacts of changing financial market conditions credit ratings

and interest rates on the
liquidity

and financing efforts of Integrys

Energy Group and its subsidiaries

The residual risks related to exiting parts of Integrys Energy Groups

nonregulated energy services business including settling certain

provisions of the related sales agreements at costs greater

than anticipated

The risks associated with changing commodity prices particularly

natural gas and electricity and the available sources of fuel natural

gas
and purchased power including their impact on margins working

capital and
liquidity requirements

Resolution of audits or other tax disputes with the United States

Internal Revenue Service and various state local and Canadian

revenue agencies

The effects extent and timing of additional competition or regulation

in the markets in which Integrys Energy Groups subsidiaries operate

The retention of market-based rate authority

The risk associated with the value of goodwill or other intangibles and

their possible impairment

Investment performance of employee benefit plan assets and the

related impact on future funding requirements

Changes in technology particularly with respect to new developing or

alternative sources of generation

Effects of and changes in
political

and legal developments as

well as economic conditions and the related impact on customer

demand including the ability to attract and retain customers for the

nonregulated energy services business and to adequately forecast

energy usage for Integrys Energy Group customers

Potential business strategies including mergers acquisitions and

construction or disposition of assets or businesses which cannot be

assured to be completed timely or within budgets

The direct or indirect effects of terrorist incidents natural disasters or

responses to such events

The effectiveness of risk management strategies the use of financial

and derivative instruments and the
ability to recover costs from

customers in rates associated with the use of those strategies and

financial and derivative instruments

The risk of financial loss including increases in bad debt expense

associated with the inability of Integrys Energy Groups and its

subsidiaries counterparties affiliates and customers to meet

their obligations

Customer usage weather and other natural phenomena

The utilization of tax credit and loss carryforwards

Contributions to earnings by non-consolidated equity method and

other investments which may vary from projections

The effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by

standard-setting bodies and

Other factors discussed in the 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K and

in other reports filed by Integrys Energy Group from time to time with

the United States Securities and Exchange Commission

Except to the extent required by the federal securities laws Integrys

Energy Group and its subsidiaries undertake no obligation to publicly

update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of

new information future events or otherwise
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Managements Discussion and Analysis

INTRODUCTION

Integrys Energy Group is diversified energy holding company with

regulated natural gas and electric
utility operations serving customers

in Illinois Michigan Minnesota and Wisconsin nonregulated energy

operations and an approximate 34% equity ownership interest in American

Transmission Company ATC federally regulated electric transmission

company operating in Wisconsin Michigan Minnesota and Illinois

Strategic Overview

Integrys Energy Groups goal is to create long-term value for shareholders

and customers through growth in its core regulated businesses Integrys

Energy Group also has nonregulated energy services business segment

that is smaller than it was historically
with

significantly
reduced credit and

collateral support requirements

The essential components of Integrys Energy Group business strategy are

Maintaining and Growing Strong Regulated Utility Base strong

regulated utility
base is essential to maintaining strong balance sheet

predictable cash flows the desired risk profile attractive dividends and

quality credit ratings This is critical to Integrys Energy Groups success

as strategically focused regulated business Integrys Energy Group

believes the following projects have helped or will help maintain and

grow its regulated utility
base and meet its customers needs

An accelerated annual investment in natural gas distribution facilities

primarily replacement of cast iron mains at The Peoples Gas Light

and Coke Company PGL

Wisconsin Public Service Corporations PS continued investment

in environmental projects to improve air quality and meet the

requirements set by environmental regulators Capital projects to

construct and/or upgrade equipment to meet or exceed required

environmental standards are planned each year

Integrys Energy Group approximate 34% ownership interest in ATC

transmission company
that had over $2.9 billion of transmission assets

at December 31 2010 ATC plans to invest approximately $3.4 billion

during the next ten years Although ATCs equity requirements to fund

its capital investments will primarily be met by earnings reinvestment

Integrys Energy Group plans to continue to fund its share of the equity

portion of future ATC growth as necessary

For more detailed information on Integrys Energy Groups capital expenditure

program see Liquidity and Capital Resources Capital Requirements

Operating Nonregulated Energy Services Business Segment

with Controlled Risk and Capital Profile Through its nonregulated

Integrys Energy Services subsidiary Integrys Energy Group provides retail

natural gas
and electric products to end-use customers in the northeast

quadrant of the United States Integrys Energy Group has repositioned this

subsidiary from focus on significant growth in wholesale and retail electric

markets across the United States and Canada to focus on operating within

select retail electric and natural gas markets in its current market footprint

where it has experience and believes it will have the most success growing its

recurring customer based business The current strategy is intended to result

in more dependable cash and earnings contributions with controlled risk

and capital profile In addition Integrys Energy Services continues to invest

in and promote renewable energy in the United States Clean renewable

and efficient energy sources are developed acquired owned and operated

by Integrys Energy Services Integrys Energy Services assists customers with

selecting an energy solution that meets their needs and collaborates with

energy developers of wholesale energy projects to overcome challenges with

integrating the technical regulatory and financial aspects of their projects

Integrating Resources to Provide Operational Excellence Integrys

Energy Group is committed to integrating resources of all its businesses

while meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements This will

provide the best value to customers and shareholders by leveraging the

individual capabilities and expertise of each business and lowering costs

Operational Excellence initiatives were implemented to encourage top

performance in the areas of project management process improvement

contract administration and compliance in order to reduce costs and

manage projects and activities within appropriate budgets schedules

and regulations

Placing Strong Emphasis on Asset and Risk Management Integrys

Energy Groups asset management strategy calls for the continuous

assessment of existing assets the acquisition of assets and contractual

commitments to obtain resources that complement its existing business

and strategy The goal is to provide the most efficient use of resources

while maximizing return and maintaining an acceptable risk profile This

strategy focuses on acquiring assets consistent with strategic plans and

disposing of assets including property plant and equipment and entire

business units which are no longer strategic to ongoing operations are

not performing as needed or have an unacceptable risk profile Integrys

Energy Group maintains portfolio approach to risk and earnings

Integrys Energy Groups risk management strategy includes the

management of market credit liquidity and operational risks through

the normal course of business Forward purchases and sales of electric

capacity energy natural gas and other commodities and the use of

derivative financial instruments including commodity swaps and options

allow for opportunities to reduce the risk associated with price movement

in volatile energy market Each business unit manages
the risk

profile

related to these instruments consistent with Integrys Energy Groups risk

management policies which are approved by the Board of Directors

The Corporate Risk Management Group which reports through the Chief

Financial Officer provides corporate oversight
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Managements Discussion and Analysis

Continuing Emphasis on Safe Reliable Competitively Priced and

Environmentally Sound Energy and Energy Related Services Integrys

Energy Groups mission is to provide customers with the best value in energy

and energy related services By effectively operating mixed portfolio

of generation assets and investing in new generation and natural gas

distribution assets while maintaining or exceeding environmental standards

Integrys Energy Group is able to provide safe reliable value-priced

service to its customers Integrys Energy Group concentrates its efforts on

improving and operating efficiently in order to reduce costs and maintain

low risk profile lntegrys Energy Group actively evaluates opportunities for

adding more renewable generation to provide additional environmentally

sound energy to its portfolio Ensuring continued reliability for its customers

lntegrys Energy Group is effectively operating mixed portfolio of

generation assets and investing in new generation and distribution assets

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders $220.9 69.6 $1 16.5 N/A N/A

Basic earnings loss per share $2.85 $O.91 $1.52 N/A N/A

Diluted earnings loss per
share $2.83 $0.91 $1.51 N/A N/A

Average shares of common stock

Basic 77.5 76.8 76.7 0.9 0.1

Diluted 78.0 76.8 77.0 1.6 0.3%

N/A Not Applicable

Certain amounts have been retrospectively adjusted due to change in accounting policy in the fourth quarter of 2010 See Note 1d Change in Accounting Policy for more information

2010 Compared with 2009

Integrys Energy Group recognized net income attributed to common

shareholders of $220.9 million $2.83 diluted earnings per share in

2010 compared with net loss attributed to common shareholders of

$69.6 million $0.91 net loss per share in 2009 The primary driver of the

$290.5 million increase in earnings was an after-tax noncash goodwill

impairment loss of $248.8 million recorded in 2009 compared with no

goodwill impairment losses in 2010 Other factors contributing to the

increase were the combined approximate $69 million after-tax positive

impact on margins of electric and natural gas
distribution rate increases

effective in 2010 and $22.5 million after-tax reduction in restructuring

expenses year over year These increases in earnings were partially
offset

by after-tax impairment charges of $25.9 million in 2010 related to three

natural gas-fired generation plants at Integrys Energy Services

2009 Compared with 2008

Integrys Energy Group recognized net loss attributed to common

shareholders of $69.6 million $0.91 net loss per share in 2009 compared

with net income attributed to common shareholders of $116.5 million

$1.51 diluted earnings per share in 2008 The primary drivers of the

$186.1 million decrease in earnings were $242.3 million after-tax year

over-year increase in noncash goodwill impairment losses $27.2 million

of after-tax restructuring charges recorded in 2009 and $17.3 million of

after-tax net losses on dispositions in 2009 related to the Integrys Energy

Services strategy change These decreases in earnings were partially

offset by $127.3 million after-tax increase in margins at Integrys Energy

Services primarily due to the positive year-over-year impact of noncash

inventory valuation adjustments recorded in prior periods partially
offset

by noncash accounting losses in 2009 versus noncash accounting gains in

2008 due to derivative fair value adjustments

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Earnings Summary Year Ended December31

Change in 2010 Change in 2009

Millions except per share amounts 2010 2009 2008 Over 2009 Over 2008

Natural gas utility operations 84.0 $172.1 84.5 N/A N/A

Electric
utility operations 109.8 88.9 92.6 23.5% 4.0%

Integrys Energy Services operations 3.3 3.8 71.4 13.2% N/A

Electric transmission investment 46.2 45.5 39.7 1.5 14.6

Holding company and other operations 22.4 35.7 28.9 37.3% 23.5
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Managements Discussion and Analysis

2010 Compared with 2009

Revenues

Regulated natural gas utility segment revenues decreased $180.3 million

year over yeac driven by

An approximate $132 million decrease in revenues as result of the

1.9% lower natural gas throughput volumes related to

An approximate $76 million decrease driven by lower weather-

normalized volumes Residential customer volumes decreased

which Integrys Energy Group attributes to energy conservation

efficiency efforts and general economic conditions In addition

some former Michigan Gas Utilities Corporation MGU residential

and small commercial and industrial retail customers have become

transportation customers under Michigan customer choice

program which resulted in reduced revenues of approximately

$6 million in 2010 related to the pass-through of the cost of natural

gas but had no impact on margins These decreases were partially

offset by year-over-year net increase in commercial and industrial

sales volumes for both retail and transportation customers driven

by certain transportation customers of Minnesota Energy Resources

Corporation MERC and MGU

An approximate $66 million decrease as result of warmer year

over-year
weather during the heating season as evidenced by the

8.8% decrease in average heating degree days

Partially offsetting these decreases was the approximate $10 million

positive year-over-year impact of decoupling mechanisms for

residential small commercial and industrial and transportation

customers Under decoupling certain of Integrys Energy Groups

regulated natural gas utilities are allowed to defer the difference

between the actual and rate case authorized delivery charge

components of margin from certain customers and adjust future

rates in accordance with rules applicable to each jurisdiction The

decoupling mechanism for WPS natural gas utility
includes an

annual $8.0 million cap for the deferral of
any excess or shortfall

from the rate case authorized margin This cap was reached in the

first quarter of 2010 but was not reached in 2009

An approximate $127 million decrease in revenues as result of an

approximate 9% year-over-year decrease in the average per-unit

cost of natural gas sold For all of Integrys Energy Groups regulated

natural gas utilities prudently incurred natural gas commodity costs

are passed directly through to customers in current rates

Regulated Natural Gas Utility Segment Operations

Year Ended December31

Revenues

Change in 2010 Change in 2009

Millions except degree days 2010 2009 2008 Over 2009 Over 2008

$2057.2

1152.0

905.2

$2237.5

1382.0

855.5

$3025.9

2147.7

878.2

8.1%

6.6%

5.8

26.1%

35.7%

2.6%

Purchased natural gas costs

Margins

Operating and maintenance expense 542.1 532.6 539.1 1.8 .2%

Goodwill impairment loss 291.1 6.5 100.0% 4378.5%

Restructuring expense 0.2 6.9 N/A N/A

Depreciation and amortization expense 130.9 106.1 108.3 23.4% 2.0%

Taxes other than income taxes 34.4 33.4 32.1 3.0% 4.0%

Operating income loss 198.0 114.6 192.2 N/A N/A

Miscellaneous income 1.6 3.1 7.0 48.4% 55.7%

Interest expense 49.7 52.2 56.6 4.8% 7.8%

Otherexpense 48.1 49.1 49.6 2.0% 1.0%

Income loss before taxes 149.9 163.7 142.6 N/A N/A

Throughput in therms

Residential 1496.4 1602.8 1708.9 6.6% 6.2%

Commercial and industrial 455.5 501.4 550.8 9.2% 9.0%

Interruptible 39.8 51.3 60.1 22.4% 14.6%

Interdepartmental 13.9 9.5 28.6 46.3 66.8%

Transport 1728.4 1641.6 1834.0 5.3% 10.5%

Total throughput in therms 3734.0 3806.6 41 82.4 .9% 9.0%

Weather

Average heating degree days 6440 7061 7257 8.8% 2.7%
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Managements Discussion and Analysis

An approximate $18 million net decrease in revenues driven by lower

recovery of approximately $25 million of environmental cleanup

expenditures related to former manufactured gas plant sites partially

offset by an approximate $7 million increase related to recoveries

received in 2010 under the PGL and North Shore Gas Company

NSG bad debt riders These amounts were offset by net decrease

in operating and maintenance expense resulting from lower net

amortization of the related regulatory assets and therefore had no

impact on earnings Recoveries under these riders represent net

billings to customers of the excess or deficiency of actual 2008 and

2009 bad debt expense over bad debt expense reflected in utility rates

during those same periods See Note 24 Regulatory Environment

for more information on the PGL and NSG bad debt riders

Partially offsetting these decreases was the approximate $96 million

positive impact of natural
gas

distribution rate increases These rate

increases were necessary in part to recover higher operating expenses

as discussed below See Note 24 Regulatory Environment for

more information on these rate increases

The rate increases at PGL and NSG had an approximate $77 million

positive impact on revenues

The rate increase at WPS had an approximate $13 million positive

impact on revenues

The rate increase at MGU had an approximate $3 million positive

impact on revenues

rate increase at MERC related to its conservation improvement

program had an approximate $3 million positive impact on

revenues This amount is offset by corresponding increase in

operating and maintenance expense and therefore had no impact

on earnings

Margins

Regulated natural gas utility segment margins increased $49.7 million

year over year driven by the approximate $96 million positive impact of

the rate increases partially
offset by

An approximate $28 million decrease in margins resulting from lower

natural gas throughput volumes resulting from

An approximate $19 million decrease related to warmer year-over-

year weather during the heating season

An approximate $19 million decrease related to lower weather-

normalized volumes primarily attributed to residential customer

conservation efficiency efforts and general economic conditions

partially offset by the favorable net impact of increased commercial

and industrial sales volumes for certain retail and transportation

customers of MERC and MGU

Partially offsetting these decreases was the approximate $10 million

positive impact from decoupling mechanisms in place at certain of

Integrys Energy Groups regulated natural gas
utilities

An approximate $18 million net decrease in margins driven by

lower recovery of environmental cleanup expenditures related to

former manufactured gas plant sites partially
offset by an increase

in margins related to recoveries received under the PGL and NSG

bad debt riders These amounts were offset by net decrease

in operating and maintenance expense resulting from lower net

amortization of the related regulatory assets and therefore had no

impact on earnings

Operating Income Loss

Operating income at the regulated natural gas utility segment increased

$312.6 million year over year This increase was primarily driven by the

positive year-over-year impact of $291.1 million noncash goodwill

impairment loss that was recorded in the first quarter of 2009 Also

contributing to the increase was the $49.7 million increase in the

natural gas margins discussed above partially
offset by $28.2 million

increase in other operating expenses See Note Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets for information related to the goodwill

impairment loss recorded in 2009

The $28.2 million year-over-year increase in other operating expenses

primarily related to

$24.8 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense

primarily due to the Illinois Commerce Commissions ICC rate order for

PGL and NSG effective January 28 2010 which allows earlier recovery

in rates for net dismantling costs by including them as component

of depreciation rates applied to natural
gas

distribution assets The

increase also includes $2.5 million write-off of MGU assets for which

rate recovery is currently being contested

$12.9 million increase in expenses
related to energy conservation

programs and enhanced efficiency initiatives

$9.8 million increase in employee benefit costs primarily driven

by an increase in other postretirement benefit costs

$7.4 million increase in asset usage charges from Integrys

Business Support LLC IBS related to implementation of both

work asset management system for natural gas operations and

newer version of an Enterprise Resource Planning system for

finance and supply chain services

$4.9 million increase in stock-based compensation expense

See Note 20 Stock-Based Compensation for more information

These increases were partially offset by

An approximate $18 million net decrease due to approximately

$25 million of lower amortization of the regulatory asset related to

environmental cleanup expenditures for manufactured gas plant

sites partially offset by approximately $7 million of amortization

related to the regulatory assets recorded as result of the PGL and

NSG bad debt riders This net decrease was passed through to

customers in rates and therefore had no impact on earnings

$7.1 million decrease in restructuring expenses recorded in 2009

related to reduction in workforce See Note Restructuring

Expense for more information

$6.1 million decrease in labor costs as result of the reduction in

workforce and company-wide furloughs implemented as part of

previously announced cost management efforts
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2009 Compared with 2008

Revenues

Regulated natural gas utility segment revenues decreased $788.4 million

driven by

An approximate $648 million decrease in revenues as result of an

approximate 30% decrease in the average per-unit cost of natural gas

sold by the regulated natural gas utilities during 2009 compared with

2008 For all of Integrys Energy Group regulated natural gas utilities

prudently incurred natural gas commodity costs are passed directly

through to customers in current rates

An approximate $166 million decrease in revenues as result of lower

year-over-year natural gas throughput volumes driven by

An approximate $83 million decrease related to lower weather-

normalized volumes including residential customer volumes

resulting from customer conservation and efficiency efforts Lower

volumes were also driven by decreased commercial and industrial

customer volumes resulting from reduced demand related to

changes in customers plant operations and decline in customer

base at PGL and MGU both of which Integrys Energy Group

attributed to the general economic slowdown

An approximate $70 million decrease as result of warmer year

over-year weather during the heating season as indicated by the

2.7% decrease in average heating degree days

An approximate $19 million decrease related to reduction in

volumes sold to the electric utility segment driven by the availability

of lower cost power from Midwest Independent Transmission System

Operator Inc MISO resulting in decrease in the need for the

electric utility to run its natural gas-fired peaking generation units

This decrease in revenues was partially
offset by the $6 million

positive impact of decoupling mechanisms that were first effective

for PGL and NSG on March 2008 and for WPS on January 2009

Under decoupling these utilities are allowed to defer the difference

between the actual and rate case authorized delivery charge

components of margin from certain customers and adjust future

rates in accordance with rules applicable to each jurisdiction

An approximate $20 million year-over-year net decrease in revenues

from lower recovery of environmental cleanup expenditures at PGL and

NSG related to former manufactured gas plant sites partially offset

by higher recovery of Enhanced Efficiency Program EEP expenses

The EEP was established in the 2008 PGL and NSG rate cases and is

designed to encourage energy efficiency initiatives

The decrease in revenues was partially
offset by the approximate

$29 million
year-over-year net positive impact of natural gas

distribution rate cases and changes in rate design at the regulated

natural gas utilities See Note 24 Regulatory Environment for more

information on these rate cases

Effective January 14 2009 MGU received final rate order from

the Michigan Public Service Commission MPSC for natural gas

distribution rate increase On June 29 2009 MERC received final

rate order granting natural gas distribution rate increase Prior to

this final order MERC had been granted interim rate relief effective

October 2008 Together these rate increases had an approximate

$19 million positive impact on revenue

In 2009 PGL and NSG received the full impact of their 2008 natural
gas

distribution rate orders which were effective February 142008 and

drove an approximate $5 million increase in revenue year over year

Effective January 2009 the Public Service Commission of

Wisconsin PSCW required WPS to change its retail natural gas

distribution rate design which incorporates higher volumetric rates

and lower fixed customer charges In 2009 revenue increased

approximately $5 million related to this change in rate design

Margins

Regulated natural gas utility segment margins decreased $22.7 million

driven by

An approximate $27 million year-over-year decrease in margins

resulting from the 9.0% decrease in natural gas throughput volumes

attributed to the negative impact of the general economic slowdown

customer conservation and efficiency efforts and warmer year

over-year weather This decrease in margins includes the impact of

decoupling mechanisms that were first effective for PGL and NSG

on March 12008 and for WPS on January 12009 The decoupling

mechanism for WPSs natural gas utility
includes an annual $8.0 million

cap for the deferral of any excess or shortfall from the rate case

authorized margin Approximately $7 million of additional margin was

recognized at WPS due to shortfall from the rate case authorized

margin during 2009

An approximate $20 million year-over-year net decrease in margins

due to lower recovery of environmental cleanup expenditures at PGL

and NSG related to former manufactured gas plant sites partially

offset by an increase in recovery of EEP expenses This decrease in

margin was offset by net decrease in operating expense from both

the amortization of the related regulatory asset and EEP expenses and

therefore had no impact on earnings

An approximate $2 million year-over-year decrease in margins at MGU

related to an adjustment in the third quarter of 2008 for recovery of

natural gas costs in MPSC proceeding

The decrease in margins was partially
offset by the approximate

$29 million net positive year-over-year impact of rate orders and

impacts of rate design changes at the regulated natural
gas

utilities

Operating Income Loss

Operating results at the regulated natural gas utility segment

decreased $306.8 million from operating income of $192.2 million in

2008 to an operating loss of $114.6 million in 2009 This decrease

was primarily driven by year-over-year increase in noncash goodwill

impairment losses of $284.6 million and the $22.7 million decrease in

natural gas margin partially
offset by $0.5 million decrease in other

operating expenses See Note Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets for information related to the goodwill impairment losses

recorded in 2009 and 2008

16 INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP INc 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



Managements Discussion and Analysis

The year-over-year decrease in other operating expenses primarily

related to

An approximate $20 million net decrease in amortization of the regulatory

asset related to environmental cleanup expenditures of manufactured gas

plant sites partially
offset by an increase in EEP expenses Both of these

costs were recovered from customers in rates

$17.7 million decrease in bad debt expense driven by the impact

lower energy prices had on overall accounts receivable balances

and the implementation of bad debt expense tracking mechanisms

at PGL NSG and MGU PGL and NSG elected during the third

quarter of 2009 under new Illinois state law to file for recovery

from or refund to customers the difference between actual bad debt

expense reported as component of earnings and the bad debt

expense included in utility rates retroactive to January 2008 Bad

debt expense also decreased as result of MGUs rate order effective

January 12010 which established bad debt expense tracking

mechanism that allows for the deferral and subsequent recovery or

refund of 80% of the difference between actual bad debt

write-offs net of recoveries and bad debt expense
included in

utility

rates The bad debt mechanism allowed recovery of portion of the

December 31 2009 accounts receivable reserve representing future

bad debt write-offs The decrease in bad debt expense
attributed to

the implementation of bad debt expense tracking mechanisms at the

natural gas utilities was $9.3 million

These decreases were partially offset by

$13.4 million increase in employee benefit costs partially related

to an increase in pension expense resulting from negative pension

investment returns in 2008 as well as higher health care expenses

in 2009

Restructuring expenses of $6.9 million related to reduction in

workiorce See Note Restructuring Expense for more information

$5.5 million increase in natural gas maintenance costs primarily

related to increased system inspection and maintenance requirements

$5.0 million increase in expenses related to workers

compensation claims

$3.0 million charge related to an expected settlement with

the ICC at PGL and NSG related to fiscal years 2001 through
2004 natural gas costs See Note 15 Commitments and

Contingencies for more information

$2.5 million increase in amortization of regulatory asset related

to conservation program initiatives

Regulated Electric Utility Segment Operations

Revenues $1338.9

Year Ended December31

Change in 2010 Change in 2009

Millions except degree days 2010 2009 2008 Over 2009 Over 2008

$1301.6 $1328.9 2.9 2.1%

10.3%Fuel and purchased power costs 563.9 584.5 651.5 3.5%

Margins
775.0 717.1 677.4 8.1 5.9%

Operating and maintenance expense 417.2 392.0 375.3 6.4% 4.4%

Restructuring expense 0.3 8.6 N/A N/A

Depreciation and amortization expense
94.7 90.3 84.3 4.9 7.1

Taxes other than income taxes 45.6 46.6 44.3 2.1% 5.2

Operating income 217.8 179.6 173.5 21.3% 3.5%

Miscellaneous income 1.5 4.8 6.0 68.8% 20.0%

Interest expense
43.9 41.6 36.7 5.5 13.4

Other expense 42.4 36.8 30.7 15.2 19.9

Income before taxes 175.4 142.8 142.8 22.8%

Sales in kilowatt-hours

Residential 3114.3 3043.0 3064.5 2.3% 0.7%

Commercial and industrial 8439.6 8155.5 8632.8 3.5% 5.5%

Wholesale 4994.7 5079.1 4764.6 .7% 6.6

Other 39.1 40.0 42.6 2.3% 6.1%

Total sales in kilowatt-hours 16587.7 16317.6 16504.5 1.7% 1.1%

Weather WPS

Heating degree days 7080 7962 7969 11.1% 0.1%

Cooling degree days
616 274 464 124.8% 40.9%

Weather Upper Peninsula Power Company UPPCO

Heating degree days 8002 9317 9348 14.1% 0.3%

Cooling degree days 301 99 138 204.0% 28.3%
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2010 Compared with 2009

Revenues

Regulated electric
utility segment revenues increased $37.3 million year

over year driven by

The approximate $21 million combined positive impact of retail

electric rate increases at both WPS and UPPCO effective

January 12010 These rate increases were necessary in part for

recovery of higher operating expenses as discussed below

An approximate $16 million increase in revenues due to 7.5%

increase in sales volumes to large commercial and industrial customers

at WPS primarily related to changes in the business operations of

these customers year over year

An approximate $13 million increase in revenues due to 2.7%

increase in sales volumes to residential customers and 0.9% increase

in sales volumes to small commercial and industrial customers at WPS

primarily related to warmer year-over-year weather during the cooling

season as evidenced by the increase in cooling degree days

An approximate $4 million increase in opportunity sales at WPS made

possible by the availability of low-cost energy from Weston

These increases in regulated electric utility segment revenues were

partially
offset by an approximate $18 million decrease in revenues

from wholesale customers at WPS primarily due to lower fuel costs

Fuel costs are passed directly through to wholesale customers in rates

Margins

Regulated electric utility segment margins increased $57.9 million year

over year driven by

An approximate $26 million increase in margins driven by lower fuel

and purchased power costs incurred during 2010 as compared with

authorized fuel and purchased power cost recovery rates

The approximate $21 million combined positive impact of retail electric

rate increases at both WPS and UPFCO effective January 12010

An approximate $7 million increase in margins due to 2.7% increase

in sales volumes to residential customers at WPS primarily related

to warmer year-over-year weather during the cooling season as

evidenced by the increase in cooling degree days Margins were

impacted by the year-over-year increase in sales volumes because

WPS reached the annual $14.0 million electric decoupling cap in the

second quarter of 2010 and 2009 and remained over the cap through

the end of both years Therefore no additional decoupling deferral

was allowed for additional shortfalls from authorized margin for the

remainder of both years Under decoupling WPS is allowed to defer

up to the established cap the difference between its actual margin

and the rate case authorized margin recognized from residential and

small commercial and industrial customers

An approximate $7 million increase in margins due to 7.5% increase

in sales volumes to large commercial and industrial customers at

WPS primarily related to changes in the business operations of these

customers year over year

These increases in regulated electric
utility segment margins were partially

offset by an approximate $2 million decrease in margins from WPSs

wholesale customers primarily due to decrease in sales volumes

Operating Income

Operating income at the regulated electric
utility segment increased

$38.2 million year over yeac driven by the $57.9 million increase in

margins partially offset by $19.7 million increase in operating expenses

The year-over-year increase in operating expenses was the result of

$13.9 million increase in electric transmission expense

$12.7 million increase in customer assistance expense related

to payments made to the Focus on Energy program which helps

residents and businesses install cost-effective energy-efficient and

renewable energy products

$4.4 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense

primarily related to the Crane Creek Wind Farm being placed in

service for accounting purposes in December 2009

$3.9 million increase in stock-based compensation expense

See Note 20 Stock-Based Compensation for more information

$3.6 million increase in employee benefit costs primarily related to

an increase in pension and other postretirement benefit expenses

driven by the amortization of negative investment returns on plan

assets from prior years

These increases in regulated electric
utility operating expenses were

partially offset by

An $8.9 million year-over-year decrease in restructuring expenses

related to reduction in workforce See Note Restructuring

Expense for more information

$6.2 million decrease in labor costs driven by the reduction in

workforce and company-wide furloughs implemented as part of

previously announced cost management efforts

$2.1 million decrease in electric maintenance expense at WPS
primarily related to greater number of planned outages at its

generation plants during 2009 compared with 2010

Other Expense

Other expense at the regulated electric utility segment increased

$5.6 million
year over year

driven by decrease in Allowance for Funds

Used During Construction AFUDC primarily related to the construction

of the Crane Creek Wind Farm in 2009

2009 Compared with 2008

Revenues

Regulated electric
utility segment revenues decreased $27.3 million year

over year driven by

5.5% decrease in commercial and industrial sales volumes and

0.7% decrease in residential sales volumes which resulted in an

approximate $23 million year-over-year decrease in revenues after the

impact of decoupling The primary drivers of the decrease were

An approximate $31 million
year-over-year decrease due to lower

demand related to changes in commercial and industrial customers

plant operations which Integrys Energy Group attributed mainly to

the general economic slowdown
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An approximate $6 million decrease primarily related to cooler
year-

over-year weather during the cooling season as evidenced by the

decrease in cooling degree days at both WPS and UPPCO

These decreases in volumes were partially
offset by the $14.0 million

impact that decoupling which went into effect on January 2009

had on WPSs revenue The four-year pilot program
for electric

decoupling has an annual $14.0 million cap for the deferral of any

excess or shortfall from the rate case authorized margin This cap

was reached during the second quarter of 2009 therefore no

additional decoupling deferral was allowed for additional shortfalls

from authorized margin for the second half of the year

An approximate $22 million
year-over-year

reduction in revenues

related to refunds due to customers in both 2009 and 2008 related to

WPSs over-collection of fuel costs On April 23 2009 the FSCW made

2009 fuel cost recovery subject to refund effective April 25 2009 as

actual and projected fuel costs for the remainder of the year were

estimated to be below the 2% fuel window See Note 24 Regulatory

Environment for more information on WPSs fuel window

An approximate $14 million year-over-year decrease in opportunity

sales driven by lower demand and the
availability

of lower cost power

from the MISO market

These decreases in regulated electric
utility segment revenues were

partially offset by

An approximate $19 million increase in revenues driven by higher

wholesale volumes due to an increase in contracted sales volumes

to large wholesale customer and an increase in the wholesale

demand rate effective January 2009 to recover costs related to

Weston

An approximate $15 million increase in revenues from the combined

effect of the July 42008 fuel surcharge portion of which was

incorporated into WPSs 2009 non-fuel base retail electric rates

and the full years benefit of the 2008 retail electric rate increase

effective January 16 2008 for WPS

Margins

The regulated electric utility segment margins increased $39.7 million

year over year driven by

An approximate $20 million year-over-year increase in margins from

wholesale customers related to increases in contracted sales volumes

with an existing customer and an increase in the wholesale demand

rate effective January 2009 to recover costs related to Weston

An approximate $14 million year-over-year increase in margins from

the combined effect of the July 2008 fuel surcharge portion of

which was incorporated into WPSs 2009 non-fuel base retail electric

rates and the full years benefit of the 2008 retail electric rate increase

effective January 16 2008 for WPS

An approximate $11 million year-over-year increase in WPSs

regulated electric
utility margins due to fuel and purchased power

costs that were approximately $12 million lower than what was

recovered in rates during 2009 compared with fuel and purchased

power costs that were approximately $1 million lower than what was

recovered in rates during 2008

The increase in margins was partially
offset by an approximate

$4 million
year-over-year

decrease in margin after the impact of

the WPS decoupling mechanism caused by 4.3% year-over-year

decrease in sales volumes to residential and commercial and industrial

customers The $14.0 million impact of decoupling partially offset

the approximate $18 million decrease in margins due to lower sales

volumes which was attributed to the general economic slowdown and

cooler year-over-year weather during the cooling season

Operating Income

Operating income at the regulated electric
utility segment increased

$6.1 million year over year driven by the $39.7 million increase in margins

partially offset by $33.6 million increase in operating expenses

The year-over-year increase in operating expenses was driven by

$8.6 million in restructuring expenses related to reduction in workforce

See Note Restructuring Expense for more information

An $8.2 million increase in electric maintenance expenses at WPS

primarily related to greater number of planned outages at the

generation plants during 2009 compared with 2008

An $8.1 million increase in employee benefit costs primarily related to

an increase in pension expense driven partially by negative pension

investment returns in 2008 as well as higher health care expenses in 2009

$5.6 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense

at WPS primarily related to Weston being placed in service for

accounting purposes in April 2008

Other Expense

Other expense at the regulated electric
utility segment increased

$6.1 million year over year driven by

$4.9 million increase in interest expense primarily related to increased

long-term borrowings at WPS in December2008 The additional

borrowings were utilized to fund various construction projects most

notably the Crane Creek wind generation project in Iowa

$2.5 million decrease in interest earned on the transmission facilities

WPS funded on ATCs behalf WPS was reimbursed by ATC for these

transmission facilities in April 2008

Electric Transmission Investment

Segment Operations

2010 Compared with 2009

Miscellaneous Income

Miscellaneous income at the electric transmission investment segment

increased $2.3 million during 2010 compared with 2009 due to an

increase in income from Integrys Energy Groups approximate 34%

ownership interest in ATC The increase in income was driven by returns

earned by ATC on increased investment in transmission equipment and

facilities for improved reliability

2009 Compared with 2008

Miscellaneous Income

Miscellaneous income at the electric transmission investment segment

increased $9.2 million during 2009 compared with 2008 due to an

increase in income from Integrys Energy Groups approximate 34%

ownership interest in ATC The increase in income was driven by returns

earned by ATC on increased investment in transmission equipment and

facilities for improved reliability
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Integrys Energy Services Nonregulated Segment Operations

Year Ended December31

$1823.7 $3994.0 $9735.2 54.3% 59.0%

1614.3 3696.1 9649.5 56.3% 61.7%

Margins
209.4 297.9 85.7 29.7% 247.6%

Margin Detail

Realized retail electric margins 85.4 82.0 62.3 4.1 31.6

Realized wholesale electric margins 8.2 40.3 30.9 N/A 30.4

Realized energy asset margins 34.5 37.9 28.5 9.0% 33.0

Fair value adjustments 36.0 29.9 137.4 20.4% N/A

Electric and other margins 147.7 190.1 15.7 22.3% N/A

Realized retail natural gas margins 50.0 68.7 51.5 27.2% 33.4

Realized wholesale natural gas margins 3.3 40.8 64.1 N/A 36.3%

Lower-of-cost-or-market inventory adjustments 6.8 155.4 167.3 95.6% N/A

Fair value adjustments
8.2 157.1 153.1 N/A N/A

Natural gas margins
61.7 107.8 101.4 42.8% 6.3%

Operating and maintenance expense 117.6 188.6 181.2 37.6% 4.1

Impairment losses on property plant and

equipment
43.2 0.7 0.5 6071.4 40.0

Restructuring expense
8.3 27.2 69.5% N/A

Net loss on Integrys Energy Services

dispositions related to strategy change 14.1 28.9 51.2% N/A

Depreciation and amortization 17.2 19.0 14.5 9.5% 31.0%

Taxes other than income taxes 5.0 7.4 7.8 32.4% 5.1%

Operating income expense 4.0 26.1 118.3 84.7% N/A

Miscellaneous income 9.1 6.0 8.7 51.7% 31.0%

Interest expense
6.7 13.1 12.1 48.9% 8.3%

Other income expense 2.4 7.1 3.4 N/A 108.8%

Income loss before taxes 6.4 19.0 121.7 66.3% N/A

Physically settled volumes

Retail electric sales volumes in kwh 12647.9 15045.3 16561.3 15.9% 9.2%

Wholesale electric sales volumes in kwh 1319.9 3965.2 4634.1 66.7% 14.4%

Retail natural gas sales volumes in bcf 133.3 236.7 336.0 43.7% 29.6%

Wholesale natural gas
sales volumes in bcf 27.5 402.5 594.9 93.2% 32.3%

kwh kilowatt-hours

bcf billion cubic feet

This amount includes negative margin
of $1.4 million related to the settlement of retail supply contracts in connection with lntegys Energy Services strategy change

This amount includes negative margin
of $9.3 million related to the settlement of wholesale supply contracts in connection with Integrys Energy Services strategy change

5Certain amounts have been retrospectively adjusted due to change in accounting policy in the fourth
quarter

of 2010 See Note 1d change in Accounting Policy for more information

Revenues

Revenues decreased $2170.3 million during 2010 compared with 2009 as

result of Integrys Energy Groups decision to reduce the scale scope and risk

attributes of lntegrys Energy Services by focusing on selected retail electric

and natural gas markets in the United States and investments in energy

assets with renewable attributes See Note Dispositions for discussion

of the dispositions completed in connection with Integrys Energy Services

strategy change Also contributing to the decrease in revenues were lower

energy prices as the average market price of natural gas
and

electricity

decreased approximately 7% and 4% respectively year over year

Integrys Energy Services margins decreased $88.5 million during 2010

compared with 2009 The significant items contributing to the change in

margins were as follows

Electric and Other Margins

Realized Retail Electric Margins

Realized retail electric margins increased $3.4 million during 2010

compared with 2009 driven by

Revenues

Cost of fuel natural gas and purchased power

Change in 2010 Change in 2009

Millions except natural gas sales volumes 2010 200913 2008 Over 2009 Over 2008

2010 Compared with 2009 Margins
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$9.2 million increase in margins in the Illinois market primarily

driven by change in pricing methodology and customer mix that was

implemented as part of Integrys Energy Services strategy change

$5.5 million increase in margins in the Michigan market This

increase was driven by higher sales volumes due to increased

marketing efforts

The above increases in realized retail electric margins were partially

offset by $9.0 million decrease in margins related to the sale of the

Texas retail electric business in June 2010 driven by reduced sales

volumes and $1.4 million decrease related to the settlement of supply

contracts See Note Dispostons for discussion of this sale

Realized Wholesale Electric Margins

Realized wholesale electric margins decreased $48.5 million year over

year including negative margins of $9.3 million in 2010 related to the

settlement of wholesale supply contracts in connection with Integrys

Energy Services strategy change Wholesale transactions and structured

origination activity were significantly scaled back in conjunction with

Integrys Energy Services sale of substantially all of its United States

wholesale electric marketing and trading business which was completed

in February 2010 See Note Dispositions for more information

on Integrys Energy Services sale of its United States wholesale electric

marketing and trading business

Fair Value Adjustments

Integrys Energy Services electric margins from fair value adjustments

increased $6.1 million year over year Fair value adjustments required

under derivative accounting rules primarily relate to derivative electric

supply contracts used to economically hedge risks associated with electric

sales contracts

Natural Gas Margins

Realized Retail Natural Gas Margins

Realized retail natural gas margins decreased $18.7 million during 2010

compared with 2009 driven by

$7.6 million decrease driven by reduced sales volumes due to the

sale of Integrys Energy Services Canadian retail natural gas portfolio

in September 2009 See Note Dispositionsfor discussion of

this sale

$7.5 million decrease in margins in the Illinois market primarily due

to the negative year-over-year impact of the withdrawal of significant

amount of natural gas from storage in the first half of 2009 resulting

in higher realized margins during that period Also contributing to

the decrease were lower sales volumes resulting from Integrys Energy

Services strategy change

Realized Wholesale Natural Gas Margins

Realized wholesale natural gas margins decreased $44.1 million
year over

year due to Integrys Energy Services completing the sale of substantially

all of its wholesale natural gas business in December 2009 Additional

components of the wholesale natural gas business were sold in March 2010

and May 2010 The remaining realized wholesale natural gas activity at

Integrys Energy Services is related to residual contracts that will settle in

the first half of 2011 The risks associated with these residual contracts are

economically hedged See Note Dispositions for more information

on Integrys Energy Services sale of its wholesale natural gas business

Lower-of-Cost-or-Market Inventory Adjustments

Integrys Energy Services physical natural gas inventory is valued at

lower-of-cost-or-market When the market price of natural gas is lower

than the carrying value of the inventory write-downs are recorded within

margins to reflect inventory at the end of the period at its net realizable

value The lower-of-cost-or-market inventory write-downs are offset by

higher margins in future periods as the inventory that was written down is

sold The $148.6 million year-over-year decrease in margins from lower-

of-cost-or-market inventory adjustments was driven by lower volume

of inventory withdrawn from storage in 2010 for which write-downs had

previously been recorded

Fair Value Adjustments

Integrys Energy Services natural gas margins from fair value adjustments

increased $165.3 million year over year Fair value adjustments required

under derivative accounting rules primarily relate to financial instruments

used to economically hedge risks associated with natural gas storage and

transportation activity

Operating Income

Integrys Energy Services operating income decreased $22.1 million

year over year driven by the $88.5 million decrease in margins discussed

above and $43.2 million noncash impairment loss related to three

natural gas-fired generation plants in the third quarter of 2010 These

decreases were partially offset by $71.0 million decrease in operating

and maintenance expense an $18.9 million decrease in restructuring

expense and $14.8 million decrease in the net loss on Integrys Energy

Services dispositions related to its strategy change which primarily

resulted from mark-to-market timing differences that have historically

caused earnings volatility at Integrys Energy Services

The decrease in operating and maintenance expense was driven by

$46.0 million year-over-year decrease in employee payroll and

benefit related expenses primarily due to the reduction in workforce

associated with Integrys Energy Services strategy change

$10.5 million year-over-year decrease in bad debt expense driven by

the partial recovery in 2010 of receivables fully reserved in prior years

and decrease in reserves resulting from reduced business activity

The $9.0 million positive year-over-year impact of fee incurred in the

second quarter of 2009 related to an agreement with counterparty

that enabled Integrys Energy Services to reduce collateral support

requirements

An $8.0 million year-over-year decrease in broker commissions

contractor expenses and various other fees resulting from reduced

business
activity

associated with Integrys Energy Services strategy

change

The above decreases in operating and maintenance expense were

partially offset by $8.1 million of intercompany fees related to credit

agreement established in 2010 with the holding company

Other Income Expense

Integrys Energy Services other income increased $9.5 million
year over

year
driven by $4.3 million gain reclassified from accumulated other

comprehensive income in 2010 related to foreign currency translation

adjustments recorded in prior periods as well as $6.4 million decrease

in interest expense driven by reduced business size as result of Integrys

Energy Services strategy change
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2009 Compared with 2008

Revenues

Revenues decreased $5741.2 million in 2009 compared with 2008

primarily due to

Lower energy prices as the average market price of natural gas

and electricity
decreased approximately 45% and 40% year over

year respectively

Lower sales volumes as wholesale transactions were scaled back in

conjunction with the global credit crisis in the latter half of 2008 and

Integrys Energy Services strategy change and ultimate decision to

exit its wholesale natural gas and electric businesses

Margins

Integrys Energy Services margins increased $212.2 million in 2009

compared with 2008 The significant items contributing to the change in

margin were as follows

Electric and Other Margins

Realized Retail Electric Margins

The realized retail electric margin increased $19.7 million year over year

driven by

$14.1 million increase in the more mature markets such as Illinois

and New York as Integrys Energy Services realized the benefits of

including higher capital costs in its pricing in the first half of the year

$6.5 million increase from operations in the Texas market This

increase was result of the positive year-over-year impact of lower

ancillary
service costs compared to the prior year and the effects of

Hurricane Ike in the third quarter of 2008 Hurricane Ike disrupted the

electric infrastructure in Texas for period of time causing some of

Integrys Energy Services customers to be without
electricity or buy

only fraction of their normal energy usage during that period

Realized Wholesale Electric Margins

Realized wholesale electric margins increased $9.4 million year over year

In general realized margins are impacted by transaction activity
in prior

periods as Integrys Energy Services recognizes realized margin when the

contracts actually settle which typically occurs over 12- to 24-month

period from the time the contract was actually entered into In 2009

realized margins benefited from the settlement of contracts that were

entered into prior to the implementation of Integrys Energy Services

strategy change

Wholesale transactions and structured origination activity were scaled

back in conjunction with the global credit crisis in the latter half of 2008

and continued to be scaled back with Integrys Energy Services strategy

change and ultimate decision to exit its wholesale electric business

Fair Value Adjustments

Integrys Energy Services electric margins from fair value adjustments

increased $167.3 million year over year Fair value adjustments required

under derivative accounting rules primarily relate to derivative electric

supply contracts used to economically hedge risks associated with

electric sales contracts The fair value adjustments recorded in 2009

include margin reductions of $2.0 million related to the settlement of

derivative contracts entered into with the purchaser of the Canadian

electric power portfolio as discussed in Note Dispositions

Natural Gas Margins

Realized Retail Natural Gas Margins

Realized retail natural gas margins increased $17.2 million due to Integrys

Energy Services withdrawal of significant amount of natural gas during

2009 in order to improve its liquidity position recognizing realized gains

on these natural gas storage withdrawals Also per-unit retail natural

gas margins were higher year over year as more recently contracted

sales commitments reflect increased business risk and financing costs

in the pricing Offsetting the increase was decrease in Integrys

Energy Services natural gas sales volumes year over year Integrys

Energy Services significantly reduced the number of natural gas storage

transactions entered into as Integrys Energy Group implemented its

strategy change for its nonregulated energy services business segment

Realized Wholesale Natural Gas Margins

Realized wholesale natural gas margins decreased $23.3 million year over

year Wholesale natural gas transactions were scaled back in conjunction

with the global credit crisis in the latter half of 2008 and Integrys Energy

Services strategy change and ultimate decision to exit its wholesale

natural gas business The reduced activity
had negative impact on

realized margins in 2009

Lower-of-Cost-or-Market Inventory Adjustments

The combination of lower-of-cost-or-market inventory write-downs

and withdrawals of natural gas
from storage for which write-downs had

previously been recorded resulted in $322.7 million year-over-year

increase in natural
gas margins The average market price of natural gas

decreased approximately 5% during 2009 and decreased approximately

22% during 2008 driving positive year-over-year change in natural gas

margins of $129.2 million related to lower-of-cost-or-market inventory

write-downs The natural gas withdrawn from storage and sold to

customers in 2009 had $193.5 million lower cost basis as result of

lower-of-cost-or-market inventory write-downs recorded in prior periods

Fair Value Adjustments

Integrys Energy Services natural gas margins from fair value adjustments

decreased $310.2 million year over year Fair value adjustments required

under derivative accounting rules primarily relate to financial instruments

used to economically hedge risks associated with natural gas storage

and transportation activity The fair value adjustments recorded in 2009

include net increase in margin of $14.4 million related to the settlement

of derivative contracts entered into with the purchasers of the wholesale

natural gas marketing business and the Canadian natural gas portfolio as

discussed in Note Dispositions

Operating Income Loss

Integrys Energy Services operating income increased $144.4 million

year over year
This increase resulted from the $212.2 million increase in

margin discussed above partially offset by losses of $28.9 million related

to dispositions completed in connection with the strategy change

$27.2 million of restructuring expenses which included employee-related

costs the write-off of capitalized development costs related to software

that will not be utilized because of the restructuring and consulting and

legal fees $7.4 million increase in operating and maintenance expense

and $4.5 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense

primarily related to renewable energy asset additions

The increase in operating and maintenance expense was driven by

one-time $9.0 million novation fee related to an agreement with

counterparty that enabled Integrys Energy Services to reduce collateral

support requirements

See Note Restructuring Expense for discussion of

restructuring charges
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Holding Company and Other Segment Operations

45.9

Net loss before taxes $37.6 $60.O $53.9 37.3% 1.3%

2010 Compared with 2009

Operating Income Loss

Operating income at the holding company and other segment increased

$10.2 million driven by $8.1 million of intercompany fees charged by
the holding company to Integrys Energy Services related to credit

agreement established in 2010

Other Expense

Other expense at the holding company and other segment decreased

$12.2 million driven by $14.6 million decrease in external interest expense

2009 Compared with 2008

Operating Income Loss

Operating loss at the holding company and other segment increased

$1.2 million during 2009 compared with 2008 driven by restructuring

expenses related to Integrys Energy Groups reduction in workforce

and by decrease in operating income from MERCs nonutility home

services business

Other Expense

Other expense at the holding company and other segment increased

$4.9 million during 2009 compared with 2008 driven by $4.3 million

increase in interest expense at the holding company primarily due to an

increase in long-term borrowings in the second quarter of 2009 and an

increase in the amortization of deferred financing fees related to credit

facilities entered into in the second quarter of 2009 and the fourth quarter of

2008 partially offset by decrease in interest expense on commercial paper

Provision for Income Taxes

Effective Tax Rate 39.9%

Percentages have been retrospectively adjusted due to change in accounting policy in 2010

See Note 1d change in Accounting Policy for more information

2010 Compared with 2009

The effective tax rate for 2010 decreased compared with 2009 primarily

because significant portion of Integrys Energy Groups $291.1 million

noncash pre-tax goodwill impairment loss recorded in 2009 was not

deductible for tax purposes Also contributing to the change in the

year-over-year effective tax rate was the elimination of the deductibility

of prescription drug payments to retirees to the extent those payments

will be offset by the receipt of the Medicare Part subsidy as mandated

in the 2010 federal health care legislation See Liquidity and Capital

Resources Other Future Considerations Federal Health Care Reform

for more information As result of this legislation Integrys Energy

Group expensed $10.8 million of noncash deferred income tax benefits

during 2010 which were previously recognized as reduction in the

provision for income taxes This amount excluded $1.0 million for which

UPPCO was authorized recovery from ratepayers

2009 Compared with 2008

The effective tax rate for 2009 increased compared with 2008 primarily

because significant portion of Integrys Energy Groups $291.1 million

noncash pre-tax goodwill impairment loss was not deductible for tax

purposes Although Integrys Energy Group had $13.4 million of income

before taxes for 2009 it recorded an $83.7 million provision for income

taxes because $186.2 million of the total pre-tax goodwill impairment loss

was not deductible for income tax purposes

Discontinued Operations Net of Tax

2010 Compared with 2009

Income from discontinued operations net of tax decreased $2.6 million

in 2010 compared with 2009

During 2009 Integrys Energy Services recognized $3.9 million

$2.4 million after tax gain on the sale of its energy management

consulting business in discontinued operations During 2010 lntegrys

Energy Services recorded $0.2 million after-tax gain in discontinued

operations when contingent payments were earned related to the sale of

this business

2009 Compared with 2008

During 2009 Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of its energy

management consulting business The gain on the sale of this business

recorded in discontinued operations was $3.9 million $2.4 million after tax

During 2008 Integrys Energy Services recognized $6.3 million $3.8 million

after tax gain on the sale of its subsidiary Mid-American Power LLC in

discontinued operations when contingent payment was earned

For more information on the discontinued operations discussed above

see Note Dispositions and Note 25 Segments of Business

Operating income loss

Other
expense

Year Ended December31

Change in 2010 Change in 2009
Millions 2010 2009 2008 Over 2009 Over 2008

8.3 1.9

58.1

0.7

53.2

N/A

21 .0%

171.4%

9.2%

Year Ended December31

2010 2009 2008

624.6% 347%
Income from discontinued operations net of tax decreased $1.9 million

in 2009 compared with 2008
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BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents increased $134.5 million from $44.5 million

at December31 2009 to $179.0 million at December31 2010 For

detailed explanation of the change in the cash and cash equivalents

balance see Liquidity and Capital Resources

Collateral on deposit decreased $151.6 million 82.0% from $184.9 million

at December31 2009 to $33.3 million at December31 2010 Collateral

on deposit at Integrys Energy Services decreased $155.9 million driven

by reduced business size as result of its strategy change

At December 31 2010 compared to December 31 2009 total assets

from risk management activities decreased $1991.2 million 85.9% and

total liabilities from risk management activities decreased $2000.9 million

83.7% At Integrys Energy Services total assets from risk management

activities decreased $1988.0 million and total liabilities from risk

management activities decreased $2000.0 million driven by reduced

business size as result of its strategy change

Detailed explanations for changes in the short-term and long-term debt

balances year over year are included in Note 11 Short-Term Debt and

Lines of Credit and Note 12 Long-Term Debt

Detailed explanations for changes in the deferred income taxes balances

year over year are included in Note 14 Income Taxes

Asset retirement obligations increased $126.1 million 64.7%

from $194.8 million at December 31 2009 to $320.9 million at

December 31 2010 Asset retirement obligations increased

$123.7 million at PGL due to revisions made to estimated cash flows

related to asset retirement obligations for natural gas distribution pipes

See Note 13 Asset Retirement Obligationsfor more information

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Integrys Energy Group believes that its cash balances liquid assets

operating cash flows access to equity and debt capital markets and

available borrowing capacity provide adequate resources to fund

ongoing operating requirements and future capital expenditures related

to expansion of existing businesses and development of new projects

Integrys Energy Groups borrowing costs can be impacted by short-

term and long-term debt ratings assigned by independent credit rating

agencies as well as the market rates for interest Integrys Energy Groups

operating cash flows and access to capital markets can be impacted by

macroeconomic factors outside of its control

Operating Cash Flows

2010 Compared with 2009

Net cash provided by operating activities was $725.2 million during

2010 compared with $1606.3 million during 2009 The $881.1 million

year-over-year
decrease in net cash provided by operating activities was

mainly driven by

$746.5 million net decrease in cash provided by working capital

driven by

$767.2 million year-over-year
decrease in cash generated from

customer collections primarily due to the Integrys Energy Services

strategy change as well as lower year-over-year natural gas prices

which impacted both the regulated natural gas segment and

Integrys Energy Services

$393.0 million year-over-year decrease in cash generated from

reduced inventory levels mainly the result of the withdrawal of

significant amount of natural gas from storage at Integrys Energy

Services during 2009 in order to improve its liquidity position

Partially offsetting these changes was $578.9 million year-over-year

decrease in cash used to pay accounts payable balances driven by

smaller accounts payable balances at Integrys Energy Services as

result of the strategy change as well as lower year-over-year natural

gas prices

Also offsetting these changes was year-over-year increase in cash

flows of $118.1 million due to decrease in cash collateral provided

to counterparties due primarily to the change in Integrys Energy

Services business related to its strategy change

$175.8 million year-over-year
increase in deferred income taxes and

investment tax credits primarily driven by change in tax accounting

related to capitalization of overhead costs and legislation providing for

bonus depreciation during 2010

$148.5 million year-over-year increase in contributions to pension

and other postretirement benefit plans

2009 Compared with 2008

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1606.3 million

during 2009 compared with net cash used for operating activities of

$250.0 million during 2008 The $1856.3 million year-over-year increase

in net cash provided by operating activities was mainly driven by

$1734.8 million decrease in working capital requirements partially due

to $444.1 million decrease in inventories during 2009 compared with

$312.0 million increase in inventories during 2008 This change was

primarily result of an increase in natural gas withdrawn from storage

in 2009 due to the previously announced strategy change at Integrys

Energy Services as well as lower year-over-year
natural gas prices

Also contributing to the decrease in working capital requirements

was an $864.8 million decrease in accounts receivables and accrued

unbilled revenues during 2009 compared with $207.7 million increase

in accounts receivables and accrued unbilled revenues during 2008

primarily the result of lower natural gas prices and the lntegrys Energy

Services strategy change Additionally during 2009 Integrys Energy

Group had $45.5 million net return of margin from various exchanges

compared with the net payment of $239.2 million of margin posted to

various exchanges during 2008 primarily due to the strategy change

Partially offsetting these changes was $604.7 million decrease in accounts

payable during 2009 compared with $53.2 million decrease in accounts

payable during 2008 primarily the result of lower natural gas prices

Investing Cash Flows

2010 Compared with 2009

Net cash used for investing activities was $199.7 million during 2010

compared with $440.7 million during 2009 The $241.0 million year-over-

year decrease in net cash used for investing activities was primarily driven

by $185.4 million year-over-year decrease in cash used to fund capital

expenditures discussed below as well as $27.2 million year-over-year

decrease in capital contributions to equity method investments during

2010 mainly related to ATC capital contributions Also contributing to

the year-over-year decrease in net cash used for investing activities was

year-over-year increase in proceeds received from the sale or disposal of

assets primarily related to Integrys Energy Services strategy change For

more information on these dispositions see Note Dispositions
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2009 Compared with 2008

Net cash used for investing activities was $440.7 million during 2009

compared with $452.2 million during 2008 The $11.5 million year-over-

year decrease in net cash used for investing activities was primarily driven

by the $88.6 million decrease in cash used to fund capital expenditures

discussed below and the payment of $17.4 million in 2008 related to

WPSs funding of the construction of the transmission facilities required

to support Weston
partially

offset by the 2008 reimbursement of

$99.7 million from ATC related to WPSs construction of the transmission

facilities required to support Weston

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures by business segment for the years ended

December 31 were as follows

Reportable Segment Millions 2010 2009 2008

Electric utility 87.2 $250.4 $207.4

Natural gas utility

Integrys Energy Services

Holding company and other 22.8 34.5 20.0

Integrys Energy Group consolidated $258.8 $444.2 $532.8

The decrease in capital expenditures at the electric
utility segment in

2010 compared with 2009 was primarily due to decreased expenditures

related to the Crane Creek Wind Farm project which was placed in

service for accounting purposes in December 2009 The decrease in

capital expenditures at the holding company
and other segment was

mainly due to lower expenditures in 2010 related to software projects

The increase in capital expenditures at the electric utility segment in

2009 compared with 2008 was primarily due to the Crane Creek Wind

Farm project partially offset by the year-over-year decrease in capital

expenditures associated with Weston The decrease in
capital

expenditures at the natural gas utility segment in 2009 compared with

2008 was primarily due to decrease in costs related to the construction of

natural gas laterals that connected WPSs natural gas distribution system

to the Guardian
II

natural gas pipeline which was completed in February

2009 The decrease in capital expenditures at Integrys Energy Services

in 2009 compared with 2008 was primarily driven by fewer expenditures

related to renewable energy projects in 2009 compared with 2008

Financing Cash Flows

2010 Compared with 2009

Net cash used for financing activities was $391.4 million during 2010

compared with $1378.4 million during 2009 The $987.0 million year

over-year decrease in net cash used for financing activities was primarily

driven by

$761.5 million year-over-year decrease in the net repayment of

short-term borrowings

$298.6 million decrease due to net natural
gas

loan proceeds at

lntegrys Energy Services of $15.4 million during 2010 compared with

the net repayment of $283.2 million of natural gas loans during 2009

Partially offsetting these changes were $157.8 million of payments

made during 2010 to buyers of the wholesale natural gas and electric

businesses and payments for settlement of out-of-the-money

transactions that were executed at the time of sale compared with

$33.9 million of proceeds received upon the sale of substantially all of

the wholesale natural gas business during 2009 The out-of-the-money

transactions were replacement supply trades for the retained retail

operations and were transacted at the original transfer price between

Integrys Energy Services wholesale and retail businesses Payments

made to the buyers to settle the replacement supply contracts were

funded with proceeds received from the settlement of the related retail

electric and retail natural
gas sales contracts

2009 Compared with 2008

Significant Financing Activities

The quarterly common stock dividend per share in 2010 remained the

same as in 2009 In February 2009 Integrys Energy Group increased its

quarterly common stock dividend to 68 cents per share

Beginning February 112010 lntegrys Energy Group issued new shares

of common stock to meet the requirements of its Stock Investment Plan

Dividend Reinvestment Plan and certain stock-based employee benefit

and compensation plans From January 12010 to February 10 2010

and during 2009 Integrys Energy Group purchased shares of its common

stock on the open market to meet the requirements of these plans

Integrys Energy Group had no outstanding commercial paper borrowings

at December 31 2010 and $212.1 million at December 312009 Integrys

Energy Group had short-term notes payable outstanding of $10.0 million at

December31 2010 and 2009 Integrys Energy Group had no borrowings

under revolving credit facilities at December31 2010 and 2009 See

Note 11 Short-Term Debt and Lines of Credit for more information

For information on the issuance and redemption of long-term debt at

Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries see Note 12 Long-Term Debt

Credit Ratings

Integrys Energy Group uses internally generated funds commercial paper

borrowings and other short-term borrowings to satisfy most of its capital

requirements Integrys Energy Group also periodically issues long-term

debt and common stock to reduce short-term debt maintain desired

capitalization ratios and fund future growth

Integrys Energy Group WPS and PGL have their own commercial paper

borrowing programs

WPS periodically issues long-term debt and receives equity contributions

from Integrys Energy Group to reduce short-term debt fund future

growth and maintain capitalization ratios as authorized by the PSCW

PGL and NSG periodically issue long-term debt in order to reduce short-

term debt refinance maturing securities maintain desired capitalization

ratios and fund future growth The specific forms of long-term financing

amounts and timing depend on business needs market conditions and

other factors

Net cash used for financing activities was $1378.4 million during 2009

compared with net cash provided by financing activities of $911.3 million

during 2008 The $2289.7 million year-over-year increase in net cash

used for financing activities was primarily driven by $973.6 million of net

repayments of short-term debt and notes payable in 2009 compared

with $725.4 million of net short-term and notes payable borrowings in

2008 The repayments in 2009 were made possible by the increase in net

cash provided by operating activities Also as result of the previously

announced strategy change at Integrys Energy Services fewer structured

natural gas loan agreements were entered into in 2009 compared with

2008 resulting in $368.4 million year-over-year decrease in proceeds

from the sale of borrowed natural gas Additionally Integrys Energy
133.6 136.9 237.3 Services had $188.0 million year-over-year increase in the purchase of

15.2 22.4 68.1 natural gas to repay structured natural gas loan agreements many of

which were entered into in 2008
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The current credit ratings for Integrys Energy Group WPS PGL and NSG

are listed in the table below

wPS
Issuer credit rating

First mortgage bonds

Senior secured debt

Preferred stock

Commercial paper

Credit facility

BBB N/A

BBB Baal

A-2 P-2

N/A Baal

BBB- Baa2

A- A2

N/A Aa3

Aa3

BBB Baal

A-2 P-i

N/A A2

Credit ratings are not recommendations to buy or sell securities and are

subject to change and each rating should be evaluated independently of

any other rating

On January 21 2011 Standard Poor revised the outlook for Integrys

Energy Group PGL and NSG to positive from stable According

to Standard Poors the revised outlook reflects their view that there

is at least one-in-three probability that Integrys Energy Group will

improve its business risk profile over the intermediate term and maintain

its improved financial measures despite its increased capital spending

WPSs outlook remains stable

On May 27 2010 Moody revised the outlook for Integrys Energy Group

and all of its subsidiaries to stable from negative According to

Moodys the revised outlook reflected reduced business risk profile

driven by the recently completed restructuring of Integrys Energy

Services into smaller segment with significantly reduced collateral

requirements Moodys also raised the following ratings of Integrys

Energy Group subsidiaries

PG

Issuer credit rating BBB
Senior secured debt

Commercial paper

NSG

Issuer credit rating BBB

Senior secured debt

The senior secured debt rating and first mortgage bonds rating of

WPS were raised from Al to Aa3

The senior secured debt ratings of PGL and NSG were raised from

A2 to Al

According to Moodys the upgrade follows the August 2009 upgrade

of the senior secured ratings of the majority of its investment grade

regulated utilities issuers with negative outlooks were excluded from the

August 2009 upgrade

Future Capital Requirements and Resources

Contractual Obligations

The following table shows the contractual obligations of Integrys Energy Group including its subsidiaries as of December31 2010

Payments Due By Period

Total Amounts 2016 and

Millions
Committed 2011 2012 to 2013 2014 to 2015 Thereafter

Longterm debt principal and interest payments $3634.9 595.2 770.2 $381.4 $1888.1

Operating lease obligations
56.4 9.8 17.7 7.8 21.1

Commodity purchase obligations21 2828.8 743.5 947.4 430.3 707.6

Purchase orders 233.1 230.3 2.8

Pension and other postretirement 627.3 132.1 214.0 120.0 161.2

funding obligations

Uncertain tax positions
15 3.3 3.3

$1714.2 $1952.1 $939.5 $2778.0

Represents
bonds issued notes issued and loans made to lntegiys Energy Group and its subsidiaries lntegtys Energy Group records all principal obligations on the balance sheet For purposes

of

this table it is
assumed that the current interest rates on variable rate debt will remain in effect until the debt matures

Energy supply contracts at lntegrys Energy Services included as part of commodity purchase obligations are generally
entered into to meet obligations

to deliver energy to customers The utility

subsidiaries expect
to recover the costs of their contracts in future customer rates

Includes obligations
related to normal business operations and large construction obligations

Gbligations for pension and other postretirement
benefit plans other than the lntegrys Energy Group Retirement Plan cannot reasonably

be estimated beyond 20t3

The obligation for the liability of $27.t million related to uncertain tax positions
that extend beyond 20t tis not reflected in the table as the amount and timing of the payments are uncertain

See Note t4 Income Taxes for more information on uncertain tax positions

Credit Ratings Standard Poors Moodys

Integrys Energy Group

Issuer credit rating

Senior unsecured debt

Commercial paper

Credit facility

Junior subordinated notes

A-2

A3

Al

P-2

Total contractual cash obligations $7383.8

The table above does not reflect any payments related to the manufactured

gas plant remediation liability of $642.5 million at December31 2010

as the amount and timing of payments are uncertain Integrys Energy

Group anticipates incurring costs annually to remediate these sites but

management believes that any costs incurred for environmental activities

relating to former manufactured gas plant operations that are not

recoverable through contributions from other entities or from insurance

carriers have been prudently incurred and are therefore recoverable

through rates for WPS MGU PGL and NSG See Note 15 Commitments

and Contingencies for more information about environmental liabilities
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Capital Requirements

wPS

Environmental projects

Electric and natural gas distribution projects

Electric and natural gas delivery and Customer service projects

Other projects

uPPCO

Repairs and safety measures at hydroelectric facilities

Other projects

MGU

Natural gas pipe distribution system underground natural gas storage facilities and other projects

MERC

Natural gas pipe distribution system and other projects

PG

Natural gas pipe distribution system underground natural gas storage facilities and other projects

NSG

Natural gas pipe distribution system and other projects

Integrys Energy Services

Solar and other projects

BS

Corporate services infrastructure projects

Total capital expenditures

316.8

123.5

32.8

123.9

10.3

36.1

32.9

51.3

610.9

48.6

162.0

66.6

$1615.7

lntegrys Energy Group expects to provide additional capital contributions

to ATC not included in the above table of approximately $10 million in

2011 $10 million in 2012 and $5 million in 2013

All projected capital and investment expenditures are subject to periodic

review and may vary significantly
from the estimates depending on

number of factors including but not limited to industry restructuring

regulatory constraints and requirements changes in tax laws and

regulations acquisition and development opportunities market
volatility

and economic trends

Capital Resources

Management exercises discretion regarding the liquidity and capital

resource needs of its business segments This includes the ability

to prioritize
the use of capital and debt capacity to determine cash

management policies to utilize risk management policies to hedge the

impact of volatile commodity prices and to make decisions regarding

capital requirements lntegrys Energy Group plans to meet its capital

requirements for the period 2011 through 2013 primarily through

internally generated funds net of forecasted dividend payments and

debt and equity financings During 2011 approximately $900 million

of Integrys Energy Groups revolving credit facilities will mature It

is the intent of management to renew substantial portion of the

maturing credit facilities before the end of the second quarter of 2011

Integrys Energy Group plans to maintain current debt to equity ratios at

appropriate levels to support current credit ratings and corporate growth

Management believes Integrys Energy Group has adequate financial

flexibility and resources to meet its future needs

Under an existing shelf registration statement Integrys Energy Group

may issue debt equity certain types of hybrid securities and other

financial instruments Specific terms and conditions of securities issued

will be determined prior to the actual issuance of any specific security

Under an existing shelf registration statement WPS may issue up to

$250.0 million of senior debt securities with amounts prices and terms

to be determined at the time of future offerings In December 2008

WPS issued $125.0 million of 6.375% 7-year Senior Notes under this shelf

registration statement

At December 31 2010 ntegrys Energy Group and each of its subsidiaries

were in compliance with all respective covenants related to outstanding

short-term and long-term debt and expect to be in compliance with all

such debt covenants for the foreseeable future

See Note 11 Short-Term Debt and Lines of Credit for more

information on Integrys Energy Groups credit facilities and other short-

term credit agreements including short-term debt covenants See

Note 12 Long-Term Debt for more information on Integrys Energy

Group long-term debt and related covenants

As of December31 2010 capital expenditures by company for the three-year period 2011 through 2013 were anticipated to be as follows

Millions

11 Includes approximately $300 million of incremental
expenditures related to the accelerated replacement of cast iron mains at PGL in 2011 2012 and 2013 On

January 21 2010 the ICC approved
rider mechanism to allow PGL to recover these incremental costs See Note 24 Regulatory Environment for more information

Includes approximately $90 million of
equity capital expected to be contributed through 2012 to INDU Solar Holdings LLC which was created in October 2010 through wholly owned subsidiaries of

both lntegrys Energy Services and Duke
Energy Generation Services to build and finance distributed solar projects throughout the United States
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Other Future Considerations

Decoupling

In certain jurisdictions decoupling mechanisms have been implemented

which allow utilities to adjust rates going forward to recover or refund

all or portion of the differences between the actual and authorized

margin per customer impact of variations in volumes The mechanisms

do not adjust for changes in volume resulting from changes in customer

count Decoupling for residential and small commercial and industrial

sales was approved by the ICC on four-year trial basis for PGL

and NSG effective March 12008 Interveners including the Illinois

Attorney General oppose decoupling and have appealed the ICOs

approval PGL and NSG actively support the ICCs decision to approve

decoupling Included in their February 15 2011 rate case filing PGL

and NSG requested that decoupling be approved on permanent

basis The PSCW approved the implementation of decouphng on

four-year trial basis effective January 2009 for WPSs natural gas

and electric residential and small commercial sales This decoupling

mechanism includes an annual $14.0 million cap for electric service

and an annual $8.0 million cap for natural gas service Decoupling for

UPPCO was approved for all customer groups by the MPSC effective

January 12010 The MPSC granted an order effective January 2010

approving decoupling mechanism for MGU as pilot program which

adjusts for the impact on revenues of changes in weather-normalized use

per customer for residential and small commercial customers but does

not adjust for weather-related usage In Minnesota MERC proposed

decoupling mechanism in its November 30 2010 general rate case

filing See Note 24 Regulatory Environment for more information

Impairment Testing

lntegrys Energy Group performs its required annual goodwill impairment

tests each
April

Interim impairment tests are performed between required

annual testing dates when impairment indicators are present Any annual or

interim goodwill impairment test could result in the recognition of goodwill

impairment loss See Note Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets for

more information on goodwill balances for Integrys Energy Group reporting

units at December 31 2010 See Critical Accounting Policies Goodwill

Impairment for more information on the 2010 annual goodwill

impairment test

Integrys Energy Group also performs regular asset impairment tests

related to other long-lived assets including the portfolio of merchant

power plants owned and operated by Integrys Energy Services See

Note Property Plant and Equipment for more information on

lntegrys Energy Group impairment losses recorded during 2010

Climate Change

The United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA began

regulating greenhouse gas emissions under the Clean Air Act CAA in

January 2011 by applying the Best Available Control Technology BACT

requirements associated with the New Source Review program to new

and modified larger greenhouse gas emitters Technology to remove

and sequester greenhouse gas emissions is not commercially available

at scale hence the EPA issued guidance that defines BACT in terms of

improvements in energy efficiency as opposed to relying on pollution

control equipment In December 2010 the EPA announced its intent

to develop new source performance standards for greenhouse gas

emissions for new and modified as well as existing electric utility steam

generating units The EPA plans to propose standards in 2011 and

finalize standards in 2012 Efforts have been initiated to develop state

and regional greenhouse gas programs to create federal legislation to

limit carbon dioxide emissions and to create national or state renewable

portfolio standards Currently there is no applicable federal or state

legislation pending that specifically addresses greenhouse gas emissions

risk exists that such legislation or regulation will increase the cost

of energy However Integrys Energy Group believes the capital

expenditures being made at its generation units are appropriate

under any
reasonable mandatory greenhouse gas program and that

future expenditures related to control of greenhouse gas emissions

or renewable portfolio standards by its regulated electric utilities

will be recoverable in rates lntegrys Energy Group will continue to

monitor and manage potential risks and opportunities associated

with future greenhouse gas legislative or regulatory actions

The majority of Integrys Energy Group generation and

distribution facilities are located in the upper Midwest region

of the United States The same is true for the majority of its

customers facilities The physical risks posed by climate change

for these areas are not expected to be significant at this time

Ongoing evaluations will be conducted as more information

on the extent of such physical changes becomes available

Property Tax Assessment on Natural Gas

Integrys Energy Group natural gas retailers including its five natural

gas utilities purchase storage services from pipeline companies on the

pipelines interstate natural gas storage and transmission systems Once

shippet such as the subsidiaries of Integrys Energy Group delivers

natural gas to the pipelines system that specific natural gas cannot be

physically traced back to the shipper and the physical location of that

specific natural gas is not ascertainable Some states tax natural gas as

personal property and have recently sought to assess personal property

tax obligations against natural gas quantities held as working natural

gas in facilities located in their states Because the pipeline does not

have title to the working natural gas inventory in these facilities the state

imposes the tax on the shippers as of the assessment date based on

allocated quantities Shippers that are being assessed tax are actively

protesting these property tax assessments PGL and MERC are currently

pursuing protests through litigation in Texas and Kansas respectively

Federal Health Care Reform

In March 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the

Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 HCR were signed

into law HCR contains various provisions that will affect the cost of

providing health care coverage to active and retired employees of Integrys

Energy Group and their dependents Although these provisions become

effective at various times over the next 10 years some provisions that

affectthe cost of providing benefits to retirees were reflected in 2010

Most notably there is provision of HCR that beginning in 2013

eliminates the tax deduction for employer-paid postretirement

prescription drug charges to the extent those charges will be offset by

the receipt of federal Medicare Part subsidy As result lntegrys

Energy Group was required to eliminate portion of its deferred tax

asset related to postretirement benefits The total amount of the

deferred tax asset that was reduced for the loss of the deduction was

$11.8 million of which $10.8 million flowed through to net income as

component of income tax expense and $1.0 million was deferred

for regulatory recovery at UPPCO Integrys Energy Group is seeking

recovery in rates for the income impacts of this tax law change related

to regulated utility operations in the majority of its jurisdictions If

recovery in rates becomes probable income tax expense would be

reduced in that period but at this time lntegrys Energy Group is not

able to predict how much will ultimately be recovered in rates

Other provisions of HCR include the elimination of certain annual and

lifetime maximum benefits broadening of plan eligibility requirements

28 INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP INC 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



Managements Discussion and Analysis

elimination of pre-existing condition restrictions an excise tax on

high-cost health plans changes to the Medicare Part prescription

drug program and numerous other changes Integrys Energy Group

began participation in the Early Retiree Reinsurance Program that

became effective on June 12010 Integrys Energy Group continues

to assess the extent to which the provisions of the new law will affect

its future health care and related employee benefit plan costs

Wisconsin Fuel Rules

Assembly Bill AB 600 was signed into law on May 18 2010 AB 600

streamlines the current fuel rule administered by the PSCW The current

rule results in regulatory lag and hampers the ability of the PSCWto

respond to rapid changes in fuel costs AB 600 provides that the
utility

will defer any change in approved fuel costs in excess of percentage

set by the PSCW The new rules will apply to WPS 2011 fuel costs

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act Dodd-Frank Act

The Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law in July 2010 Although few

provisions were effective with the passing of the act the majority of the

rules to implement the provisions will be finalized and become effective

over the 18 months following the signing of the act Depending on the

final rules certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act relating to derivatives

could increase capital and/or collateral requirements Final rules for these

provisions are expected in the second quarter of 2011 Integrys Energy

Group is monitoring developments related to this act and their impacts

on its future results of operations cash flows and financial position

Recent Tax Law Changes

In January 2011 the Taxpayer Accountability and Budget Stabilization

Act was enacted in Illinois This act increases the corporate combined

income tax rate from 7.3% to 9.5% retroactively to January 2011

Rates decrease to 7.75% after 2014 and return to 7.3% after 2024

Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries will have to adjust deferred

taxes to reflect the changes in the tax rate effective in the first quarter

of 2011 Due to the effects of regulation and the timing of the

February 2011 rate filings
for PGL and NSG lntegrys Energy Group

does not anticipate material impact on income from this legislation

In December 2010 President Obama signed into lawThe Tax Relief

Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization and Job Creation Act of 201

This act includes tax incentives such as an extension and increase of

bonus depreciation the extension of the research and experimentation

credit and the extension of treasury grants in lieu of claiming the

investment tax credit for certain renewable energy investments In

September 2010 President Obama signed into law the Small Business

Jobs Act of 2010 This act includes tax incentives such as an extension

to bonus depreciation and changes to listed property
that affect Integrys

Energy Group Integrys Energy Group anticipates that these tax law

changes will likely result in $140.0 million to $240.0 million of reduced

cash payments for taxes during 2011 and 2012 These incentives may

also have the effect of reducing utility rate base and thus future earnings

relative to prior expectations Integrys Energy Group is evaluating the

most appropriate manner to deploy the additional cash which may

include among other things making incremental contributions to its

various employee benefit plans or funding additional capital investments

Illinois Manufactured Gas Plant Legislation

Senate Bill SB 3388 would require PGL and NSG either to enter into

30-year purchase contracts for manufactured gas produced from an

Illinois coal and petroleum coke plant to be built on the south side of

Chicago or to elect to file biennial rate proceedings before the ICC in

2011 2013 and 2015 The stated mission of this coal to gas project is to

use Illinois coal and petroleum coke to mass produce manufactured gas

and sell its entire offput to the four largest Illinois natural gas utilities in

equal amounts Under certain assumptions the Illinois Power Authority

may allocate the offput based on therms sold by these utilities but

no utility would be required to take more than 42% of the total plant

offput SB 1927 is similar legislation for manufactured gas project to

be located in Jefferson County Illinois It would require PGL and NSG

either to enter into 10-year purchase contracts with the offput of the

project allocated among the four largest Illinois natural gas utilities based

on therms sold or agree to biennial rate filings
for 2011 2013 and 2015

Both bills were passed by the General Assembly and were sent to the

Governor for signature in January 2011 The Governor has 60 days to act

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

See Note 16 Guarantees for information regarding guarantees

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Integrys Energy Group has determined that the following accounting

policies are critical to the understanding of its financial statements

because their application requires significant judgment and reliance

on estimations of matters that are inherently uncertain lntegrys

Energy Groups management has discussed these critical accounting

policies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Risk Management Activities

Integrys Energy Group has entered into contracts that are accounted

for as derivatives All derivative contracts are recorded at fair value on

the Consolidated Balance Sheets unless they qualify for the normal

purchases and sales exception which provides that recognition

of gains and losses in the consolidated financial statements is not

required until the settlement of the contracts Changes in fair value

except effective portions of derivative instruments designated as

hedges or qualifying for regulatory deferral generally affect net

income loss attributed to common shareholders at each financial

reporting date until the contracts are ultimately settled

At December31 2010 those derivatives not designated as hedges were

primarily commodity contracts used to manage price risk associated

with natural gas
and

electricity purchase and sale activities Cash flow

hedge accounting treatment may be used when Integrys Energy Group

enters into contracts to buy or sell commodity at fixed price for future

delivery to protect
future cash flows corresponding with anticipated

physical sales or purchases In addition lntegrys Energy Group uses

cash flow hedge accounting to protect against changes in interest rates

Fair value hedge accounting may be used when Integrys Energy Group

holds assets liabilities or firm commitments and enters into transactions

that hedge the risk of changes in commodity prices or interest rates

To the extent that the hedging instrument is fully
effective in offsetting

the transaction being hedged there is no impact on net income loss

attributed to common shareholders prior to settlement of the hedge

Integrys Energy Group has based its valuations on observable inputs

whenever possible Howeveç at times the valuation of certain derivative

instruments requires the use of internally developed valuation techniques

and/or significant unobservable inputs These valuations require

significant amount of management judgment and are classified as

Level measurements Of the total risk management assets on Integrys

Energy Groups Consolidated Balance Sheets $58.8 million 18.0%

were classified as Level measurements Of the total risk management

liabilities $38.1 million 9.8% were classified as Level measurements

Integrys Energy Group believes these valuations represent the fair

INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP INC 2010 ANNUAL REPORT 29



Managements Discussion and Analysis

values of these instruments as of the reporting date howeveç the

actual amounts realized upon settlement of these instruments could

vary materially from the reported amounts due to movements in

market prices and changes in the liquidity of certain markets

As component of fair value determinations Integrys Energy

Group considers
counterparty credit risk including its own credit

risk and
liquidity

risk The liquidity component of the fair value

determination may be especially subjective when limited liquid

market information is available Changes in the underlying

assumptions for the credit and
liquidity risk components of fair value

at December 31 2010 would have had the following effects

Effect on Fair Value of Net Risk

Management Liabilities

at December 31 2010

Change in Risk Components Millions

100% increase

50% decrease

$6.0 decrease

$3.0 increase

These hypothetical changes in fair value would be included in current and

long-term assets and liabilities from risk management activities on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets and as part of nonregulated revenues on

the Consolidated Statements of Income unless the related contracts are

designated as cash flow hedges in which case potential changes would

be included in Other Comprehensive Income Cash Flow Hedges on the

Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders Equity to the extent

they are considered effective for offsefting future cash flows of the related

hedged transactions

Goodwill Impairment

Integrys Energy Group reviews goodwill for impairment as required

by United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GAAP
Goodwill is tested for impairment using two-step process that begins

with an estimation of the fair value of reporting unit reporting

unit can be an operating segment or one level below an operating

segment as defined by the Segment Reporting Topic of the Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification

ASC At Integrys Energy Group goodwill has been assigned to each

of the five reporting units that comprise the natural
gas utility segment

and also to the Integrys Energy Services segment The carrying value of

goodwill by reporting unit and reportable segment for the year ended

December 31 2010 was

Carrying Value

Millions of Goodwill

wPS

PGL

NSG

MERC

36.4

401.2

36.1

127.7

MGU 34.5

Total Natural Gas Utility Segment $635.9

Integrys Energy Services 6.6

Balance at December 31 2010 $642.5

The goodwill for each of the reporting units is tested for impairment

annually on April or more frequently when events or circumstances

warrant The fair market value of each reporting unit is estimated using

certain key assumptions that require significant judgment This judgment
includes developing cash flow projections including the selection

of appropriate returns on equity long-term growth rates and capital

expenditure levels selecting appropriate discount rates and identifying

relevant market comparables

2010 Impairment Test

Integrys Energy Group completed its annual goodwill impairment tests

for all of its reporting units that
carry goodwill balance as of

April 12010
The estimated fair value forthe PGL NSG MERC and MGU reporting

units was determined by using an equal weighting of the income

approach and the market approach methodologies

The income approach was based on discounted cash flows which

were derived from internal forecasts and economic expectations Key

assumptions used to determine fair value under the income approach

included the cash flow period terminal values based on terminal growth

rate and the discount rate The discount rate represents the estimated

cost of debt and equity financing weighted by the percentage of debt

and equity in companys target capital structure The discount rates

used in the income approach for PGL NSG MERC and MGU ranged
from 6.75% to 7.0% The discount rate used for Integrys Energy Services

was 10.2% The terminal growth rates used in the income approach

ranged from 2% to 3%

The market approach for PGL NSG MERC and MGU utilized the

guideline company method which calculates valuation multiples based

on operating and valuation metrics from publicly traded guideline

companies in the regulated natural gas distribution industry Multiples

derived from the guideline companies provided an indication of how

much knowledgeable investor in the marketplace would be willing to

pay for an investment in similarcompany These multiples were then

applied to the appropriate operating metric for PGL NSG MERC and

MGU to determine indications of fair value

No impairment was recorded in 2010 as result of these tests However
the fair value calculated in the first step of the test for MGU approximated
the carrying value of this reporting unit Therefore any deterioration

of the market-related factors used in the impairment analysis could

potentially result in future impairment loss for all or portion of the

$34.5 million of goodwill recorded at MGU

The fair value of the WPS natural
gas utility reporting unit currently

exceeds the carrying amount by significant amount such that Integrys

Energy Group believes WPS is unlikely to fail step one of the goodwill

impairment test in the foreseeable future

Receivables

The regulated natural gas and electric utilities and Integrys Energy Services

accrue estimated amounts of revenues for services rendered but not yet

billed Estimated unbilled revenues are calculated using variety
of factors

based on customer class or contracted rates At December31 2010 and

2009 Integrys Energy Groups unbilled revenues were $339.1 million and

$337.0 million respectively Any difference between actual revenues and

the estimates are recorded in revenue in the next period Differences

historically have not been significant

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The costs of providing non-contributory defined benefit pension benefits

and other postretirement benefits described in Note 17 Employee
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Benefit PIan are dependent upon numerous factors resulting from

actual plan experience and assumptions regarding future experience

Pension and other postretirement benefit costs are impacted by

actual employee demographics including age compensation levels

and employment periods the level of contributions made to the

plans and earnings on plan assets Pension and other postretirement

benefit costs may be significantly affected by changes in key actuarial

assumptions including anticipated rates of return on plan assets

discount rates and expected health care cost trends Changes made

to the plan provisions may also impact current and future pension and

other postretirement benefit costs

Integrys Energy Groups pension and other postretirement benefit plan

assets are primarily made
up

of equity and fixed income investments

Fluctuations in actual equity and fixed income market returns as well as

changes in general interest rates may result in increased or decreased

benefit costs in future periods Management believes that such changes

in costs would be recovered at the regulated segments through the

ratemaking process

The following table shows how given change in certain actuarial

assumptions would impact the projected benefit obligation and the

reported net periodic pension cost Each factor below reflects an

evaluation of the change based on change in that assumption only

Discount rate 0.5

Discount rate 0.5

Rate of return on plan assets 0.5

Rate of return on plan assets 0.5

The following table shows how given change in certain actuarial assumptions would impact the accumulated other postretirement benefit

obligation and the reported net periodic other postretirement benefit cost Each factor below reflects an evaluation of the change based on

change in that assumption only

Discount rate 0.5

Discount rate 0.5

Health care cost trend rate 1.0

Health care cost trend rate 1.0

Rate of return on plan assets 0.5

Rate of return on plan assets 0.5

The discount rates are selected based on hypothetical bond portfolios

consisting of non-callable or callable with make-whole provisions non-

collateralized high-quality corporate bonds with maturities between and

30 years The bonds are generally rated Aa with minimum amount

outstanding of $50 million From the hypothetical bond portfolios single

rate is determined that equates the market value of the bonds purchased

to the discounted value of the plans expected future benefit payments

Integrys Energy Group establishes its expected return on asset

assumption based on consideration of historical and projected asset class

returns as well as the target allocations of the benefit trust portfolios

The assumed long-term rate of return was 8.5% in 2010 2009 and 2008

For 2010 2009 and 2008 the actual rates of return on pension plan

assets net of fees were 13.0% 22.0% and 25.9% respectively

The determination of expected return on qualified plan assets is based

on market-related valuation of assets which reduces year-to-year

volatility Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater

of the pension or other postretirement benefit obligation or market-

related value are amortized over the average remaining future service

to expected retirement ages Changes in fair value are recognized over

the subsequent five years for plans sponsored by WPS while differences

between actual investment returns and the expected return on plan

assets are recognized over five-year period for pension plans sponsored

by lBS and Peoples Energy Corporation PEC Because of this method

the future value of assets will be impacted as previously deferred gains or

losses are included in market-related value

In selecting assumed health care cost trend rates past performance

and forecasts of health care costs are considered For more information

on health care cost trend rates and table showing future payments

that lntegrys Energy Group expects to make for pension and other

postretirement benefits see Note 17 Employee Benefit Plans

Percentage- Impact on
Actuarial Assumption Point Change in Projected Benefit Impact on 2010

Millions except percentages Assumption Obligation Pension Cost

$86.1

79.1

N/A

N/A

7.1

5.4

5.4

Percentage- Impact on Impact on 2010
Actuarial Assumption Point Change in Postretirement Postretirement

Millions except percentages Assumption Benefit Obligation Benefit Cost

$34.0

30.9

56.6

68.2

N/A

N/A

$2.4

2.0

8.1

9.1

1.1

1.1
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Regulatory Accounting

The electric and natural gas utility segments of Integrys Energy

Group follow the guidance under the Regulated Operations Topic

of the FASB ASC and the financial statements reflect the effects

of the ratemaking principles followed by the various jurisdictions

regulating these segments Certain items that would otherwise be

immediately recognized as revenues and expenses are deferred as

regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities for future recovery or refund

to customers as authorized by Integrys Energy Groups regulators

Future recovery of regulatory assets is not assured and is generally

subject to review by regulators in rate proceedings for matters such

as prudence and reasonableness Management regularly assesses

whether these regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future

recovery or refund by considering factors such as changes in the

regulatory environment earnings at the electric and natural gas utility

segments and the status of any pending or potential deregulation

legislation Once approved the regulatory assets and liabilities are

amortized into income over the rate recovery period If recovery or

refund of costs is not approved or is no longer deemed probable these

regulatory assets or liabilities are recognized in current period income

The application of the Regulated Operations Topic of the FASB ASC

would be discontinued if all or separable portion of Integrys Energy

Groups electric and natural gas utility segments operations would

no longer meet the criteria for application Assets and liabilities

recognized solely due to the actions of rate regulation would no

longer be recognized on the balance sheet but rather classified as an

extraordinary item in income for the period in which the discontinuation

occurred write-off of all of Integrys Energy Groups regulatory

assets and regulatory liabilities at December 31 2010 would result in

16.4% decrease in total assets and 5.7% decrease in total liabilities

The two largest regulatory assets at December 31 2010 related to

environmental remediation costs and unrecognized pension and other

postretirement benefit costs write-off of the regulatory asset related

to environmental remediation costs at December 31 2010 would result

in 6.7% decrease in total assets write-off of the unrecognized

pension and other postretirement benefit related regulatory asset at

December 31 2010 would result in 5.5% decrease in total assets

See Note Regulatory Assets and Liabilities for more information

Tax Provision

Integrys Energy Group is required to estimate income taxes for each of

the jurisdictions in which it operates as part of the process of preparing

Integrys Energy Groups consolidated financial statements This process

involves estimating actual current tax liabilities together with assessing

temporary differences resulting from
differing treatment of items such

as depreciation for tax and accounting purposes
These differences

result in deferred tax assets and liabilities which are included within

Integrys Energy Groups Consolidated Balance Sheets Integrys Energy

Group must also assess the likelihood that its deferred tax assets will

be recovered through future taxable income To the extent lntegrys

Energy Group believes that recovery is not likely it must establish

valuation allowance which is offset by an adjustment to the provision

for income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Uncertainty associated with the application of tax statutes and

regulations and the outcomes of tax audits and appeals requires

that judgments and estimates be made in the accrual process and

in the calculation of effective tax rates Only income tax benefits

that meet the more likely
than not recognition threshold may be

recognized or continue to be recognized Changes in the unrecognized

tax benefits are estimated based on an evaluation of the degree

of uncertainty the nature of an event that could cause change

and an estimate of the range of reasonably possible changes

Significant management judgment is required in determining Integrys

Energy Groups provision for income taxes deferred tax assets and

liabilities the liability
for unrecognized tax benefits and any valuation

allowance recorded against deferred tax assets The assumptions

involved are supported by historical data reasonable projections

and technical interpretations of applicable tax laws and regulations

across multiple taxing jurisdictions Significant changes in these

assumptions could have material impact on Integrys Energy Groups

financial condition and results of operations See Note 1p Summary

of Significant Accounting Policies Income Taxes and Note 14

Income Taxes for discussion of accounting for income taxes

IMPACT OF INFLATION

Integrys Energy Groups financial statements are prepared in accordance

with GAAP The statements provide reasonable objective and

quantifiable statement of financial results but generally do not evaluate the

impact of inflation For Integrys Energy Groups regulated operations to

the extent it is not recovering the effects of inflation it will file rate cases as

necessary in the various jurisdictions in which it operates Integrys Energy

Groups nonregulated businesses include inflation in forecasted costs
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Year Ended December 31 Millions except per share data 2010 2009 2008

Utility revenues $3368.5 $3495.8 4309.9

Nonregulated revenues 1834.7 4004.0 9737.9

Total revenues 5203.2 7499.8 14047.8

Utility cost of fuel natural gas and purchased power 1685.5 1919.8 2744.1

Nonregulated cost of fuel natural gas and purchased power 1619.8 3701.3 9654.3

Operating and maintenance expense 1045.6 1098.4 1080.7

Impairment losses on property plant and equipment 43.2 0.7 0.5

Net loss on Integrys Energy Services
dispositions

related to strategy change 14.1 28.9

Restructuring expense 7.9 43.5

Goodwill impairment loss
291.1 6.5

Depreciation and amortization expense 265.8 230.6 221.4

Taxes other than income taxes 93.2 96.3 93.6

Operating income 428.1 89.2 246.7

Miscellaneous income 91.5 89.0 87.3

Interest expense 147.9 164.8 158.1

Other expense 56.4 75.8 70.8

Income before taxes 371.7 13.4 175.9

Provision for income taxes 148.2 83.7 61.1

Net income loss from continuing operations 223.5 70.3 114.8

Discontinued operations net of tax 0.2 2.8 4.7

Net income loss 223.7 67.5 119.5

Preferred stock dividends of
subsidiary 3.1 3.1 3.1

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries 0.3 1.0 0.1

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders 220.9 69.6 16.5

Average shares of common stock

Basic 77.5 76.8 76.7

Diluted 78.0 76.8 77.0

Earnings loss per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations $2.85 $10.95 $1.46

Discontinued operations net of tax 0.04 0.06

Earnings loss per common share basic $2.85 $10.91 $1.52

Earnings loss per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations $2.83 $0.95 $1.45

Discontinued operations net of tax 0.04 0.06

Earnings loss per common share diluted $2.83 $0.91 $1.51

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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At December 31 Millions
2010 2009

179.0 44.5

33.3 184.9

832.1 958.0

247.9 304.3

236.9 1522.1

117.9 121.1

67.7 92.9

26.5

142.7 93.1

192.9 164.8

2050.4 3512.2

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Collateral on deposit

Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues net of reserves of $41.9 and $57.5 respectively

Inventories

Assets from risk management activities

Regulatory assets

Deferred income taxes

Assets held for sale

Prepaid federal income tax

Other current assets

Current assets

Property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation of $2900.2 and $2846.9 respectively 5013.4 4941.8

Regulatory assets
1495.1 1434.9

Assets from risk management activities
89.4 795.4

Goodwill
642.5 642.5

Other long-term assets
526.0 517.8

Total assets
$9816.8 $11844.6

Liabilities and Equity

Short-term debt
10.0 222.1

Current portion
of long-term debt

476.9 116.5

Accounts payable
453.0 639.4

Liabilities from risk management activities
289.6 1607.1

Accrued taxes
90.2 81.9

Regulatory liabilities
75.7 100.4

Liabilities held for sale
0.3

Other current liabilities

262.4 380.0

Current liabilities
1657.8 3147.7

Long-term debt
2161.6 2394.7

Deferred income taxes 860.5 652.9

Deferred investment tax credits
45.2 46.0

Regulatory liabilities

316.2 277.6

Environmental remediation liabilities

643.9 658.8

Pension and other postretirement benefit obligations
603.4 640.7

Liabilities from risk management activities
99.7 783.1

Asset retirement obligations
320.9 194.8

Other long-term liabilities
150.6 148.1

Long-term liabilities
5202.0 5796.7

Commitments and contingencies

Commonstock $1 par value 200000000 shares authorized 77781685 shares issued 77350079 shares outstanding 77.8 76.4

Additional paid-in capital
2540.4 2497.8

Retained earnings
350.8 337.0

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
44.7 44.0

Shares in deferred compensation trust 18.5 17.2

Total common shareholders equity
2905.8 2850.0

Preferred stock of subsidiary $100 par value 1000000 shares authorized 511882 shares issued 510495 shares outstanding 51.1 51.1

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries
0.1 10.91

Total liabilities and equity
$9816.8 $11844.6

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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ntegrys Energy Group Common Shareholders Equity

Balance at December 31 2007

Net income attributed to common

shareholders

Other comprehensive income loss

Cash flow hedges net of tax of $33.7

Unrecognized pension
and other

postretirement costs net of tax of $8.1

Available-for-sale securities

net of tax of $0.3

Foreign currency translation

net of tax of $3.4

Comprehensive income

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle

Effects of changing pension plan measurement

date pursuant to SFAS No.158

Purchase of deferred compensation shares

Stock based compensation

Dividends on common stock

Net contributions from noncontrolling parties

Other

3.5

2.7

0.1 12.5

203.9

1.1 1.6 0.8

3.5

2.7

12.6

203.9

1.9

$3286.9

0.1 116.4

52.8

12.7

0.5

5.5

44.9

4.5

3.5

2.7

12.6

203.9

0.1 0.1

1.9

Deferred Accumulated Total

Compensation Additional Other Common Preferred

Trust and Common Paid In Retained Comprehensive Shareholders Stock of Noncontrolling Total

Millions Treasury Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income Loss Equity Subsidiary Interest Equity

$15.0 $76.4 $2473.8 $701.9 1.3 $3235.8 $51.1

116.5 116.5

52.8 52.8

12.7 12.7

0.5 0.5

5.5 5.5

45.0

4.5 4.5

Balance at December 31 2008 $16.5 $76.4 $2487.9 $614.7 $72.8 $3089.7 $51.1 $3140.8

Net loss attributed to common shareholders 69.6 69.6 1.0 70.6

Other comprehensive income loss

Cash flow hedges net of tax of $17.0 31.5 31.5 31.5

Unrecognized pension and other

postretirement costs

net of tax of $3.2 6.7 6.7 6.7

Available-for-sale securities

net of tax of $0.1 0.1 0.1 .- Di

Foreign currency translation

net of tax of $2.6 4.1 4.1 4i

Comprehensive loss 40.8 41.8

Purchase of deferred compensation shares 3.1 3.1 3.1

Stock based compensation 0.1 11.3 11.4 11.4

Dividends on common stock 206.9 206.9 206.9

Net contributions from noncontrolling parties 0.1 0.1

Other 2.3 1.4 1.2 0.3 0.3

Balance at December 31 2009 $17.2 $76.4 $2497.8 $337.0 $44.0 $2850.0 $51.1 $0.9 $2900.2

Net income attributed to common

shareholders 220.9 220.9 0.3 220.6

Other comprehensive income loss

Cashflowhedgesnetoftaxof$4.7 4.5 4.5 4.5

Unrecognized pension and other

postretirement costs

net of tax of $2.0 2.8 2.8 2.8

Foreign currency translation

net of tax of $1.5 2.4 2.4 2.4

Comprehensive income 220.2 219.9

Issuance of common stock 1.3 54.5 55.8 55.8

Purchase of deferred compensation shares 1.2 1.2 12
Stock based compensation 4.0 4.0 4.0

Dividends on common stock 208.7 208.7 208.7

Other 0.1 0.1 15.9 1.6 14.3 1.3 13.0

Balance at December 31 2010 $18.5 $77.8 $2540.4 $350.8 $44.7 $2905.8 $51.1 $0.1 $2957.0

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Year Ended December31 Millions 2010 2009 2008

$223.7 67.5 $119.5

0.2 2.8 4.7

291.1 6.5

43.2 0.7 0.5

265.8 230.6 221.4

28.7 40.8 50.7

55.8 104.2 15.8

0.9 44.2 167.3

48.0 54.6 76.8

67.6 72.4 50.7

201.8 53.3 40.8

234.1 58.3 72.3

11.4 24.1 1.7

14.5 16.1 15.1

33.3 37.7 9.9

163.6 45.5 239.2

97.6 864.8 207.7

51.1 444.1 312.0

85.5 39.6 124.6

25.8 604.7 53.2

160.2 2.0 __________
10.8

725.2 1606.3 250.0

Operating Activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by used for operating activities

Discontinued operations net of tax

Goodwill impairment loss

Impairment losses on property plant and equipment

Depreciation and amortization expense

Recoveries and refunds of regulatory assets and liabilities

Net unrealized gains losses on nonregulated energy contracts

Nonregulated lower of cost or market
inventory adjustments

Bad debt expense

Pension and other postretirement expense

Pension and other postretirement contributions

Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits

Loss gain on sale of assets

Equity income net of dividends

Other

Changes in working capital

Collateral on deposit

Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues

Inventories

Other current assets

Accounts payable

Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by used for operating activities

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures 258.8 444.2 532.8

Proceeds from the sale or disposal of assets 66.0 44.6 31.1

Capital contributions to equity method investments 6.9 34.1 37.8

Cash paid for transmission interconnection 17.4

Proceeds received from transmission interconnection 99.7

Other 7.0 5.0

Net cash used for investing activities 199.7 440.7 452.2

Financing Activities

Short-term debt net 212.1 815.7 569.7

Issuance of notes payable 155.7

Redemption of notes payable 157.9

Proceeds from sale of borrowed natural gas
21.9 162.0 530.4

Purchase of natural gas to repay natural gas loans 6.5 445.2 257.2

Issuance of long-term debt 250.0 230.0 181.5

Repayment of long-term debt 117.2 157.8 58.1

Payment of dividends

Preferred stock 3.1 3.11 3.1

Common stock 186.1 206.9 203.9

Issuance of common stock 33.2

Proceeds from derivative contracts related to divestitures classified as financing activities 33.9

Payments made on derivative contracts related to divestitures classified as financing activities 157.8

Other 13.7 17.7 3.7

Net cash used for provided by financing activities 391.4 1378.4 91 1.3

Change in cash and cash equivalents continuing operations 134.1 212.8 209.1

Change in cash and cash equivalents discontinued operations

Net cash provided by investing
activities 0.4 3.2 3.8

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 134.5 209.6 212.9

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 44.5 254.1 41.2

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $179.0 44.5 $254.1

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of OperationsIntegrys Energy Group is holding

company whose primary wholly owned subsidiaries at December31

2010 included Wisconsin Public Service Corporation \NPS Upper

Peninsula Power Company UPPCO Michigan Gas Utilities Corporation

MGU Minnesota Energy Resources Corporation MERC The Peoples

Gas Light and Coke Company PGL North Shore Gas Company NSG
Integrys Business Support LLC IBS and Integrys Energy Services Of

these subsidiaries six are regulated electric and/or natural gas utilities

one IBS is centralized service company and one Integrys Energy

Services is nonregulated retail energy supply and services company

In addition Integrys Energy Group has an approximate 34% interest in

American Transmission Company ATC

The term utility refers to the regulated activities of the electric and

natural gas utility segments while the term nonutility refers to the

activities of the electric and natural gas utility segments that are not

regulated The term nonregulated refers to activities at Integrys

Energy Services the Integrys Energy Group holding company and the

Peoples Energy Corporation PEC holding company

Consolidated Basis of PresentationThe consolidated financial

statements include the accounts of Integrys Energy Group and all

majority owned subsidiaries after eliminating intercompany transactions

and balances The cost method of accounting is used for investments

when Integrys Energy Group does not have significant influence over

the operating and financial policies of the investee Investments in

businesses not controlled by lntegrys Energy Group but over which it

has significant influence regarding the operating and financial policies of

the investee are accounted for using the equity method For additional

information on equity method investments see Note Investments in

Affiliates at Equity Method These consolidated financial statements

also reflect lntegrys Energy Groups proportionate interests in certain

jointly
owned

utility
facilities

Use of EstimatesIntegrys Energy Group prepares its consolidated

financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America Integrys Energy Group makes

estimates and assumptions that affect assets liabilities the disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements

and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period Actual results may differ from these estimates

dChange in Accounting PolicyDuring the fourth quarter of 2010

Integrys Energy Group changed its method of accounting for investment

tax credits ITC from the flow-through method to the deferral method

Under the flow-through method used prior to this change in accounting

lntegrys Energy Group reduced the provision for income taxes by the

amount of the ITC in the year in which the credit was received Under the

deferral method lntegrys Energy Group records the ITCs as deferred

credit and amortizes such credit as reduction to the provision for

income taxes over the life of the asset that generated the ITC

Consistent with its nonregulated operations Integrys Energy Groups

regulated natural gas and electric utilities
historically

used the flow-

through method of accounting for ITCs However after also applying the

Regulated Operations Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC accounting for ITCs for

regulated operations effectively resulted in the deferral of such credits

because the benefit reduces customer rates and the provision for income

taxes over the life of the asset that generated the ITC As result the

change in accounting method in 2010 only impacted financial statement

line items for the nonregulated energy services operations

Although both the flow-through and deferral methods are acceptable

for recording ITCs the guidance in the Income Tax Topic of the FASB

ASC states that the deferral method is the preferred method Integrys

Energy Group also believes the deferral method is preferable in these

circumstances because it results in better matching of the benefit of the

ITC with the cost of the investment over its useful life reflecting more

meaningful information about projects return

The change in accounting policy to adopt the deferral method for lTCs

was completed in accordance with the Accounting Changes and Error

Corrections Topic of the FASB ASC Accordingly the change in accounting

policy has been applied retrospectively by adjusting the financial statement

amounts for the prior periods presented The change in accounting

policy had no impact on Integrys Energy Groups consolidated financial

statements prior to 2008 and therefore there was no cumulative effect

on retained earnings as of January 12008 because no ITCs were

received related to the nonregulated operations prior to 2008
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The following table reflects the impacts of the change in accounting policy on Integrys Energy Groups consolidated financial statements

As of and for the Year Ended December31 2010

As Computed Under As Computed Under

Millions except per share data Flow-Through Method Effect of Change Deferral Method

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Property plant and equipment $5016.4 $3.0 $5013.4

Other current liabilities
262.3 0.1 262.4

Long-term deferred income taxes 865.3 4.8 860.5

Long-term deferred investment tax credits 36.4 8.8 45.2

Other long-term liabilities 150.0 0.6 150.6

Retained earnings
358.5 7.7 350.8

Consolidated Statements of Income

Operating and maintenance expense
$1045.7 $0.1 $1045.6

Depreciation and amortization expense
266.1 0.3 265.8

Provision for income taxes 148.7 0.5 148.2

Net income loss from continuing operations 222.6 0.9 223.5

Net income loss 222.8 0.9 223.7

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders 220.0 0.9 220.9

Earnings loss per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations $2.84 $0.01 $2.85

Earnings loss per common share basic 2.84 0.01 2.85

Earnings loss per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations $2.82 $0.01 $2.83

Earnings loss per common share diluted 2.82 0.01 2.83

As of and for the Year Ended December31 2009

As Originally Retrospectively

Millions except per share data Reported Adjustments Adjusted

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Property plant and equipment $4945.1 $3.3 $4941.8

Other current liabilities 3799 0.1 380.0

Long-term deferred income taxes 658.2 5.3 652.9

Long-term deferred investment tax credits 36.2 9.8 46.0

Other long-term liabilities 147.4 0.7 148.1

Retained earnings 345.6 8.6 337.0

Consolidated Statements of Income

Operating and maintenance expense
$1099.9 $1 .5 $1098.4

Depreciation and amortization expense
230.9 0.3 230.6

Provision for income taxes 83.2 0.5 83.7

Net income loss from continuing operations 71.6 70.3

Net income loss 68.8 1.3 67.5

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders 70.9 1.3 69.6

Earnings loss per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations $0.96 $0.01 $0.95

Earnings loss per common share basic 0.92 0.01 0.91

Earnings loss per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations $0.96 $0.01 $0.95

Earnings loss per common share diluted 0.92 0.01 0.91
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Provision for income taxes

Net income loss from continuing operations 124.7

129.4

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders 126.4

Earnings loss per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations $1.59

Earnings loss per common share basic 1.65

Earnings loss per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations $1.58

Earnings loss per common share diluted 1.64

As of and for tHe Year Ended December 31 2008

On the Consolidated Balance Sheet for the December 31 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K accrued taxes of $81.9 million were included in the other current liabilities line item which was

originally reported as $461.8 million Accrued taxes have been separately presented on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for the December 31 2010 Annual
Report on Form 10-K

On the Consolidated Statement of Income for the December 31 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K impairment losses on property plant and equipment of $0.7 million were included in the

operating and maintenance
expense

line item which was originally reported as $1100.6 million Impairment losses on property plant and equipment have been separately presented on the

Consolidated Statement of Income for the December 31 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K

In the 2009 table above the adjustments to Other long-term liabilities

and Operating and maintenance expense relate to solar project

that generated an ITC in 2008 but was sold and leased back in 2009

Prior to the change in accounting Integrys Energy Group recognized

loss on the sale in 2009 in operating and maintenance expense
If

the deferral method had been applied since 2008 the carrying amount

of the project would have been reduced by the amount of the ITC

received in 2008 and the sale would have instead resulted in gain in

2009 According to the sale-leaseback guidance in the Leases Topic

of the FASB ASC this gain would have been deferred in 2009 in other

long-term liabilities and recognized as reduction of operating and

maintenance expense over the lease term

The change in accounting policy to adopt the deferral method for ITCs

also impacted previously reported amounts within the Consolidated

Statements of Equity and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders was adjusted in

the Consolidated Statements of Equity to reflect the retrospectively

adjusted amounts included in the table above Although there

was no overall impact on net cash provided by used for operating

activities within the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows certain

line items classified within this category were adjusted to reflect the

retrospectively adjusted amounts included in the table above These

line items were depreciation and amortization expense deferred

income taxes and investment tax credits gain loss on sale of assets

and other

Cash and Cash EquivalentsShort-term investments with an original

maturity of three months or less are reported as cash equivalents

The following is supplemental disclosure to the Integrys Energy Group

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Millions 2010 2009 2008

Construction costs funded through

accounts payable $18.3 $30.4 $34.2

Equity issued for reinvested dividends 22.6

Equity issued for stock-based

compensation plans

Intangible assets customer contracts

received in exchange for risk

management assets

Revenue and Customer ReceivablesRevenues are recognized on

the accrual basis and include estimated amounts for electric and natural

gas services provided but not billed At December 31 2010 and

2009 Integrys Energy Groups unbilled revenues were $339.1 million

and $337.0 million respectively At December 31 2010 there were no

customers or industries that accounted for more than 10% of Integrys

Energy Groups revenues

Prudent fuel and purchased power costs are recovered from customers

under one-for-one recovery mechanisms by UPPCO and by the wholesale

electric operations and Michigan retail electric operations of WPS which

provide for subsequent adjustments to rates for changes in commodity

costs There is portion of WPSs wholesale electric business that limits

cost recovery to no greater than the two-year average rate charged to

large industrial retail customers for that same period

As Originally Retrospectively

Millions except per share data Reported Adjustments Adjusted

Net income loss

$51.2 $9.9

9.9

9.9

9.9

$0.13

0.13

$0.1

0.13

61.1

114.8

119.5

116.5

$1.46

1.52

$1.45

1.51

Millions 2010 2009 2008

Cash paid for interest

Cash received paid for income taxes

$138.7 $164.8 $156.8

2.2 19.1 100.9

Significant noncash transactions were

3.0

17.0
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The costs of natural
gas prudently incurred by the natural gas utility

subsidiaries are also recovered from customers under one-for-one

recovery mechanisms

WPSs Wisconsin retail electric operations do not have one-for-one

mechanism to recover fuel and purchased power costs Instead

fuel window mechanism is used to recover these costs Under the

fuel window if actual fuel and purchased power costs deviate by more

than 2% from costs included in the rates charged to customers rate

review can be triggered Once rate review is triggered rates may

be reset subject to Public Service Commission of Wisconsin PSCW

approval for the remainder of the year to recover or refund on an

annualized basis the projected increase or decrease in the cost of fuel

and purchased power

All of Integrys Energy Groups utility
subsidiaries are required to provide

service and grant credit with applicable deposit requirements to

customers within their service territories The companies continually

review their customers credit-worthiness and obtain or refund deposits

accordingly The utilities are generally precluded from discontinuing

service to residential customers during winter moratorium months

PGL credits proceeds from its interstate services provided by its natural

gas hub against natural gas costs resulting in reduction to utility

customers natural gas charges

WPS and UPPCO both sell and purchase power in the Midwest

Independent Transmission System Operator Inc MISO market If WPS

or UPPCO is net seller in particular hour the net amount is reported

as revenue If WPS or UPPCO isa net purchaser in particular hour the

net amount is recorded as utility cost of fuel natural gas and purchased

power on the Consolidated Statements of Income

Integrys Energy Group presents revenues net of pass-through taxes on

the Consolidated Statements of Income

InventoriesInventories consist of natural gas in storage liquid

propane
and fossil fuels including coal Average cost is used to value

fossil fuels liquid propane
and natural gas in storage for the regulated

utilities excluding PGL and NSG PGL and NSG price natural gas storage

injections at the calendar year average of the costs of natural gas supply

purchased Withdrawals from storage are priced on the Last-in First

out LIFO cost method Inventories stated on basis represented

approximately 34% of total inventories at December 31 2010 and 34% of

total inventories at December31 2009 The estimated replacement cost

of natural gas in inventory at December 31 2010 and December31

2009 exceeded the LIFO cost by approximately $136.7 million and

$220.5 million respectively In calculating these replacement amounts

PGL and NSG used Chicago city-gate natural gas price per dekatherm

of $4.42 at December 31 2010 and $6.14 at December 31 2009

Inventories at Integrys Energy Services are valued at the lower-of-cost

or-market unless hedged pursuant to fair value hedge in which

case changes in the fair value of inventory subsequent to the hedge

designation are recorded directly to inventory Integrys Energy

Services recorded net write-downs of $0.9 million $44.2 million and

$167.3 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Risk Management ActivitiesAs part of its regular operations

Integrys Energy Group enters into contracts including options swaps

futures forwards and other contractual commitments to manage

market risks such as changes in commodity prices and interest rates

which are described more fully in Note Risk Management Activities

Derivative instruments at the utilities are entered into in accordance

with the terms of the risk management plans approved by their respective

Boards of Directors and if applicable by their respective regulators

All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value

unless they are designated as and qualify for the normal purchases

and sales exception Integrys Energy Group continually assesses its

contracts designated as normal and will discontinue the treatment of

these contracts as normal if the required criteria are no longer met

Most energy-related physical and financial derivatives at the utilities

qualify for regulatory deferral These derivatives are marked to fair

value the resulting risk management assets are offset with regulatory

liabilities or decreases to regulatory assets and risk management

liabilities are offset with regulatory assets or decreases to regulatory

liabilities Management believes any gains or losses resulting from the

eventual settlement of these derivative instruments will be refunded to

or collected from customers in rates

Integrys Energy Group classifies unrealized gains and losses on

derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting or

regulatory deferral as component of margins or operating and

maintenance expense depending on the nature of the transactions

Unrealized gains and losses on fair value hedges are recognized

currently in revenues as are the changes in fair value of the hedged

items To the extent they are effective the changes in the values

of contracts designated as cash flow hedges are included in other

comprehensive income net of taxes Fair value hedge ineffectiveness

and cash flow hedge ineffectiveness are recorded in revenue operating

and maintenance expense or interest expense on the Consolidated

Statements of Income based on the nature of the transactions Cash

flows from derivative activities are presented in the same category as

the item being hedged within operating activities on the Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows unless the derivative contracts contain an

other-than-insignificant financing element in which case the cash flows

are classified within financing activities

Derivative accounting rules provide the option to present certain asset

and liability derivative positions net on the balance sheet and to net the

related cash collateral against these net derivative positions Integrys

Energy Group elected not to net these items On the Consolidated

Balance Sheets cash collateral provided to others is shown separately

as collateral on deposit and cash collateral received from others is

reflected in other current liabilities

Emission AllowancesIntegrys Energy Services accounts for

emission allowances as intangible assets with cash inflows and outflows

related to purchases and sales of emission allowances recorded as

investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows The

utilities account for emission allowances as inventory at average cost by

vintage year Charges to income result when allowances are utilized in

operating the utilities generation plants Gains on sales of allowances

at the utilities are returned to ratepayers

Property Plant and EquipmentUtility plant is stated at original

cost including any associated Allowance for Funds Used During

Construction AFUDC and asset retirement costs The costs of

renewals and betterments of units of property as distinguished from

minor items of property are capitalized as additions to the
utility plant

accounts Except for land no gain or loss is recognized in connection

with ordinary retirements of utility property units The utilities charge

the cost of units of property retired sold or otherwise disposed of to

the accumulated provision for depreciation In addition the utilities

record regulatory liability for removal costs included in rates with actual

removal costs charged against the liability as incurred Prior to the Illinois

Commerce Commission ICC rate orders issued January 21 2010 PGL

and NSG recorded costs of removal associated with the retirement
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of assets to depreciation expense as incurred Maintenance repair

replacement and renewal costs associated with items not qualifying as

units of property are considered operating expenses

lntegrys Energy Group records straight-line depreciation expense over

the estimated useful life of utility property using depreciation rates

as approved by the applicable regulators Annual
utility composite

depreciation rates are shown below

WPS Electric

WPS Natural gas

uPPCO

MGU

MERC

PGL

NSG

3.05% 3.04% 3.09%

3.28% 3.30% 3.39%

3.18% 3.05% 2.98%

3.55% 2.66% 2.67%

3.08% 3.10% 3.32%

3.10% 2.29% 2.55%

2.35% 1.66% 1.80%

Nonregulated plant is stated at cost which includes capitalized interest

The costs of renewals betterments and major overhauls are capitalized

as additions to plant The gains or losses associated with ordinary

retirements are recorded in the period of retirement Maintenance

repair and minor replacement costs are expensed as incurred

Depreciation is computed for the majority of the nonregulated

subsidiaries assets using the straight-line method over the assets

useful lives

Integrys Energy Group capitalizes certain costs related to software

developed or obtained for internal use and amortizes those costs to

operating expense over the estimated useful life of the related software

which ranges from to 15 years If software is retired prior to being

fully amortized the difference is recorded as loss on the Consolidated

Statements of Income

See Note Property Plant and Equipment for details regarding

Integrys Energy Groups property plant and equipment balances

Capitalized Interest and AFUDCThe nonregulated subsidiaries

capitalize interest for construction projects while the utilities capitalize

the cost of funds used for construction using calculation that includes

both internal equity and external debt components The internal equity

component of capitalized AFUDC is accounted for as other income and the

external debt component is accounted for as decrease to interest expense

Approximately 50% of WPSs retail
jurisdictional

construction work in

progress expenditures are subject to the AFUDC calculation For 2010

WPSs average AFUDC retail rate was 8.61% and its average AFUDC
wholesale rate was 4.73% WPS allowance for equity funds used during

construction for 2010 2009 and 2008 was $0.7 million $5.1 million and

$5.2 million respectively WPS allowance for borrowed funds used

during construction for 2010 2009 and 2008 was $0.3 million $2.0 million

and $1.8 million respectively

The AFUDC calculation for lBS and the other utilities is determined

by the respective state commissions each with specific requirements

Based on these requirements lBS and the other utilities did not record

significant AFUDC for 2010 2009 or 2008

Interest capitalized at the nonregulated subsidiaries was not significant

during 2010 2009 and 2008

Regulatory Assets and LiabilitiesRegulatory assets represent

probable future revenue associated with certain costs or liabilities that

have been deferred and are expected to be recovered from customers

through the ratemaking process Regulatory liabilities represent

amounts that are expected to be refunded to customers in future rates

or amounts collected in rates for future costs If at any reporting date

previously recorded regulatory asset is no longer probable of recovery

the regulatory asset is reduced to the amount considered probable

of recovery with the reduction charged to expense in the year the

determination is made See Note Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

for more information

Asset ImpairmentGoodwill and other intangible assets

with indefinite lives are not amortized but are subject to an annual

impairment test Other long-lived assets require an impairment review

when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may

not be recoverable Integrys Energy Group bases its evaluation of other

long-lived assets on the presence of impairment indicators such as the

future economic benefit of the assets any historical or future profitability

measurements and other external market conditions or factors

Integrys Energy Groups reporting units containing goodwill perform

annual goodwill impairment tests during the second quarter of each year

and interim impairment tests when impairment indicators are present

The carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill is considered not

recoverable if it exceeds the reporting units fair value An impairment

loss is recorded for the excess of the carrying value of the goodwill over

its implied fair value For more information on Integrys Energy Group

goodwill and other intangible assets see Note Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of tangible long-lived assets held and used is

considered not recoverable if it exceeds the undiscounted sum of cash

flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the

asset If the carrying value is not recoverable the impairment loss is

measured as the excess of the assets carrying value over its fair value

The carrying value of assets held for sale is not recoverable if it exceeds

the fair value less estimated costs to sell the asset An impairment loss

is recorded for the excess of the assets carrying value over the fair value

less estimated costs to sell

The carrying values of cost and equity method investments are assessed

for impairment by comparing the fair values of these investments to their

carrying values if fair value assessment was completed or by reviewing

for the presence of impairment indicators If an impairment exists and it

is determined to be other-than-temporary loss is recognized equal to

the amount the carrying value exceeds the investments fair value

Integrys Energy Services evaluates emission allowances for impairment

by comparing the expected undiscounted future cash flows to the

carrying amount When allowances are expected to be utilized for

generation the allowances are grouped with the related power plant in

the impairment evaluation

Retirement of DebtAny call premiums or unamortized expenses

associated with refinancing utility debt obligations are amortized

consistent with regulatory treatment of those items Any gains or losses

resulting from the retirement of nonutility debt are recorded through

earnings while gains or losses resulting from the retirement of utility debt

that is not refinanced are either amortized over the remaining life of the

original debt or recorded through earnings

Asset Retirement Obligationslntegrys Energy Group recognizes

legal obligations at fair value associated with the retirement of

tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition construction

Annual Utility Composite

Depreciation Rates 2010 2009 2008
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or development and/or normal operation of the assets liability

is recorded for these obligations as long as the fair value can be

reasonably estimated even if the timing or method of
settling the

obligation is unknown The asset retirement obligations are accreted

using credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate commensurate with the

expected settlement dates of the asset retirement obligations this rate

is determined at the date the obligation is incurred The associated

retirement costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived assets

and are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets Subsequent

changes resulting from revisions to the timing or the amount of the

original estimate of undiscounted cash flows are recognized as an

increase or decrease in the carrying amount of the liability and

the associated retirement cost See Note 13 Asset Retirement

ObIigatonsfor more information

Income TaxesDeferred income taxes have been recorded to

recognize the expected future tax consequences of events that have

been included in the financial statements by using currently enacted tax

rates for the differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and

the basis reported in the financial statements lntegrys Energy Group
records valuation allowances for deferred tax assets when it is uncertain

if the benefit will be realized in the future Integrys Energy Groups

regulated utilities defer certain adjustments made to income taxes that

will impact future rates and record regulatory assets or liabilities related

to these adjustments

In 2010 Integrys Energy Group changed its method of accounting for

ITCs from the flow-through method to the deferral method Under the

deferral method Integrys Energy Group defers the ITCs in the year the

credit is received and reduces the provision for income taxes over the

useful life of the related
property See Note Change in Accounting

Policy for additional information on this change in accounting policy

Production tax credits generally reduce the provision for income taxes in

the year that
electricity

from the qualifying facility is generated and sold

Investment tax credits and production tax credits that do not reduce

income taxes payable for the current year are eligible
for carryover and

recognized as deferred tax asset valuation allowance is established

unless it is more likely than not that the credits will be realized during the

cariyforward period

Integrys Energy Group files consolidated United States income tax

return that includes domestic subsidiaries of which its ownership is 80%
or more Integrys Energy Group and its consolidated subsidiaries are

parties to federal and state tax allocation arrangement under which

each
entity determines its provision for income taxes on stand-alone

basis In several states combined or consolidated
filing is required

for certain members of Integrys Energy Group doing business in that

state The tax allocation arrangement equitably allocates the state taxes

associated with these combined or consolidated
filings

Integrys Energy Group reports interest and penalties accrued related

to income taxes as component of provision for income taxes in the

Consolidated Statements of Income as well as regulatory assets or

regulatory liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

For more information regarding Integrys Energy Group accounting for

income taxes see Note 14 /ncome Taxes

GuaranteesIntegrys Energy Group follows the guidance of the

Guarantees Topic of the FASB ASC which requires that the guarantor

recognize at the inception of the guarantee liability for the fair value

of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee For additional

information on guarantees see Note 16 Guarantees

Employee BenefitsThe costs of pension and other postretirement

benefits are expensed over the periods during which employees render

service The transition obligation related to other postretirement benefit

plans that existed at lntegrys Energy Group prior to the PEC merger is

being recognized over 20-year period beginning in 1993 In computing
the expected return on plan assets Integrys Energy Group uses

market-related value of plan assets Changes in fair value are recognized

over the subsequent five years for plans sponsored by WPS while

differences between actual investment returns and the expected return

on plan assets are recognized over five-year period for pension plans

sponsored by lBS and PEC The benefit costs associated with employee
benefit plans are allocated among Integrys Energy Groups subsidiaries

based on employees time reporting and actuarial calculations as

applicable Integrys Energy Groups regulators allow recovery in rates for

the regulated utilities net periodic benefit cost calculated under United

States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GAAP

Integrys Energy Group recognizes the funded status of defined benefit

postretirement plans on the balance sheet and recognizes changes in

the plans funded status in the year in which the changes occur lntegrys

Energy Group nonregulated segments record changes in the funded

status in other comprehensive income and the regulated utilities record

these changes to regulatory asset or liability accounts

For additional information on Integrys Energy Groups employee benefits

see Note 17 Employee Benefit Plans

Fair ValueA fair value measurement is required to reflect the

assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or

liability
based on the best available information These assumptions

include the risks inherent in particular valuation technique such as

pricing model and the risks inherent in the inputs to the model Also

transaction costs should not be considered in the determination of

fairvalue On January 2008 Integrys Energy Group recognized an

increase in nonregulated revenues of $11.0 million due to the exclusion

of transaction costs from Integrys Energy Services fair value estimates

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer
liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants at

the measurement date exit price Integrys Energy Group utilizes mid-

market pricing convention the mid-point price between bid and ask prices

as practical expedient for valuing certain derivative assets and liabilities

Fair value accounting rules provide fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes

the inputs used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the highest

priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities Level measurement and the lowest
priority to unobservable

inputs Level measurement The three levels of the fair value hierarchy

are defined as follows

Level Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities as of the reporting date Active markets are those in which

transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and

volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis

Level Pricing inputs are observable either directly or indirectly but are

not quoted prices included within Level Level includes those financial

instruments that are valued using external inputs within models or other

valuation methodologies

Level 3Pricing inputs include
significant inputs that are generally less

observable from objective sources These inputs may be used with

internally developed methodologies that result in managements best

estimate of fair value Level instruments include those that
may

be more

structured or otherwise tailored to customers needs

Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the

lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement

Integrys Energy Group determines fair value using market based

approach that incorporates observable market inputs where available

and
internally developed inputs where observable market data is not

readily available For the unobservable inputs consideration is given

to the assumptions that market participants would use in valuing the

asset or liability These factors include not only the credit standing of the

counterparties involved but also the impact of Integrys Energy Group
nonperformance risk on its liabilities

When possible Integrys Energy Group bases the valuations of its risk

management assets and liabilities on quoted prices for identical assets in
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active markets These valuations are classified in Level The valuations

of certain contracts include inputs related to market price risk commodity

or interest rate price volatility for option contracts price correlation for

cross commodity contracts credit risk and time value These inputs are

available through multiple sources including brokers and over-the-counter

and online exchanges Transactions valued using these inputs are classified

in Level

Certain derivatives are categorized in Level due to the significance of

unobservable or internally-developed inputs The primary reasons for

Level classification are as follows

NOTE 2RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

While price curves may have been based on observable information

significant assumptions may have been made regarding seasonal or

monthly shaping and locational basis differentials

Certain transactions were valued using price curves that extended

beyond the quoted period Assumptions were made to extrapolate

prices from the last quoted period through the end of the transaction

term primarily through the use of historically
settled data or

correlations to other locations

Integrys Energy Group recognizes transfers between the levels of the fair

value hierarchy at the value as of the end of the reporting period

See Note 22 Fair Value for additional information

Utility Segments

Non-hedge derivatives

December 31 2010

Nonregulated Segments

Non-hedge derivatives

Natural gas contracts Current 132.0 113.8

Natural gas contracts Long-term
62.3 57.7

Electric contracts
Current 85.7 122.0

Electric contracts Long-term
16.5 30.3

Total commodity contracts
Current 217.7 235.8

Total commodity contracts Long-term
78.8 88.0

Foreign exchange contracts Current 1.2 1.2

Foreign exchange contracts Long-term
0.3 0.3

Fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps
Current 0.9

Cash flow hedges

Natural gas contracts
Current 1.6 .2

Natural gas contracts Long-term
0.1 0.9

Electric contracts Current 9.6 17.4

Electric contracts Long-term
4.9 9.1

Total commodity contracts Current 11.2 26.6

Total commodity contracts Long-term
5.0 10.0

Current 236.9 289.6

Long-term
89.4 99.7

Total
$326.3 $389.3

Assets and liabilities from risk management activities are classified as current or long-term based upon the maturities of the underlying contracts

The following table shows Integrys Energy Groups assets and liabilities from risk management activities

Millions
Balance Sheet Presentation Risk Management Assets Risk Management Liabilities

Natural gas contracts

Natural gas contracts

Financial transmission rights FTRs

Petroleum product contracts

Coal contract

Coal contract

Total commodity contracts

Total commodity contracts

Cash flow hedges

Natural gas contracts

Current

Long-term

Current

Current

Current

Long-term

Current

Long-term

2.2 23.6

1.4

0.2

1.2

1.6

3.1

0.6

3.7

5.9

5.3

25.0

1.4

Current
1.0
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December 31 2009

Millions Balance Sheet Presentation Risk Management Assets Risk Management Liabilities

Utility Segments

Non-hedge derivatives

Commodity contracts

Commodity contracts

Cash flow hedges

Commodity contracts

Commodity contracts

Nonregulated Segments

Non-hedge derivatives

Commodity contracts

Commodity contracts

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps

Foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange contracts

Fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps

Cash flow hedges

Certain of Integrys Energy Groups derivative and nonderivative

commodity instruments contain provisions that could require adequate
assurance in the event of material adverse change in Integrys

Energy Groups creditworthiness or the posting of additional collateral

for instruments in net liability positions if triggered by decrease in

credit ratings The following table shows the
aggregate fair value of all

derivative instruments with specific credit-risk related contingent features

that were in liability position

If all of the credit-risk related contingent features contained in

commodity instruments including derivatives nonderivatives normal

purchase and normal sales contracts and applicable payables and

receivables had been triggered Integrys Energy Group collateral

requirement would have been as follows

Current

Long-term

Current

Long-term

Current

Long-term

Current

Long-term

Current

Long-term

Current

Long-term

Current

Long-term

Current

10.8

2.0

1503.9

787.2

1.0

0.9

1.8

0.8

4.6

4.5

24.7

1.5

0.2

0.1

1548.4

769.5

1.0

2.5

0.9

0.9

30.1

8.6

1.8

Commodity contracts

Commodity contracts

Interest rate swaps

Current 1522.1 1607.1

Long-term 795.4 783.1

Total
$2317.5 $2390.2

Assets and liabilities from risk management activities are classified as current or long-term based upon the maturities of the underlying contracts

The following table shows Integrys Energy Group cash collateral positions

December 31 December 31
Millions 2010 2009

Cash collateral provided to others $33.3

Cash collateral received from others 4.5

$184.9

55.2

December 31 December 31
Millions 2010 2009

December 31 December 31
Millions 2010 2009

Collateral that would have

been required

Integrys Energy Services $295.7

Utility segments 14.1

Collateral already satisfied

Integrys Energy Services

Letters of credit
56.9

Cash

Utility segments

Letters of credit

Cash

Collateral remaining

Integrys Energy Services 238.8

Utility segments 14.1

Integrys Energy Services $219.5

Utility segments 22i

$555.6

24.0

$549.3

17.0

51.9

497.4

17.0
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Utility Segments

Non-Hedge Derivatives

Utility derivatives include limited number of natural gas purchase contracts

coal purchase contract financial derivative contracts futures options and

swaps and FTRs used to manage electric transmission congestion costs

Natural gas contracts

Natural gas contracts

FTRs

FTRs

Petroleum product contracts

Petroleum product contracts

Coal contract

Coal contract

The futures options and swaps were used by both the electric and natural

gas utility segments to mitigate the risks associated with the market price

volatility
of natural gas supply costs the costs of gasoline and diesel fuel

used by utility vehicles and the cost of coal transportation

The tables below show the unrealized gains losses recorded related to

non-hedge derivatives at the utilities

Balance Sheet Regulatory assets current

Balance Sheet Regulatory assets long-term

Balance Sheet Regulatory assets current

Balance Sheet Regulatory liabilities current

Balance Sheet Regulatory liabilities current

$1.7

0.1

1.0

2.1

0.1

0.1

1.2

3.7

Other Other

Purchases Transactions Purchases Transactions

Natural gas millions of therms 979.9 N/A 833.2 N/A

FTRs millions of kilowatt-hours N/A 5882.5 N/A 4546.6

Petroleum products barrels 71827.0 N/A 42823.0 N/A

Coal contract millions of tons 4.9 N/A N/A N/A

N/A Not Applicable

Cash Flow Hedges

PGL uses natural gas contracts designated as cash flow hedges to hedge

changes in the price of natural gas used to support operations The

natural gas used to support operations is not component of the natural

gas recovered from customers on one-for-one basis These contracts

extend through January 2012 PGL had the following notional volumes of

outstanding contracts that were designated as cash flow hedges

Purchases

hedged transaction will not occur The tables below show the amounts

related to cash flow hedges recorded in OCI and in earnings

Unrealized Loss Recognized in DC on Derivative Instruments Effective Portion

Millions 2010 2009

Loss Reclassified from Accumulated DCI into Income Effective Portion

Settled natural gas Operating and

contracts maintenance expense $0.9 $2.6

Millions Financial Statement Presentation 2010

Income Statement Operating and maintenance expense

Balance Sheet Regulatory assets current

Balance Sheet Regulatory liabilities long-term

Millions Financial Statement Presentation 2009

Commodity contracts Balance Sheet Regulatory assets current $122.5

Commodity contracts Balance Sheet Regulatory assets long-term 7.3

Commodity contracts Balance Sheet Regulatory liabilities current 1.0

Commodity contracts Balance Sheet Regulatory liabilities long-term

Commodity contracts Income Statement Utility cost of fuel natural gas and purchased power 0.1

The utilities had the following notional volumes of outstanding non-hedge derivative contracts

December31 2010 December31 2009

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Natural gas millions of therms 5.4 9.6

Natural gas contracts $1.6

Changes in the fair values of the effective portions of these contracts are

included in Other Comprehensive Income OCI net of taxes Amounts

recorded in OCI related to these cash flow hedges will be recognized in

earnings when the hedged transactions occur or if it is probable that the

$1.4

Income Statement

Millions Presentation 2010 2009
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The amount reclassified from accumulated OCI into earnings as

result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedge accounting related to

these natural gas contracts was not significant during 2010 and 2009

and was pre-tax loss of $2.7 million during 2008 Cash flow hedge

ineffectiveness related to these natural gas contracts was not significant

during 2010 2009 and 2008 When testing for effectiveness no portion

of these derivative instruments was excluded In the next 12 months an

insignificant pre-tax loss is expected to be recognized in earnings as the

hedged transactions occur

Nonregulated Segments

Non-Hedge Derivatives

Integrys Energy Group nonregulated segments enter into derivative

contracts such as futures forwards options and swaps that are not

designated as accounting hedges under GAAP These contracts are used to

manage commodity price risk associated with customer-related contracts

The nonregulated segments had the following notional volumes of

outstanding non-hedge derivative contracts

December31 2010 December31 2009

Other Other

Millions Purchases Sales Transactions Purchases Sales Transactions

Commodity contracts

Natural gas therms

Electric kilowatt-hours

Interest rate swaps

Foreign exchange contracts

940.6 1048.4 N/A

22149.4 19707.0 N/A

N/A N/A

$15.5 $15.5 N/A

2990.4 2917.1

132200.4 125983.1 N/A

N/A N/A $219.2

$35.1 $35.1

N/A Not Applicable

Gains losses related to non-hedge derivatives are recognized currently

in earnings as shown in the tables below

Millions Income Statement Presentation 2010

Total $66.7

Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue 5.1

Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue reclassified

from accumulated OCI

Interest rate swaps Interest expense

Foreign exchange Nonregulated revenue 1.8

contracts

Total $11.8

Represents amounts reclassified from accumulated oci related to cash flow hedges that were

dedesignated
and retained in accumulated OCI in the current and/or prior periods

Fair Value Hedges

At FEC an interest rate swap designated as fair value hedge was used

to hedge changes in the fair value of $50.0 million of the $325.0 million

FEC Series 6.9% notes due January 15 2011 The interest rate swap

and related debt were settled in January 2011 The changes in the fair

value of this hedge were recognized in earnings as were the changes in

fair value of the hedged item Unrealized gains losses related to the fair

value hedge and the related hedged item are shown in the table below

Total

Fair value hedge ineffectiveness recorded in interest expense on the

Consolidated Statements of Income was not significant in 2010 2009

and 2008 No amounts were excluded from effectiveness testing related

to the interest rate swap during 2010 2009 and 2008

During the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 Integrys Energy

Services did not have any commodity derivative contracts designated as

fair value hedges During the year ended December31 2008 Integrys

Energy Services had commodity derivative contracts designated as

fair value hedges to mitigate the risk of changes in the price of natural

gas held in storage Fair value hedge ineffectiveness recorded in

nonregulated revenue on the Consolidated Statements of Income was

not significant in 2008 Changes in the difference between the spot

3.2 and forward prices of natural gas were excluded from the assessment of

1.7 hedge effectiveness and reported directly in nonregulated revenue

The amount excluded was pre-tax gain of $5.5 million during 2008

Cash Flow Hedges

Natural gas futures forwards and swaps that are designated as cash

flow hedges extend through December 2013 while electric futures

forwards and swaps designated as cash flow hedges extend through

May 2017 These contracts are used to mitigate the risk of cash flow

variability
associated with future purchases and sales of natural gas and

electricity In the second quarter of 2010 Integrys Energy Group entered

into two interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges to hedge the

variability
in forecasted interest payments associated with the first

$100 million of planned debt issuance in the fourth quarter of 2010

In November 2010 both swaps were terminated in conjunction with the

N/A

N/A

Natural gas contracts Nonregulated revenue 30.9

Natural gas contracts Nonregulated revenue reclassified

from accumulated OCI 1.6

Electric contracts Nonregulated revenue 92.7

Electric contracts Nonregulated revenue reclassified

from accumulated OCI 3.7

Interest rate swaps Interest expense 0.4

Income Statement

Millions Presentation 2010 2009

Interest rate swap Interest expense

Debt hedged by swap Interest expense 1.7 0.6

$1.7 $0.6

Represents
amounts reclassified from accumulated OCl related to cash flow hedges that were

dedesignated and retained in accumulated OCI in the current and/or
prior periods

Millions Income Statement Presentation 2009
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issuance of the $250.0 million Series 4.170% senior notes due November

2020 Amounts remaining in accumulated CCI are being reclassified to

interest expense over ten-year period beginning in November 2010 to

correspond with the ten years of interest expense on the related debt

The nonregulated segments had the following notional volumes of

outstanding contracts that were designated as cash flow hedges

December31 2010 December 31 2009

Interest rate swaps

265.6 N/A 5.9 8.6 N/A

11569.0 29.8 N/A 7116.2 N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A $65.6

Notional amount of two interest rate swaps designated as cast flow hedges to hedge the variability in interest payments on an unsecured term loan through June 2010 These interest rate swaps

settled in the second quarter of 2010

Changes in the fair values of the effective portions of contracts designated as cash flow hedges are included in CCI net of taxes Amounts recorded

in CCI related to cash flow hedges will be recognized in earnings when the hedged transactions occur or when it is probable that the hedged

transaction will not occur The tables below show the amounts related to cash flow hedges recorded in CCI and in earnings

Unrealized Loss Recognized in OCI on Derivative Instruments Effective Portion

Millions 2010

Natural gas contracts

Electric contracts

Interest rate swaps 6.0

Total $34.8

Unrealized Gain Loss Recognized in OCl on Derivative Instruments

Effective Portion

Commodity contracts $60.0

Interest rate swaps 3.2

Total $56.8

Seft led/Realized

Natural gas contracts Nonregulated revenue

Electric contracts Nonregulated revenue

Interest rate swaps Interest expense

Hedge Designation Discontinued

Natural gas contracts Nonregulated revenue

Electric contracts Nonregulated revenue 9.9

Total $47.5

Total $103.4

Loss Recognized in Income on Derivative Instruments Ineffective Portion and

Amount Excluded from Effectiveness Testing

Electric contracts Nonregulated revenue 0.5

Total $1.6

In the next 12 months subject to changes in market prices of natural gas and electricity pre-tax losses of $8.0 million and $7.9 million related to cash

flow hedges of natural gas contracts and electric contracts respectively are expected to be recognized in earnings as the hedged transactions occur

This amount is expected to be substantially offset by the settlement of the related nonderivative hedged contracts

Commodity contracts

Natural gas therms

Electric kilowatt-hours

Other Other

Millions Purchases Sales Transactions Purchases Sales Transactions

$1 5.2

13.6

Gain Loss Reclassified from Accumulated DCI into Income Effective Portion

Income Statement

Millions Presentation 2009

Millions 2009

Settled/Realized

Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue

Interest rate swaps Interest expense

Hedge Designation Discontinued

Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue

$107.3

1.2

2.7

Gain Loss Reclassified from Accumulated 00 into Income Effective Portion

Income Statement

Millions Presentation 2010

Income Statement

Millions Presentation 2010

$16.4

21.6

Natural
gas contracts Nonregulated revenue $1.1

0.2

0.2 Loss Recognized in Income on Derivative Instruments Ineffective Portion and

Amount Excluded from Effectiveness Testing

Income Statement

Millions Presentation 2009

Commodity contracts Nonregulated revenue $1 .1
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NOTE 3RESTRUCTURING EXPENSE

Holding company and other 0.1 0.8

Total restructuring expense $0.4 $18.0

The following table summarizes the activity
related to these

restructuring costs

Accrued restructuring costs at

$18.0
beginning of period

Add Adjustments to accrual
0.1 18.0

during the period

Deduct Cash payments 17.7

Accrued restructuring costs at
0.2 $180

end of period

Restructuring costs of $0.3 million were billed to certain companies in accordance with provisions

in the
operating agreements with these companies that allow lntegys Energy Group to recover

portion
of its administrative and general expenses

As part of Integrys Energy Group decision to reposition its nonregulated

energy services business to focus on selected retail markets in the

northeast quadrant of the United States and investments in energy

assets with renewable attributes lntegrys Energy Services completed the

following sales

In June 2010 Integrys Energy Services sold its Texas retail electric

marketing business The pre-tax gain on the sale of Integrys Energy

Services of Texas LP was $25.5 million and was reported as component

The following table shows the carrying values of the major classes of

assets and liabilities included in the sale at the closing date

Integrys Energy Services Strategy Change

As part of Integrys Energy Groups decision to reposition its

nonregulated energy services business to focus on selected retail

markets in the northeast quadrant of the United States and investments

in energy assets with renewable attributes the following restructuring

costs were expensed

Millions 2010 2009

Miscellaneous 0.4 0.3

Total restructuring expense $8.3 $25.5

The following table summarizes the
activity

related to employee-related

restructuring expense

Accrued employee-related costs at
0.3 8.2

end of period

Other long-term assets 1.9

Total assets $31.9

Current liabilities from risk management activities $35.2

Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 27.3

Total liabilities $62.5

In September 2009 Integrys Energy Services of Canada subsidiary of

lntegrys Energy Services sold nearly all of its Canadian natural gas and

Reductions in Workforce

In an effort to permanently remove costs from its operations Integrys

Energy Group developed plan at the end of 2009 that included

reductions in its workforce In connection with this plan employee-related

and consulting costs were included in the restructuring expense line item

on the Consolidated Statements of Income The restructuring costs were

distributed across Integrys Energy Groups segments as follows

Millions 2010 2009

Electric utility

Natural gas utility

Integrys Energy Services

$0.3

0.2

Employee-related costs $1.1 $10.1

Professional fees 6.4 9.2

8.6

Software write-offs and accelerated

6.9 0.4 5.9

depreciation

1.7

Millions 2010 2009

All of the above costs were related to the lntegrys Energy Services

segment and were included in the restructuring expense line item on

the Consolidated Statements of Income

Millions 2010 2009

Accrued employee-related costs at beginning

of period

Add Employee-related costs expensed

Deduct Cash payments

$8.2

1.1 10.1

9.0 1.9

NOTE 4DISPOSITIONS

Integrys Energy Services Strategy Change

Integrys Energy Group expects to recognize an insignificant amount

of additional employee-related restructuring expense related to the

Integrys Energy Services strategy change in the first half of 2011

Millions

Sale of Integrys Energy Services of Texas LP

Current assets from risk management activities

Other current assets

Long-term assets from risk management activities

$14.0

2.2

13.8

of net loss on Integrys Energy Services dispositions related to strategy

change in the Consolidated Statements of Income

In addition to the above recognized assets and liabilities commodity

contracts not accounted for as derivative instruments were also

transferred to the buyer

Sale of Canadian Natural Gas and Wholesale Electric

Marketing and Trading Portfolio
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electric power contract portfolio In separate transaction Integrys Energy

Services of Canada sold billion cubic foot bcO natural gas storage

contract With these two transactions Integrys Energy Services exited the

majority of its electric and natural gas marketing business in Canada

Long-term assets from risk management activities 48.6

Total assets $188.6

Current liabilities from risk management activities $119.8

Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 32.3

Total liabilities $152.1

In conjunction with the first transaction lntegrys Energy Services entered

into derivative contracts with the buyer to reestablish the economic

hedges for the retained United States retail business at the same prices

and other terms originally executed through Integrys Energy Services

Canadian natural gas and electric power portfolio The execution of

these third-party derivative contracts resulted in assets and liabilities

from risk management activities as follows at the closing date

Millions

Long-term assets from risk management activities 8.8

Total assets $30.6

Current liabilities from risk management activities $14.2

Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 6.3

Total liabilities $20.5

In May 2010 Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of its

remaining Canadian wholesale electric marketing and trading portfolio

The following table shows the carrying values of the major classes of

assets and liabilities included in the sale at the May 2010 closing date

Long-term assets from risk management activities 10.5

Total assets $24.3

Current liabilities from risk management activities $15.2

Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 9.5

Total liabilities $24.7

The pre-tax losses on the sales of the Canadian natural gas and

wholesale electric marketing and trading portfolio were $0.4 million in

both 2010 and 2009 and were reported as component of net loss on

lntegrys Energy Services dispositions related to strategy change in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Sale of Renewable Energy Certificates Portfolio

In March 2010 Integrys Energy Services sold its environmental markets

business which consisted of portfolio of long-term renewable energy

certificate contracts with generators wholesalers municipalities

cooperatives and large industrial companies The pre-tax gain on the

sale of the renewable energy certificate contracts was $2.8 million and

was reported as component of net loss on Integrys Energy Services

dispositions related to strategy change in the Consolidated Statements

of Income

In March 2010 Integrys Energy Services closed on the sale of substantially

all of its United States wholesale electric marketing and trading business

The following table shows the carrying values of the major classes of

assets and liabilities included in the sale at the closing date

Millions

Total assets

Current liabilities from risk management activities $1389.8

Long-term liabilities from risk management activities 654.3

Total liabilities $2044.1

In conjunction with the sale Integrys Energy Services entered into

derivative contracts with the buyer to reestablish the economic hedges

for the retained United States retail electric business with the same

prices and terms originally executed through Integrys Energy Services

United States wholesale electric marketing and trading business For

two-year period following the closing Integrys Energy Services

will retain counterparty default risk with approximately 50% of the

counterparties to the commodity contracts novated The fair value

of the counterparty payment default risk at the date of the sale was

$0.8 million and was reported as component of other long-term

liabilities As of December 31 2010 the carrying value of the default

risk decreased to $0.3 million resulting in $0.5 million pre-tax positive

impact on net income

$13.8 On February 12010 Integrys Energy Services transferred substantially

all of the market risk associated with this business by entering into

trades with the buyer that mirrored Integrys Energy Services underlying

wholesale electric contracts On March 31 2010 Integrys Energy

Services transferred title to the majority of the underlying commodity

contracts upon which time the corresponding mirror transactions

terminated As of December 31 2010 approximately 95% of the

commodity contracts had been novated and the corresponding

mirror transactions had been terminated The remaining

underlying commodity contracts that had not been novated as of

December 31 2010 will be settled through the normal course

of business at which time the corresponding mirror transactions

will terminate

The following table shows the carrying values of the major classes of

assets and liabilities included in the transactions at the closing dates

Millions

Inventories 5.3

Sale of United States Wholesale Electric Marketing

Current assets from risk management activities 134.7 and Trading Business

Current assets from risk management activities

Long-term assets from risk management activities

Current assets from risk management activities

$1375.5

683.3

$2058.8

$21.8 In addition to the above recognized assets and liabilities commodity

contracts not accounted for as derivative instruments were also

transferred to the buyer

Millions

Current assets from risk management activities
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The following table shows the carrying values of the remaining

underlying commodity contracts that had not been novated at

December31 2010

Current assets from risk management activities

Current liabilities from risk management activities

Current liabilities from risk management activities

The total of the pre-tax net loss on the sale of the United States

wholesale electric marketing and trading business and the remaining

commodity contract net of the gain resulting from the fair value

adjustment was $55.7 million for 2010 and was reported as

component of net loss on Integrys Energy Services dispositions related

to strategy change in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Sale of Generation Businesses in New Brunswick

Canada and Northern Maine and Associated Retail

Electric Contracts

In January 2010 Integrys Energy Services closed on the sale of two of

its power generation businesses which owned generation assets in

New Brunswick Canada and Northern Maine and subsequently closed

on the sale of the associated retail electric contracts and standard offer

service contracts in Northern Maine in February 2010 The proceeds

from the sale of the generation companies and associated retail electric

contracts were $38.5 million The pre-tax gain on the sales was

$15.7 million for 2010 and was reported as component of net loss on

Integrys Energy Services dispositions related to strategy change in the

Consolidated Statements of Income

Other long-term assets 1.3 1.3

Total assets $26.5 $26.5

Other current liabilities 0.1

Asset retirement obligations 0.3 0.3

Total liabilities 0.4 0.3

In conjunction with the sale Integrys Energy Services entered into

derivative contracts with the buyer of the Northern Maine retail electric

sales contracts to offset the retained economic hedges associated with

the customer contracts sold

In October 2009 Integrys Energy Services entered into definitive

agreements to sell the majority of its United States wholesale natural

gas marketing and trading business in two-part transaction In

December 2009 lntegrys Energy Services closed the first part of the

transaction by selling substantially all of its United States wholesale

natural gas marketing and trading business The second part of the

transaction included the sale of its remaining natural gas storage and

related transportation contracts through multiple transactions which

22.3
closed during the first half of 2010 The carrying value of inventories

included in the 2010 sales was $1.8 million as of the closing date

The pre-tax losses on the sale of the United States wholesale natural

gas marketing and trading business and natural gas storage and related

transportation contracts as of 2010 and 2009 was $2.0 million and

$28.5 million respectively and were reported as component
of net loss on Integrys Energy Services dispositions related to

strategy change in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Discontinued Operations Resulting from Integrys

Energy Services Strategy Change

Energy Management Consulting Business

During 2010 Integrys Energy Services recorded $0.2 million after-tax

gain in discontinued operations when contingent payments were earned

related to the sale of its energy management consulting business

During 2009 Integrys Energy Services completed the sale of its

energy management consulting business and received proceeds of

$4.7 million This business provided consulting services relating to

long-term strategies for managing energy costs for its customers

The historical results of this business were not significant The gain on

the sale of this business reported in discontinued operations during

the third quarter of 2009 was $3.9 million $2.4 million after tax

Other Discontinued Operations

WPS Niagara Generation LLC

During 2009 Integrys Energy Services recorded $0.4 million after-tax gain

in discontinued operations related to refund received in connection with

the overpayment for auxiliary power service in prior years

During 2008 Integrys Energy Services recorded $0.1 million after-

tax gain in discontinued operations related to amortization of an

environmental indemnification guarantee included as part of the 2007

sale agreement of WPS Niagara Generation

Stoneman

During 2008 Integrys Energy Services sold its subsidiary Mid-American
25.1

Power LLC which owned the Stoneman generation facility located in

Wisconsin The historical financial results of this business were not significant

In the fourth quarter of 2008 Integrys Energy Services recognized

$6.3 million $3.8 million after tax gain on the sale of this business in

discontinued operations when contingent payment was earned

Peoples Energy Production Company PEP

In 2008 $0.8 million of tax adjustments related to the sale of PEP in 2007

was recorded as income from discontinued operations

Millions

The following table shows the carrying values of the remaining mirror

transactions associated with the underlying commodity contracts

referenced above that had not been novated at December 31 2010

Sale of United States Wholesale Natural Gas
$22.3

Marketing and Trading Business and Other Wholesale

7.9 Natural Gas Storage Contracts

Millions

Current assets from risk management activities 7.9

lntegrys Energy Services closed on the sale of its only remaining

significant wholesale electric commodity contract with another buyer in

March 2010

The carrying values of the major classes of assets and liabilities included

in the sales as of the closing dates and classified as held for sale on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 2009 were as follows

As of the

Closing Dates December 31
Millions in 2010 2009

Inventories 0.1

Property plant and

equipment net 25.1

0.1
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Electric
utility

$3095.5

Natural gas utility
4506.3

Total utility plant
7601.8

Less
Accumulated_depreciation

2794.2

4807.6

NOTE 5PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property plant and equipment at December31 consisted of the following utility nonutility and nonregulated assets

Millions
2010 2009

$3066.7

4338.3

7405.0

2726.0

4679.0

40.7

4719.7

Net

Construction work in progress
39.5

Net utility plant
4847.1

Nonutility plant utility segments
143.9 100.7

Less Accumulated depreciation
70.2 59.1

Net
73.7 41.6

Construction work in progress
1.6 34.6

Net nonutility plant utility segments
75.3 76.2

Electric nonregulated
87.5 163.2

Natural gas nonregulated
18.0 18.1

Other nonregulated
20.5 23.5

Total nonregulated property plant and equipment
126.0 204.8

Less Accumulated depreciation
35.8 61.8

Net
90.2 143.0

Construction work in progress
0.8 2.9

Net nonregulated property plant and equipment
91.0 145.9

Total property plant and equipment
$5013.4 $4941.8

lntegrys Energy Group evaluates property plant and equipment for The fair value of the natural gas plants was determined primarily using

impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist During the third the income approach which was based on discounted cash flows that

quarter of 201 Integrys Energy Services recorded pre-tax noncash were derived from internal forecasts and economic expectations The

impairment loss of $43.2 million related to its three natural gas-fired key assumptions used to determine fair value under the income approach

generation plants Beaver Falls Generation Syracuse Generation and over the cash flow period were forward energy
and capacity curves

Combined Locks Energy Center The impairment charge resulted from Other assumptions included forecasted operating expenses forecasted

lower estimated future cash flows for these plants and was primarily capital additions anticipated working capital requirements and the

driven by reduced expectations for forward capacity prices The discount rate The discount rate represents
the estimated cost of capital

impairment charge is shown under impairment losses in property plant appropriate for the nonregulated generation plants The discount rate

and equipment in the Consolidated Statements of Income used for the impairment analysis was 10%

NOTE 6JOINTLY OWNED UTILITY FACILITIES

WPS holds
joint ownership interest in certain electric generating purchases and operating expenses unless specific agreements have

facilities WPS is entitled to its share of generating capability and output been executed to limit its maximum exposure to additional costs WPS

of each
facility equal to its respective ownership interest WPS also share of significant jointly

owned electric generating facilities as of

pays its ownership share of additional construction costs fuel inventory December 31 2010 was as follows

West Marinette Columbia Energy Edgewater

Millions except for percentages and megawatts Weston Unit No 33 Center Units and Unit No

Ownership
70.0% 68.0% 31.8% 31.o

WPSs share of rated capacity megawatts 374.5 65.8 335.2 105.0

Utility plant in service $614.7 $18.3 $165.3 $38.5

Accumulated depreciation
$75.9 $10.2 $103.4 $24.4

In-service date 2008 1993 1975 and 1978 1969

On February 12011 the joint owner of this facility sold all of its ownership
interest to WPS making WPS the sole owner

WPSs share of direct expenses for these plants is recorded in operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income WPS has supplied its

own financing for all jointly owned projects
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NOTE 7REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Integrys Energy Groups utility
subsidiaries expect to recover their

regulatory assets and incur future costs or refund their regulatory

liabilities through rates charged to customers based on specific

ratemaking decisions over periods specified by the regulators or over the

normal operating period of the assets and liabilities to which they relate

Based on prior and current rate treatment for such costs lntegrys Energy

Group believes it is probable that its utility
subsidiaries will continue to

recover from customers the regulatory assets described below

The following regulatory assets and liabilities were reflected in Integrys

Energy Groups Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December31

Millions 2010 2009 See Note

Regulatory assets

Amounts related to the Weston lightning strike WPS environmental remediation and

unamortized loss on reacquired debt at PGL and NSG are not earning return The carrying

costs of these regulatory assets are borne by lntegrys Energy Groups shareholders

As of December31 2010 lntegrys Energy Group had not
yet

made cash
expenditures for

$643.9 million of chese environmental remediation costs

Composed of
unrecognized benefit costs that existed prior to the PEC merger and the MERC

and MGU acquisitions

Pnor to WPS purchasing the Ge Pere
Energy Centet WPS had long-term power purchase

contract with the Ge Pere Energy Center that was accounted for as capital lease As

result of the purchase the capital lease obligation was reversed and the difference between

the
capital lease asset and the purchase price was recorded as regulatory asset WPS is

authorized recovery of this regulatory asset over 20-year period

IS

Represents amounts recoverable from and/or refundable to customers related to programs

designed to meet energy efficiency standards

Amounts for PGL and NSG are recovemd over the term of the replacement debt as authorized

by the ICC

In 2007 lightning strike caused significant damage to the Weston generating facility The

PSCW approved the deferral of the incremental fuel and
purchased power expenses as well

as the non-fuel
operating and maintenance expenditures incurred as result of the

outage

that were not covered by insurance WPS is authorized
recovery

of this regulatory asset over

six-year period

Represents amounts collected from customers to cover the future removal of
property plant

and equipment

Environmental remediation costs net of insurance recoveries 1112 653.0 674.9 15

Unrecognized pension and other postretirement benefit costs 544.5 570.2 17

Merger and acquisition related pension and other postretirement benefit costs 131 133.8 35.3

Decoupling 50.5 28.9 24

Asset retirement obligations 47.6 39.4 13

Derivatives 34.1 32.3 1h

De Pere Energy Center 31.0 33.4

Income tax related items 28.1 29.0 14

Energy costs receivable through rate adjustments 15.5 12.3 24

Conservation program costs 1l

15.3 17.4

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 1116
14.6 12.5

Weston lightning strike
11171

14.5 18.1

Other 30.5 52.3

Total $1613.0 $1556.0

Balance Sheet Presentation

Current 117.9 121.1

Long-term 1495.1 1434.9

Total $1613.0 $1556.0

Regulatory liabilities

Removal costs 278.1 246.6

Energy costs refundable through rate adjustments 51.8 79.6 24

Unrecognized pension and other postretirement benefit costs 20.0 23.5 17

Uncollectible expense 8.3 3.2 24

Decoupling 8.1 1.4 24

Enhanced Efficiency Program EEP 151 7.2 6.1

Derivatives 6.0 4.3 1h
Other 12.4 13.3

Total 391.9 378.0

Balance Sheet Presentation

Current 75.7 100.4

Long-term 316.2 277.6

Total 391.9 378.0
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NOTE 8INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES AT EQUITY METHOD

Investments in corporate joint ventures and other companies accounted for

under the equity method at December31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Millions 2010 2009

Other 1.1 1.4

Investments in affiliates at equity method $425.5 $405.8

Investments in affiliates accounted for under the equity method are included

in other long-term assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the equity

income is recorded in miscellaneous income on the Consolidated Statements

of Income lntegrys Energy Group is taxed on ATCs equity income due to the

tax how-through nature of ATCs business structure Accordingly Integrys Energy

Groups provision for income taxes includes taxes on ATCs equity income

ATC

Integrys Energy Groups electric transmission investment segment consists of

WPS Investments LLCs ownership interest in ATC which was approximately

34% at December 31 2010 ATC is for-profit transmission-only company

regulated by Federal Energy Regulatory Commission FERC ATC owns

maintains monitors and operates electric transmission assets in portions of

Wisconsin Michigan Minnesota and Illinois

The following table shows changes to Integrys Energy Groups investment in

ATC during the years
ended December31

Millions 2010 2009 2008

Balance at the beginning

$395.9 $346.9 $296.6of period

Add Equity in net income 77.6

Add Capital contributions

Less Dividends received 64.0 60.4 50.4

Balance at the end of period $416.3 $395.9 $346.9

The regulated electric utilities provide construction and other services to

and receive network transmission services from ATC The related party

transactions recorded by the regulated electric utilities in the years ended

December31 were as follows

Millions 2010 2009 2008

Total charges to ATC for

services and construction 14.0 $10.1 $12.8

Total costs for network

transmission service provided

byATC 103.0

Net amounts received from

advanced to ATC for

transmission interconnection
82.3

WRPC

WPS owns 50% of the stock of WRPC which operates two hydroelectric plants

and an oil-fired combustion turbine Two-thirds of the energy output of the

hydroelectric plants is sold to WPS and the remaining one-third is sold to

Wisconsin Power and Light The electric power from the combustion turbine is

sold in equal parts to WPS and Wisconsin Power and Light

WPS provides services to WRPC purchases energy from WRPC and receives

net proceeds from sales of energy into the MISO market from WRPC The

related party transactions recorded and net proceeds and dividends received

during the years ended December31 were as follows

Millions
2010 2009 2008

Revenues from services provided

to WRPC $0.6 $0.6 $0.8

4.5 2.6 5.8

Dividends received from WRPC 1.4 0.9 3.5

Financial Data

Combined financial data of Integrys Energy Groups significant equity method investments ATC and WRPC is included in the table below

Millions
2010 2009 2008

Income statement data
474.0

214.6

Operating expenses
67.1

Balance sheet data

Current assets
62.5

Noncurrent assets

Total assets
$2968.7

Current liabilities

Long-term debt
1175.0

Other noncurrent liabilities
88.5

Shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity
$2968.7

__________-
192.3

286.3 252.4

ATC $416.3 $395.9

Wisconsin River Power Company JRPC 8.1 8.5

90.7 87.8

6.8 34.1 34.6 Net proceeds from WRPC sales

of energy to MISO

75.3 66.1 Purchases of energy from WRPC 4.7 4.6 4.7

Of Integrys Energy Groups equity in net income disclosed below $1.0 million $1.0 million and $2.2 million is the pre-tax income related to

WPSs investment in WRPC in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Revenues

Other expense

Net income

564.1

256.8

Integrys Energy Groups equity in net income 78.6

85.7

528.7

235.7

221.6

77.7

76.3

2906.2

68.3

54.0

2785.5

429.0

$2839.5

52.5

2494.8

$2547.3

1276.2

1259.6

80.1

1213.5

$2839.5

1109.4

119.3

1066.2

$2547.3
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NOTE 9GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Integrys Energy Group had no changes to the carrying amount of goodwill for

the year ended December31 2010 Annual impairment tests were completed
at all of

Integrys Energy Group reporting units that
carry goodwill balance

in the second quarter of 2010 and no impairments resulted from

these tests The following table shows goodwill by business segment
as of January 12009

Gross goodwill balance

Natural Gas Integrys Energy
Millions Utility Segment Services Total

$933.5 $6.9

Accumulated impairment loss 6.5 6.5

Net goodwill balance $927.0 $6.9 $933.9

ntegrys Energy Group had the following changes to the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December31 2009

$940.4

Natural Gas Integrys Energy
Millions Utility Segment Services Total

Net goodwill recorded at December 31 2008 $927.0 $6.9 $933.9

Impairment loss 291.1 291.1

Goodwill allocated to businesses sold 0.3 0.3

Net goodwill recorded at December 31 2009 $635.9 $6.6 $642.5

The following table shows goodwill by business segment as of December 31

2010 2009

Natural Integrys Natural Integrys
Gas

Utility Energy Gas Utility Energy
Millions Segment Services Total Segment Services Total

Gross goodwill balance $933.5 $6.6 $940.1 $933.5 $6.6 $940.1

Accumulated impairment loss 297.6 297.6 297.6 297.6

Net goodwill balance $635.9 $6.6 $642.5 $635.9 $6.6 $642.5

In the first quarter of 2009 the combination of the decline in equity markets goodwill impairment loss in the amount of $6.5 million after tax was
as well as the increase in the expected weighted-average cost of capital recognized for NSG in the second quarter of 2008 The income approach

triggered an interim goodwill impairment analysis Based upon the results was used to estimate the fair value of NSG at April 2008 The goodwill
of this analysis Integrys Energy Group recorded noncash goodwill impairment recognized for NSG was due to decline in the estimated

impairment loss of $291.1 million $248.8 million after tax in the first quarter fair value of NSG caused
primarily by decrease in forecasted results

of 2009 all within the natural gas utility segment combination of the income as compared to the forecast at the time of the acquisition Worsening
approach and the market approach were used to estimate the fair values of PGL economic factors also contributed to the decline in fair value

NSG MERC and MGU The income approach was used to estimate the fair

value of Integrys Energy Services Key factors contributing to the impairment Identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill are included as

charge included disruptions in the global credit and equity markets and the component of other current and long-term assets and other current and
resulting increase in the weighted-average cost of capital used to value the natural long-term liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets as listed below
gas utility operations and the negative impact that the global decline in equity

markets had on the valuation of natural gas distribution companies in general

December31 2010 December31 2009

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Millions Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Amortized intangible assets liabilities

Customer-related $32.6 $21.8 $10.8 32.6 $18.3 $14.3

Natural gas and electric contract assets
23

57.1 55.0 2.1 71.4 60.5 10.9

Natural gas and electric contract liabilities 10.5 10.5 10.5 10.4 0.1
Renewableenergycredits5 2.5 2.5 3.4 2.1 1.3

Nonregulated easements 3.8 0.4 3.4 3.6 0.1 3.5

Emission allowances 1.9 0.2 1.7 2.1 0.2 1.9

Other 2.4 0.4 2.0 2.5 0.5 2.0

Total $89.8 $67.3 $22.5 $105.1 $71.3 $33.8

Unamortized intangible assets

MGU trade name 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2

Total intangible assets $95.0 $67.3 $27.7 $110.3 $71 .3 $39.0
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Intangible asset amortization expense was recorded as component of

depreciation and amortization expense in the Consolidated Statements of

Income This intangible asset amortization expense
excludes amortization

related to natural gas contracts electric contracts renewable energy

credits and emission allowances which are recorded as component

of nonregulated cost of fuel natural gas
and purchased power in the

Consolidated Statements of Income Amortization for the years ended

December31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $3.9 million $6.3 million and

$7.9 million respectively

Amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is estimated to be

Millions

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$4.7 million respectively at December 31 2009 The remaining weighted-average
amortization

period
for these intangible assets at December31 2010 was approximately three years

Used at Integrys Energy Services to comply with state Renewable Portfolio Standards and to

support
customer commitments

Relates to easements supporting
natural

gas pipeline at Integrys Energy Services The

easements are amortized on straight-line basis with remaining amortization period
of

approximatelyl3 years

Emission allowances do not have contractual term or expiration date

NOTE 10LEASES
Integrys Energy Group leases various property plant and equipment

Terms of the operating leases vary but generally require lntegrys Energy

Group to pay property taxes insurance premiums and maintenance costs

associated with the leased property Many of Integrys Energy Groups

leases contain one of the following options upon the end of the lease term

purchase the property at the current fair market value or exercise

renewal option asset forth in the lease agreement Rental expense

attributable to operating leases was $15.2 million $16.9 million and

$17.0 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Future minimum rental

obligations under non-cancelable operating leases are payable as follows

NOTE 11SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINES OF CREDIT

Commercial paper outstanding

Average discount rate on outstanding commercial paper

Borrowings outstanding under revolving credit facilities

Average interest rate on borrowings outstanding under

revolving credit facilities

Short-term notes payable outstanding
$10.0

Average interest rate on short-term notes payable outstanding
0.32%

2.41%

$10.0 $181.1

0.18% 3.40%

Includes customer relationship assets associated with both FECS former nonregulated retail

natural
gas

and electric operations and MERCS nonutility ServiceChoice business The

remaining weighted-average amortization period
for customer-related intangible assets at

December31 2010 was approximately seven years

Represents
the fair value of certain PEC natural

gas
and electric customer contracts acquired in

the February 2007 FEC merger that were not considered to be derivative instruments as well

as other electric customer contracts acquired in exchange for risk management assets

both short-term and long-term intangible assets related to customer contracts in the

amount of $0.9 million and $1.2 million respectively at December 31 2010 and $6.2 million and

Amortization related to the natural gas and electric contract intangible

assets and liabilities renewable energy credits and emission allowances

for the years ended December31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $4.9 million

$8.9 million and $34.4 million respectively

Amortization expense
related to these contracts for the next five fiscal

years is estimated to be

Millions

For year ending December31 2011 $3.3

For year ending December31 2012 2.4

Foryear ending December 312013 1.6

For year ending December 31 2014 1.4

For year ending December31 2015 1.3

For year ending December31 2011 $3.6

For year ending December31 2012 0.7

For year ending December31 2013 0.6

Foryear ending December 31 2014 0.5

For year ending December31 2015 0.2

Year ending December 31

Millions _______________________________________________________

2011 9.8

2012 8.9

2013 8.8

2014 4.9

2015 2.9

Later years
21.1

Total payments
$56.4

Integrys Energy Groups short-term borrowings consist of sales of commercial paper borrowings under revolving credit facilities and short-term notes

Amounts shown are as of December31

Millions except percentages
2010 2009 2008

$212.1 $552.9

0.52% 4.78%

$475.0
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Average amount of commercial paper outstanding

Average amount of borrowings outstanding under revolving credit facilities

Average amount of short-term notes payable outstanding

Revolving credit facility Integrys Energy GroupY

Revolving credit facility Integrys Energy Group

Revolving credit facility Integrys Energy Group

Revolving credit
facility Integrys Energy Group

Revolving credit
facility Integrys Energy Group

Revolving credit
facility WPS

Revolving credit
facility vVPS

Revolving credit
facility PEC

Revolving credit
facility PGL

Revolving credit facility PGL

Revolving short-term notes payable VPS

Total short-term credit capacity

Less

04/23/13

06/09/11

06/02/10

05/26/10

06/04/10

04/23/13

06/02/10

06/1 3/1

04/23/13

07/12/10

05/1 3/1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The table below presents Integrys Energy Groups average amount of short-term borrowings outstanding based on daily outstanding balances during the

years ended December31

Millions 2010 2009 2008

$66.9 $193.8 $305.7

114.5 166.8

10.0 48.0 34.3

Integrys Energy Group manages its
liquidity by maintaining adequate external financing commitments The information in the table below relates to

lntegrys Energy Groups short-term debt lines of credit and remaining available capacity as of December31

Millions Maturity 2010 2009

735.0

500.0 500.0

500.0

425.0

35.0

115.0

115.0

400.0 400.0

250.0

250.0

10.0 10.0

2010.0 2235.0

Letters of credit issued inside credit facilities 64.9 130.4

Loans outstanding under credit agreements and notes payable 10.0 10.0

Commercial paper outstanding 212.1

Available capacity under existing agreements $1935.1 $1882.5

In April2010 lntegrys Energy Group entered into new revolving credit agreement to provide

support for its commercial paper borrowing program

Provides
support

for Integrys Energy Groups commercial paper borrowing program

These facilities were replaced with new revolving credit agreements in April2010 Upon

entering into the new agreements the
maturing facilities were terminated

In April2010 WPS entered into new revolving credit agreement to provide support
for its

commercial paper borrowing program

At December31 2010 Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries were in

compliance with all financial covenants related to outstanding short-term

debt Integrys Energy Groups and certain subsidiaries revolving credit

agreements contain financial and other covenants including but not

Borrowings
under this agreement are guaranteed by Integrys Energy Group

In April2010 PGL entered into new revolving credit agreement to provide support
for its

commercial paper borrowing program

This Note is renewed
every six months and is used for general corporate purposes

limited to requirement to maintain debt to total capitalization ratio

not to exceed 65% excluding non-recourse debt Failure to meet these

covenants beyond applicable grace periods could result in accelerated due

dates and/or termination of the agreements
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NOTE 12LONG-TERM DEBT
December 31 December 31

Millions 2010 2009

WPS First Mortgage Bonds

WPS Senior Notes

UPPCO First Mortgage Bonds

PEC Unsecured Senior Note

0.1

Series

7.125%

Series

6.125%

4.875%

4.80%

3.95%

6.375%

5.65%

6.08%

5.55%

Series

9.32%

Series

6.90%

0.1

Year Due

2023

Year Due

2011

2012

2013

2013

2015

2017

2028

2036

Year Due

2021

Year Due

2011

Fair value hedge adjustment

PGL Fixed First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds
40

Senes Year Due

HH4.75% 2030

KK 5.00% 2033

LL 3.75% 2033

MM-24.00% 2010

NN-2 4.625% 2013

00 4.875% 2038

RR4.30% 2035

SS 7.00% 2013

TT8.00% 2018

UU4.63% 2019

W2.125% 2030

WW 2.625% 2033

PGL Adjustable First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds
56

Series ________

00
NSG First Mortgage Bonds

150.0 150.0

150.0 150.0

125.0 125.0

22.0 22.0

125.0 125.0

125.0 125.0

50.0 50.0

125.0 125.0

9.4 10.8

325.0 325.0

0.9 2.6

50.0

50.0 50.0

50.0

50.0

75.0 75.0

75.0 75.0

50.0 50.0

45.0 45.0

5.0 5.0

75.0 75.0

50.0

50.0

51.0 51.0

28.3 28.5

40.0 40.0

6.5 6.5

100.0 100.0

100.0 100.0

55.0 55.0

250.0

Adjustable after November 12018

Adjustable after June 12016

Mandatory interest reset date on July 12014

Mandatory interest reset date on August 2015

Series

5.00%

N-2 4.625%

07.00%

Integrys Energy Group Unsecured Senior Notes

Series

5.375%

7.27%

8.00%

4.17%

Year Due

2037

Year Due

2028

2013

2013

Year Due

2012

2014

2016

2020

Integrys Energy Group Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes

jes Year Due

6.11% 2066

Unsecured term loan due 2010 Integrys Energy Group
10

Other term loan

Total

Unamortized discount and premium on bonds and debt

Total debt 2638.5

Less current portion 476.9

Total long-term debt $2161.6

300.0

27.0

2640.2

1.7

300.0

65.6

27.0

2509.1

2.1

2511.2

116.5

$2394.7
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In As
gust 2011 WFSs 6.125% Senior Notes will mature As result the $150.0 million

balance of these notes was included in current
portion

of long-term debt on Integrys Energy

Groups Consolidated Balance Sheets at December31 2010

WPSs First Mortgage Bonds and Senior Notes are subject to the terms and conditions of

WPSs First Mortgage Indenture Under the terms of the Indenture substantially all property

owned by WFS is pledged as collateral for these outstanding debt securities All of these

debt securities
require

semi-annual payments of interest WPS Senior Notes become non-

collateralized if WFS retires all of its outstanding First Mortgage Bonds and no new mortgage

indenture is put in place

Under the terms of UFPCOs First Mortgage Indenture substantially all property owned by

UFFCO is pledged as collateral for its 9.32% First Mortgage Bonds Interest payments are

due semi-annually with sinking fund payment of $0.9 million due each November As

result this payment is included in the current portion of long-term debt on Integrys Energy

Groups Consolidated Balance Sheet at December31 2010 On May 32010 UFFCO repaid an

additional $0.5 million of this debt The final sinking fund payment due November 2021 will

completely retire the series

In January 2011 PECs 6.9% unsecured Senior Notes matured and the outstanding principal

balance was repaid As result the $325.0 million balance of these notes and the related fair

value adjustment and unamortized premium of $1.0 million were included in current portion

of long-term debt on Integrys Energy Groups Consolidated Balance Sheets at December31

2010 Under First Supplemental Indenture Integrys Energy Group fully and unconditionally

guaranteed on senior unsecured basis FECS obligations under these notes In January 2011

Integrys Energy Group settled the interest rate swap designated as fair value hedge associated

with $50.0 million of the senior notes See Note Risk Management Activities for

more information

In October2010 FGL issued $50.0 million of Series WW 2.625% First Mortgage Bonds due

February 2033 The bonds are subject to mandatory interest reset date on August
2015

The net proceeds from the issuance of these bonds were used to redeem FGLs $50 million

3.75% Series LL First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds

In August 2010 FGL issued $50.0 million of Series 2.125% First Mortgage Bonds due

March 12030 The bonds are subject to mandatory interest reset date on July 12014

The net proceeds from the issuance of these bonds were used to redeem PGLs $50 million

4.75% Series HH First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds

On March 12010 $50.0 million of FGLs Series MM-2 First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds

matured PGL repaid the outstanding principal balance on these 4.00% bonds

FGLs First Mortgage Bonds are subject to the terms and conditions of FGLs First Mortgage

Indenture dated January 1926 as supplemented Under the terms of the Indenture

substantially all property owned by FGL is pledged as collateral for these outstanding

debt securities

PGL has utilized certain First Mortgage Bonds to secure tax exempt interest rates The Illinois

Finance Authority and the City of Chicago have issued Tax Exempt Bonds and the proceeds

from the sale of these bonds were loaned to PGL In return PGL issued equal principal

amounts of certain collateralized First Mortgage Bonds

PGL has outstanding $51.0 million of Adjustable Rate Series 00 bonds due October

2037 which are currently in 35-day Auction Rate mode the interest rate is reset every

35
days through an auction process Since 2008 auctions have failed to receive sufficient

clearing
bids As result these bonds are priced each 35 days at the maximum auction rate

until such time successful auction occurs The maximum auction rate is determined based

on the lesser of the London Interbank Offered Rate or the Securities Industry and Financial

Markets Association Municipal Swap Index rate pius defined premium The year-to-date

weighted-average interest rate at December 31 2010 was 0.501% for these bonds

NSGs First Mortgage Bonds are subject to the terms and conditions of NSGs First Mortgage

Indenture dated April 1955 as supplemented Under the terms of the Indenture

substantially all
property

owned by NSG is pledged as collateral for these outstanding

debt securities

NSG has utilized First Mortgage Bonds to secure tax exempt interest rates The Illinois

Finance Authority has issued Tax Exempt Bonds and the proceeds from the sale of these

bonds were loaned to NSG In return NSG issued equal principal amounts of certain

collateralized First Mortgage Bonds

In November 2010 Integrys Energy Group issued $250.0 million of 4.17% 10-year

Unsecured Senior Notes due November 12020 The net
proceeds

from the issuance of the

Senior Notes were used to repay
short-term debt and

portion
of long-term debt maturing

in January 2011 as well as for general corporate purposes Integrys Energy Group also

terminated two interest rate swaps that had been designated as cash flow hedges associated

with the anticipated issuance of $100.0 million of the senior notes that were issued in

November 2010 See Note Risk Management Activities for more information

These Integrys Energy Group Junior Subordinated Notes are considered hybrid instruments

with combination of debt and
equity

characteristics Integrys Energy Group has agreed

in
replacement capital covenant dated as of December 2010 with the holders of

Integrys Energy Groups 4.17% Unsecured Senior Notes due November 2020 that it will

not redeem or repurchase more than 10% of the Junior Subordinated Notes on or prior to

December 2036 unless subject to certain limitations during the 360 days prior to the

date of that redemption or repurchase Integrys Energy Group has received specified

amount of
proceeds

from the sale of
qualifying

securities that have equity-like characteristics

that are the same as or more equity-like than the
applicable

characteristics of the Junior

Subordinated Notes

On May 13 2010 Integrys Energy Group repaid
the outstanding principal balance of its

maturing $65.6 million unsecured term loan

In April2001
the

Schuylkill County
Industrial Development Authority issued $27.0 million of

Refunding Tax Exempt Bonds The proceeds
from the bonds were loaned to WFS Westwood

Generation LLC subsidiary of Integrys Energy Services This loan is repaid by WPS Westwood

Generation to Schuylkill County
Industrial Development Authority with monthly interest only

payments and has floating interest rate that is reset weekly At December31 2010 the interest

rate was 4.33% The loan is to be
repaid by April2021 In January 2011 Integrys Energy

Group replaced its guarantee to provide
sufficient funds to pay the loan and the related

obligations and indemnities on WFS Westwood Generations obligation with new standby

letter of credit See Note 16 Guarantees for additional information

At December31 2010 lntegrys Energy Group and each of its subsidiaries

were in compliance with all respective financial covenants related to

outstanding long-term debt Integrys Energy Groups and certain

subsidiaries long-term debt obligations contain covenants related to

payment of principal and interest when due and various financial reporting

obligations In addition certain long-term debt obligations contain financial

and other covenants including but not limited to requirement to maintain

debt to total capitalization ratio not to exceed 65% Failure to comply with

these covenants could result in an event of default which if not cured or

waived could result in the acceleration of outstanding debt obligations

schedule of all principal debt payment amounts related to bond

maturities is as follows

Year ending December 31

Millions

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

4769

2509

314.4

100.9

125.9

Later years 13712

Total payments $2640.2
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NOTE 13ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The utility segments have asset retirement obligations primarily related to removal of natural gas distribution pipe including asbestos and PCBs
asbestos abatement at certain generation facilities office buildings and service centers dismantling wind generation projects disposal of PCB

contaminated transformers and closure of fly-ash landfills at certain generation facilities The utilities establish regulatory assets and liabilities to

record the differences between ongoing expense recognition under the Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations accounting rules and the

ratemaking practices for retirement costs authorized by the applicable regulators

The following table shows changes to Integrys Energy Groups asset retirement obligations through December31 2010

Integrys Energy

Millions Utilities Services Total

Asset retirement obligations at December 31 2007 $139.5 $0.7 140.2

Accretion 7.8 7.8

Additions and revisions to estimated cash flows 31.7 31.7

Asset retirement obligations transferred in sales 0.1 0.5 0.6

Asset retirement obligations at December31 2008 178.9 0.2 179.1

Accretion 9.6 0.1 9.7

Additions and revisions to estimated cash flows 6.3 6.3

Asset retirement obligations at December 31 2009 194.8 0.3 195.1

Accretion 11.7 11.7

Asset retirement obligations transferred in sales 0.3 0.3

Revisions to estimated cash flows 120.5 i3i 120.5

Settlements 6.1 6.1

Asset retirement obligations at December 31 2010 $320.9 $320.9

iii This amount includes $6.3 million asset retirement obligation related to the WPS Revisions were made to estimated cash flows related to asset retirement obligations for natural

99-megawatt
crane Creek wind generation project

that became operational in the fourth gas distribution pipes at PGL due to changes in the average remaining service life of distribution

quarter
of 2009 All other adjustments netted to an insignificant amount pipe based upon an updated depreciation study as well as an increase in estimated costs

121 These amounts were classified as held for sale as they related to the sale of generation assets

in Northern Maine which closed in the first quarter of 2010
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NOTE 14INCOME TAXES

Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities

Certain temporary book to tax differences for which the offsethng amount is recorded as regulatory asset or liability are presented in the table below as

net amounts consistent with regulatory treatment The principal components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities recognized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets as of December31 were as follows

Millions 2010 2009

Deferred income tax assets

Tax credit carryforwards

Employee benefits

Price risk management

State capital and operating loss carryforwards

108.6 90.7

40.2 96.0

32.3 55.4

14.7 16.0

Certain amounts have been retrospectively adjusted due to change in accounting poicy in 2010 See Note lid Change in Accounting Policy for more information

In December 2010 Integrys Energy Group received consent from the United

States Internal Revenue Service IRS to change its tax accounting method

related to capitalization of overhead costs This allows Integrys Energy

Group to currently deduct overhead costs that were previously capitalized

to the basis of certain assets for tax purposes Also during 2010 the federal

government passed legislation providing for bonus tax depreciation Both of

these items generated significant
additional tax deductions which drove the

$232.8 million increase in net deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred tax credit carryforwards at December31 2010 included

$77.3 million of alternative minimum tax credits related to tax credits

available under Section 45K formerly Section 29 of the Internal Revenue

Code which can be carried forward indefinitely Other deferred tax

credit carryforwards include $17.1 million of general business credits

which have carryforward period of 20 years with the majority of the

general business credits to expire in 2028 and $14.2 million of foreign tax

credits which have carryforward period of 10 years with the majority of

the foreign tax credits to expire in 2020

Carryforward periods for state capital and operating losses vary In

the majority of states in which Integrys Energy Group operates the

carryforward period is 15 years or more with the majority of the state

capital and operating losses beginning to expire in 2013 Valuation

allowances are established for certain state operating losses capital
loss

carryforwards and federal tax credits based on the projected ability
of

Integrys Energy Group to realize the benefit of these losses in the future

Other 54.5 32.4

Total deferred income tax assets 250.3 $290.5

Valuation allowance 8.2 7.4

Net deferred income tax assets 242.1 $283.1

Deferred income tax liabilities

Plant-related 955.0 $751.4

Regulatory deferrals 64.3 76.1

Deferred income 15.6 15.6

Total deferred income tax liabilities $1034.9 $843.1

Consolidated Balance Sheet presentation

Current deferred income tax assets 67.7 92.9

Long-term deferred income tax liabilities 860.5 652.9

Net deferred income tax liabilities 792.8 $560.0
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table presents reconciliation of federal income taxes to the provision for income taxes reported in the Consolidated Statements of

Income for the periods ended December31 which is calculated by multiplying the statutory federal income tax rate by book income before federal

income tax

Certain amounts have been retrospectively adjusted
due to change in accounting policy in 2010 See Note 1d change in Accounting Policy for more information

Foreign income before taxes was $10.6 million in 2010 $0.3 million

in 2009 and $12.0 million in 2008

As the related temporary differences reverse the regulated utilities are

prospectively refunding taxes to or collecting taxes from customers for

which deferred taxes were recorded in prior years at rates different than

current rates The net regulatory asset for these and other regulatory

tax effects totaled $16.2 million and $19.3 million at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively

Integrys Energy Group had accrued interest of $6.9 million and accrued

penalties of $3.0 million related to unrecognized tax benefits at

December 31 2010 Integrys Energy Group had accrued interest of

$8.0 million and accrued penalties of $3.0 million related to

unrecognized tax benefits at December31 2009

2010

Millions except for percentages Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount

2009k 2008

Statutory federal income tax 35.0% $130.1 35.0% 4.7 35.0% $61.6

State income taxes net 5.1 19.1 105.2 14.1 68 12.0

Benefits and compensation 1.3 5.0 26.9 3.6 2.8 4.9

Plant-related 0.1 12.7 1.7

Goodwill 486.6 65.2 1.3 2.3

Unrecognized tax benefits and interest 0.2 0.9 12.7 1.7 0.1

Investment tax credit amortization 0.5 1.8 194 2.6 1.0 1.8

Federal tax credits 1.8 6.7 8.2 1.1 0.3 0.6

Other differences net 1.0 3.3 35.9 48 4.3 7.6

Effective income tax 39.9% $148.2 624.6% $83.7 34.7% $61.1

Current provision

Federal 83.7 1.9 $10.5

State 10.8 141 3.1

Foreign 6.8 7.1 1.9

Total current provision 87.7 23.1 11.7

Deferred provision 237.1 53.5 63.6

Valuation allowance 0.8 5.1

Net operating loss carryforwards 0.2 1.4 1.8

Interest 0.3 3.7 0.1

Unrecognized tax benefits 0.6 2.0 0.2

Investment tax credit net 0.9 .1 10.5

Penalties 0.4

Total provision for income taxes $148.2 $83.7 $61.1
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Unrecognized Tax Benefits

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Millions 2010 2009 2008

Balance at January

Increase related to tax positions taken in prior years

Decrease related to tax positions taken in prior years

Increase related to tax positions taken in current year

$31.8 $22.4 $10.0

9.2 10.2 23.8

10.6 0.2

Decrease related to tax positions taken in current year 0.1

Decrease related to settlements 0.3

Decrease related to lapse of statutes 0.2

Balance at December 31 $30.4 $31.8 $22.4

At December 31 2010 recognition in subsequent periods of $6.9 million

of unrecognized tax benefits related to continuing operations could affect

lntegrys Energy Groups effective tax rate Also recognition in subsequent

periods of $9.5 million of unrecognized tax benefits related to discontinued

operations could affect lntegrys Energy Groups effective tax rate

Subsidiaries of Integrys Energy Group file income tax returns in the

United States federal jurisdiction in various United States state and local

jurisdictions and in Canada Subject to the major exceptions listed

below Integrys Energy Group is no longer subject to United States

federal state and local or foreign income tax examinations by tax

authorities for years prior to 2005

IRS PEC and consolidated subsidiaries have open examinations for

the September 30 2004 tax year

Illinois Department of Revenue PEC and consolidated subsidiaries

have open examinations for the September 30 2003 and

September 30 2004 tax years

Oregon Department of Revenue WPS Power Development has

open examinations for the 2002 2003 and 2004 tax years

In 2010 Integrys Energy Group closed the following examinations

IRS lntegrys Energy Services subsidiary Synfuel Solutions LLC for the

tax years 2005 and 2006

Integrys Energy Group has the following open examinations

IRS PEC and consolidated subsidiaries have open examinations for

the September 30 2004 through December31 2006 tax years

IRS Integrys Energy Group and consolidated subsidiaries have open

examinations for the 2006 through 2008 tax years along with the

February 21 2007 PEC short year

IRS An Integrys Energy Services subsidiary Soltage-ADC 360

Jamesburg LLC has an open examination for the 2008 tax year

Illinois Department of Revenue PEC and consolidated subsidiaries

have open examinations for the September 30 2003 through

December31 2006 tax years

Illinois Department of Revenue Integrys Energy Group and

consolidated subsidiaries have an open examination for the

2007 tax year

Kentucky Department of Revenue Integrys Energy Group has open

examinations for the 2005 through 2008 tax years

Mississippi Department of Revenue PEC PE and PEP Holdings LLC

have open examinations for the September 30 2006 December31 2006

and December 31 2007 tax years

New Hampshire Department of Revenue Integrys Energy Group has

open examinations for the 2007 and 2008 tax years

New York State Department of Revenue Integrys Energy Services and

WPS Power Development have open examinations for the 2004 and

2005 tax years Integrys Energy Group and Integrys Energy Services

have open examinations for the 2007 and 2008 tax years

Oregon Department of Revenue Integrys Energy Services has an

open examination for the 2005 tax year WPS Power Development has

open examinations for the 2002 2003 and 2004 tax years

Pennsylvania Department of Revenue Integrys Energy Services has

open examinations for the 2006 and 2007 tax years

Texas Comptroller Integrys Energy Group has an open examination

for the 2008 tax year

In the next 12 months it is reasonably possible that lntegrys Energy

Group and its subsidiaries will settle their
open examinations in multiple

taxing jurisdictions related to tax years prior to 2009 resulting in

decrease in unrecognized tax benefits of as much as $17.5 million

7.7

3.7
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NOTE 15COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commodity Purchase Obligations and Purchase

Order Commitments

Integrys Energy Group routinely enters into long-term purchase and sale

commitments that have various quantity requirements and durations

The regulated natural gas utilities have obligations to distribute and

sell natural gas to their customers and the regulated electric utilities

have obligations to distribute and sell electricity to their customers The

utilities expect to recover costs related to these obligations in future

customer rates Additionally the majority of the energy supply contracts

entered into by Integrys Energy Services are to meet its obligations to

deliver energy to customers

The obligations described below were as of December31 2010

The electric utility segment had obligations of $185.0 million related to

coal supply and transportation that extend through 2016 obligations

of $1166.8 million for either capacity or energy related to purchased

power that extend through 2030 and obligations of $9.8 million for

other commodities that extend through 2013

The natural gas utility segment had obligations of $1110.9 million

related to natural
gas supply and transportation contracts that extend

through 2028

Integrys Energy Services had obligations of $356.3 million related to

energy
and natural

gas supply contracts that extend through 2019

The majority of these obligations end by 2013 with obligations of

$10.4 million extending beyond 2013

Integrys Energy Group also had commitments of $233.1 million in the

form of purchase orders issued to various vendors that relate to normal

business operations including construction projects

Environmental

Clean Air Act New Source Review Issues

Weston and Pulliam Plants

In 2009 the United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA issued

Notice of Violation NOV to WPS alleging violations of the Clean

Air Acts CAA New Source Review requirements pertaining to certain

projects undertaken at the Weston and Pulliam generation stations

from 1994 to 2009 WPS met with the EPA and exchanged proposals

related to possible resolution lntegrys Energy Group continues to

review the allegations but is currently unable to predict the impact on its

consolidated financial statements

On May 20 2010 WPS received from the Sierra Club Notice of Intent

NOl to file civil lawsuit based on allegations and violations of the

CAA at Weston and Pulliam WPS entered into Standstill Agreement

with the Sierra Club and has had discussions related to possible

resolution with the Sierra Club in conjunction with the EPA However

Integrys Energy Group is currently unable to predict the impact on its

consolidated financial statements

Columbia Plant

In 2009 WPS along with its co-owners received from the Sierra Club an

NOl to file civil lawsuit based on allegations that major modifications

were made at the Columbia generation station without complying

with the CAA The allegations suggest that Prevention of Significant

Deterioration PSD permits that imposed Best Available Control

Technology BACT limits on emissions from the
facility

should have been

obtained for Columbia

In September 2010 the Sierra Club filed suit against Wisconsin Power

and Light CPL the operator of the Columbia plant in the Federal

District Court for the Western District of Wisconsin alleging that

WPL violated the CAA with respect to its operation of the Columbia

generation station and the Nelson Dewey generation station The

parties have entered into confidentiality agreement to allow the Sierra

Club to participate in settlement negotiations with the EPA WPL and

the other co-owners of the Columbia and Edgewater plants as discussed

below Integrys Energy Group is currently unable to predict the impact on

its consolidated financial statements

Edgewater Plant

In 2009 WPS along with its co-owners received from the Sierra Club

copy of an NOI to file civil lawsuit against the EPA due to the

EPAS failure to take actions against the co-owners and operator of

the Edgewater generation station based upon allegations of failure

to comply with the CAA The allegations suggest that PSD permits

that imposed BACT limits on emissions from the facility should have

been obtained for Edgewater WPL is the operator of Edgewater

Integrys Energy Group is currently unable to predict the impact on its

consolidated financial statements

Also in 2009 WPS along with its co-owners received from the Sierra

Club an NOl to file civil lawsuit based on allegations that major

modifications were made at the Edgewater generation station without

complying with the CAA The allegations suggest that PSD permits that

imposed BACT limits on emissions from the facility should have been

obtained for Edgewater

In September 2010 the Sierra Club filed suit against WPL in the

Federal District Court forthe Eastern District of Wisconsin alleging

that WPL violated the CAA with respect to its operation of the

Edgewater generation station The complaint was not served on WPL
until December 2010 The parties have entered into confidentiality

agreement to allow Sierra Club to participate in settlement negotiations

with the EPA WPL and the other co-owners of the Columbia and

Edgewater plants as discussed below Integrys Energy Group is currently

unable to predict the impact on its consolidated financial statements

Columbia and Edgewater Plants

In 2009 the EPA issued an NOV to WPL relative to its Nelson Dewey

Plant and to WPL and the other joint owners of the Columbia and

Edgewater generation stations alleging violations of the CANs New

Source Review requirements pertaining to certain projects undertaken at

those plants WPL is the operator of these plants and along with the

joint owners exchanged proposals with the EPA related to possible

resolution Integrys Energy Group is currently unable to predict the

impact on its consolidated financial statements

EPA Settlements with Other Utilities

In response to the EPAS CMenforcement initiative several utilities

elected to settle with the EPA while others are in litigation The fines and

penalties including the cost of supplemental environmental projects

associated with settlements involving comparably-sized facilities to

Weston and Pulliam range
between $7 million and $30 million The

regulatory interpretations upon which the lawsuits or settlements are

based may change depending on future court decisions made in the

pending litigation
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If it were determined that historic projects at the Weston Pulliam Columbia

and Edgewater generation stations required either state or federal CAA

permit WPS may under the applicable statutes be required to

shut down any unit found to be operating in non-compliance

install additional pollution control equipment and/or impose emission

limitations

pay fine and/or

conduct supplemental environmental project

In addition under the CAA citizen groups may pursue claim

Weston Air Permits

Sierra Club Weston Construction Permit Petitions

From 2004 to 2009 the Sierra Club filed various petitions related to the

construction permit issued for the Weston generation station all of

which were denied On June 242010 the Wisconsin Court of Appeals

affirmed the Weston air permit but directed the Wisconsin Department

of Natural Resources c\NDNR to reopen
the permit to establish specific

visibility limits In July 2010 the WDNR WPS and the Sierra Club filed

Petitions for Review with the Wisconsin Supreme Court WPS and the

WDNR objected to the Sierra Clubs Petition To date no action has

been taken by the Wisconsin Supreme Court Integrys Energy Group

is currently unsure how the Wisconsin Supreme Court will respond

WPS believes that it has substantial defenses to the Sierra Clubs

challenges Until the Sierra Clubs challenges are resolved and the revised

permit is finalized Integrys Energy Group will not be able to make

final determination of the probable impact on future costs if any of

compliance with any changes to the air permit

Weston Title Permit

On November 29 2010 the WDNR provided draft revised permit

WPS objected to proposed changes in the mercury limits and the

requirements on the boiler as beyond the authority of the WDNR and

provided technical comments WPS and the WDNR continue to meet to

resolve these issues

WDNR Issued NOVs

Since 2008 WPS has received three NOVs from the WDNR alleging various

violations of the air permits for Weston Weston and Weston and one

NOV for clerical error involving pages missing from quarterly report

for Weston Corrective actions have been taken for the events in the four

NOVs Discussions with the WDNR on the severity classification of the

events continue While management believes it is likely
that the WDNR

will refer the NOVs to the state Justice Department for enforcement

management does not believe that these matters will have material

adverse impact on the consolidated financial statements of lntegrys

Energy Group

Other

In 2006 it came to the attention of WPS that previous ambient air quality

computer modeling done by the WDNR for the Weston facility and other

nearby air sources did not take into account the emissions from the

existing Weston facility for purposes of evaluating air quality increment

consumption under the required PSD WPS believes it completed

corrective measures to address any identified modeling issues and

anticipates issuance of revised Title permit that will resolve this issue

Integrys Energy Group currently is not able to make final determination

of the probable cost impact of this issue if any

Pulliam Air Permit

The renewal of the Title air permit for the Pulliam generation station

was issued by the WDNR in April 2009 On June 28 2010 the EPA issued

an order directing the WDNR to respond to the comments raised by the

Sierra Club in its Petition objecting to the Title permit which was filed

in June 2009 Integrys Energy Group has been working with the WDNR

to address the order

WPS also challenged the Title permit in contested case proceeding

and Petition for Judicial Review The Petition was dismissed in an order

remanding the matter to the WDNR and on February 11 2011 the

WDNR granted contested case proceeding on the issues raised by

WPS which included averaging times in the emission limits in the permit

WPS will participate in the contested case proceeding

On October 22 2010 WPS received from the Sierra Club copy of an

NOI to file civil lawsuit against the EPA based on what the Sierra Club

alleges to be the EPAS unreasonable delay in performing its duties

related to the grant or denial of the Title permit Integrys Energy

Group is reviewing all these allegations but is currently unable to predict

the impact on its consolidated financial statements

Columbia Air Permit

In 2009 the EPA issued an order objecting to the Title air permit

renewal issued by the WDNR for the Columbia generation station The

order determined that project in 2006 should have been permitted as

major modification The order directed the WDNR to resolve the EPAs

objections within 90 days and terminate modify or revoke and reissue

the Title permit accordingly

On July 14 2010 WPS along with its co-owners received from the Sierra

Club copy of an NOI to file civil lawsuit against the EPA based on what

the Sierra Club alleges to be the EPAS unreasonable delay in performing

its duties related to the granting or denial of the Title permit The Sierra

Club alleges that the EPA failed to take actions against the WDNR for its

failure to take action regarding the Title permit as ordered by the EPA

On September 22 2010 the WDNR issued draft construction permit

and draft revised Title permit The co-owners submitted comments

on these draft permits In correspondence dated November 24 2010

the EPA notified the WDNR that the EPA does not believe the WDNRs

proposal is responsive to the order The letter requested response

from the WDNR On January 24 2011 the WDNR issued letter stating

that upon review of the submitted public comments the WDNR has

determined not to issue the draft construction permit and draft revised

Title permit that were proposed to respond to the EPA/s order WPS

is currently discussing potential responses to the WDNRs action with

WPL While WPS believes the previously issued air permit is still valid

WPS is currently unable to predict the outcome of this matter and the

impact on its consolidated financial statements

Mercury and Interstate Air Quality Rules

Mercury

The State of Wisconsins mercury rule Chapter NR 446 requires 40%

reduction from the 2002 through 2004 baseline mercury emissions in

Phase beginning January 2010 through the end of 2014 In Phase II

which begins in 2015 electric generating units above 150 megawatts

will be required to reduce mercury emissions by 90% Reductions can

be phased in and the 90% target delayed until 2021 if additional sulfur

dioxide and nitrogen oxide reductions are implemented By 2015 electric

generating units above 25 megawatts but less than 150 megawatts must

reduce their mercury emissions to level defined by the BACT rule

64 INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP INC 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of December31 2010 WPS estimates capital costs of approximately

$19.0 million which includes estimates for both wholly owned and jointly

owned plants to achieve the required Phase and Phase II reductions

The capital costs are expected to be recovered in future rate cases

Because of the vacatur of the federal mercury control and monitoring rule

in 2008 the EPA is reviewing options for new rulemaking to address

hazardous air pollutants including mercury and is expected to issue

draft rule in 2011

Sulfur Dioxide and Nitrogen Oxide

The EPA issued the Clean Air Interstate Rule CAIR in 2005 in order to

reduce sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions from utility boilers

located in 29 states including Wisconsin Michigan Pennsylvania and

New York Subsequently the United States Court of Appeals Court of

Appeals issued decision vacating CAIR which the EPA appealed and

in 2008 the Court of Appeals reinstated CAIR The Court of Appeals

directed the EPA to address the deficiencies noted in its ruling to vacate

CAIR and the EPA issued draft CAIR replacement rule for comment

on July 62010 The State of Wisconsins rule to implement CAIR which

incorporates the cap and trade approach was forwarded to the EPA for

final review

As result of the Court of Appeals decision CAIR was in place for

2010 WPS has not acquired any nitrogen oxide allowances for vintage

years beyond 2010 other than those allocated by the EPA and does not

expect any material impact as result of the vacatur and subsequent

reinstatement of CAIR Integrys Energy Group will continue to evaluate

the impacts of any subsequent rulemaking

Due to the reinstatement of CAIR units affected by the Best Available

Retrofit Technology BARD rule are considered in compliance with BART

for sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions Although particulate

emissions also contribute to visibility impairment the WDNRs modeling

has shown the impairment to be so insignificant that additional capital

expenditures on controls are not warranted

For planning purposes it is still assumed that additional sulfur dioxide

and nitrogen oxide controls will be needed on existing units The

installation of any controls will need to be scheduled as part of WPSs

long-term maintenance plan for its existing units As such controls may
need to be installed before 2015 On preliminary basis and assuming

controls are still required WPS estimates capital costs of $437.5 million

which includes estimates for both wholly owned and WPSs share of

jointly
owned plants in order to meet an assumed 2015 compliance date

This estimate is based on costs of current control technology and current

information regarding the final state and federal rules The capital costs

are anticipated to be recovered in future rate cases

Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation

Integrys Energy Groups natural gas utilities their predecessors and

certain former affiliates operated facilities in the past at multiple sites

for the purpose of manufacturing and storing manufactured gas In

connection with manufacturing and storing manufactured gas waste

materials were produced that may have resulted in soil and groundwater

contamination at these sites Under certain laws and regulations relating

to the protection of the environment Integrys Energy Groups natural gas

utilities are required to undertake remedial action with respect to some of

these materials and they are coordinating the investigation and cleanup

of the sites subject to EPA jurisdiction under what is called multi-site

program
This

program involves prioritizing
the work to be done at the

sites preparation and approval of documents common to all of the sites

and utilization of consistent approach in selecting remedies

Integrys Energy Groups natural gas utilities are responsible for the

environmental remediation of 54 sites of which 20 have been transferred

to the EPA Superfund Alternative Sites Program Under the EPAS

program the remedy decisions at these sites will be based on risk-based

criteria typically used at Superfund sites As of December 31 2010

Integrys Energy Group estimated and accrued for $642.5 million of future

undiscounted investigation and cleanup costs for all sites Integrys

Energy Group may adjust these estimates in the future contingent upon

remedial technology regulatory requirements remedy determinations

and any claims of natural resource damages As of December 31 2010

Integrys Energy Group recorded regulatory asset of $651.9 million net

of insurance recoveries received of $59.9 million related to the expected

recovery of both cash expenditures and estimated future expenditures

As of December31 2010 cash expenditures for environmental

remediation not yet recovered in rates were $9.4 million

The EPA identified NSG the Outboard Marine Corporation General Motors

Corporation GM and certain other parties as potentially responsible parties

PRPs at the Waukegan Coke Plant Site located in Waukegan Illinois NSG

and the other PRPs are parties to consent decree that requires NSG and

GM jointly
and severally to perform the remedial action and establish

and maintain financial assurance of $21.0 million NSG met its financial

assurance requirement in the form of net worth test while GM met the

requirement by providing performance and payment bond in favor of

the EPA As result of the GM bankruptcy the EPA was granted access

to the bond funds which are expected to supports significant portion of

GMS liability The potential exposure related to the GM bankruptcy that

is not expected to be covered by the bond proceeds has been reflected

in the accrual identified above

Management believes that any costs incurred for environmental activities

relating to former manufactured gas plant operations that are not

recoverable through contributions from other entities or from insurance

carriers have been prudently incurred and are therefore recoverable

through rates for WPS MGU PGL and NSG Accordingly management

believes that these costs will not have material adverse effect on the

consolidated financial statements of Integrys Energy Group However

any changes in the approved rate mechanisms for recovery of these

costs or any adverse conclusions by the various regulatory commissions

with respect to the prudence of costs actually incurred could materially

adversely affect rate recovery of such costs

Greenhouse Gases

Integrys Energy Group is evaluating both the technical and cost

implications that may result from future state regional or federal

greenhouse gas regulatory programs This evaluation indicates it

is probable that any regulatory program which caps emissions or

imposes carbon tax will increase costs for Integrys Energy Group and

its customers The greatest impact is likely to be on fossil fuel-fired

generation with less significant impact on natural gas storage and

distribution operations Efforts are underway within the utility industry to

find feasible method for capturing carbon dioxide from pulverized coal-

fired units and to develop cleaner
ways to burn coal The use of alternate

fuels is also being explored by the industry but there are many cost and

availability issues

The EPA began regulating greenhouse gas emissions under the CAA in

January 2011 by applying the BACT requirements associated with the

New Source Review program to new and modified larger greenhouse

gas emitters Technology to remove and sequester greenhouse gas

emissions is not commercially available at scale hence the EPA issued

guidance that defines BACT in terms of improvements in energy
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efficiency as opposed to relying on pollution control equipment In

December 2010 the EPA announced its intent to develop new source

performance standards for greenhouse gas emissions for new and

modified as well as existing electric utility steam generating units The

EPA plans to propose standards in 2011 and finalize standards in 2012

Efforts have been initiated to develop state and regional greenhouse gas

programs to create federal legislation to limit carbon dioxide emissions

and to create national or state renewable portfolio standards Currently

there is no applicable federal or state legislation pending that specifically

addresses greenhouse gas emissions

risk exists that such legislation or regulation will increase the cost

of energy However Integrys Energy Group believes the capital

expenditures being made at its generation units are appropriate

under any reasonable mandatory greenhouse gas program and that

future expenditures related to control of greenhouse gas emissions or

renewable portfolio standards by its regulated electric utilities will be

recoverable in rates Integrys Energy Group will continue to monitor

and manage potential risks and opportunities associated with future

greenhouse gas legislative or regulatory actions

Natural Gas Charge Reconciliation Proceedings

and Related Matters

The ICC conducts annual proceedings regarding the reconciliation

of revenues from the natural gas charge and related natural gas costs

Gas Charge in which interested parties review the accuracy of the

reconciliation of revenues and costs and the prudence of natural gas

costs recovered through the Gas Charge If the ICC finds that the

reconciliation was inaccurate or any
natural gas costs were imprudently

NOTE 16GUARANTEES

As part of normal business Integrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries

enter into various guarantees providing financial or performance

assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries These

guarantees are entered into primarily to support or enhance the

creditworthiness otherwise attributed to subsidiary on stand

alone basis thereby facilitating
the extension of sufficient credit to

accomplish the subsidiaries intended commercial purposes

incurred the ICC will order PGL and NSG to refund the affected amount

to customers through subsequent Gas Charge filings

In 2006 the ICC adopted settlement agreement for PGLs 2001 through

2004 Gas Charge reconciliation proceedings in which PEC agreed to

provide the Illinois Attorney General AG and the City of Chicago up

to $30.0 million for conservation and weatherization programs for which

PGL and NSG may not seek rate recovery The balance that remained

unpaid as of December31 2010 was $5.2 million and was recorded in

other current liabilities

The ICC issued an order on November21 2010 for PGLs 2006 Gas

Charge reconciliation proceeding adopting an uncontested disallowance

of $0.6 million

PGL and NSG are not aware of any significant issues related to their open

Gas Charge reconciliation proceedings for the periods 2007 2008 2009

and 2010

Class Action

In 2004 class action suit based on alleged facts underlying PGL and

NSGs 2001 through 2004 Gas Charge cases settled in 2006 was filed

against FEC PGL and NSG by customers of PGL and NSG PGL and NSG

were subsequently dismissed as defendants for alleged violations of the

Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act claiming that

FEC acted in concert with others to commit tortious act The plaintiffs

sought disgorgement and punitive damages The parties entered into

settlement agreement that became final as of December31 2010 and the

class releases are now effective The full effect of the settlement has been

reflected in the consolidated financial statements as of December 312010

Most of the guarantees issued by Integrys Energy Group consist

of guarantees of subsidiaries obligations or performance by the

subsidiaries under certain contractual commitments As such these

guarantees are excluded from the recognition and measurement

requirements but are subject to the disclosure requirements of the

Guarantees Topic of the FASB ASC

The following table shows outstanding guarantees at

Integrys Energy Group

Expiration

Total Amounts Less

Committed at Than to Over

Millions December 31 2010 Year Years Years

Consists of parental guarantees of $423.9 million to support
the business operations of lntegrys

Energy Services $152.2 million and $66.8 million respectively
related to natural

gas supply at

MERC and MGU and $5.0 million at both PEC and lBS and $2.0 million at UPPCO to support

business operations These guarantees are not reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

At Integrys Energy Groups request financial institutions have issued standby letters of credit

for the benefit of third parties
that have extended credit to lntegrys Energy Group This

amount consists of $63.5 million issued to support lntegys Energy Services operations and

$2.7 million related to letters of credit issued to support UPPCO WPS MGU NSG MERC and

PGL operations These amounts are not reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Primarily for workers compensation coverage and obtaining various licenses permits and

rights of way Surety bonds are not included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consists of $35.0 million related to the sale agreement for
lntegrys Energy Services

United States wholesale electric marketing and trading business which included number

of customary representations warranties and indemnification provisions
In addition for

$410.9 $21.1 $222.9

two-year period counterparty payment default risk was retained with approximately 50% of

the counterparties associated with the commodity contracts transferred in this transaction

An insignificant liability was recorded related to the fair value of this counterparty payment

default risk $10.0 million related to the sale agreement for lntegrys Energy Services Texas

retail marketing business which included number of
customary representations warranties

and indemnification provisions An insignificant liability was recorded related to the possible

imposition of additional miscellaneous gross receipts tax in the event of change in law

or interpretation of the tax law $5.0 million related to an environmental indemnification

provided by Integrys Energy Services as part of the sale of the Stoneman generation facility

under which Integrys Energy Group expects
that the likelihood of required performance is

remote This amount is not reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and $7.3 million

related to other indemnifications and workers compensation coverage
This amount is not

reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Guarantees supporting commodity transactions

of subsidiaries $654.9

Standby letters of credit 66.2

Surety bonds 12.7

Other guarantees
57.3 35.0 22.3

Total guarantees $791.1 $486.5 $59.4 $245.2

63.4 2.8

12.2 0.5

66 INTEGRYS ENERGY GROUP INc 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Integrys Energy Group has provided total
parental guarantees of

$566.6 million on behalf of
Integrys Energy Services as shown in the table below

Integrys Energy Groups exposure under these guarantees related to open

transactions at December 31 2010 was approximately $334 million

Millions December 31 2010

Guarantees supporting commodity transactions

Standby letters of credit

Guarantees of subsidiary debt

Surety bonds

Other

Total guarantees $566.6

Consists of outstanding debt at an Integrys Energy Services subsidiary which is not included in the total lntegrys Energy Group guarantee amounts above because the debt is reflected on the

Consolidated Ealance Sheets In January2011 this guarantee was replaced with standby letter of credit as part
of refinancing the underlying debt instrument

NOTE 17EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plans

lntegrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries maintain one non-contributory

qualified pension plan covering substantially all employees as well as

several unfunded nonqualified retirement plans In addition lntegrys

Energy Group and its subsidiaries offer multiple other postretirement

benefit plans to employees The benefits for portion of these plans are

funded through irrevocable trusts as allowed for income tax purposes

Integrys Energy Group also currently offers medical dental and life

insurance benefits to active employees and their dependents lntegrys

Energy Group expenses the costs of these benefits as incurred

Effective January 2008 the defined benefit pension plans were closed to

all Integrys Energy Group non-union new hires Effective May 12008 and

July 12008 the defined benefit pension plans were closed to new union

hires at PGL and NSG respectively Effective April 19 2009 and

December 18 2009 the defined benefit pension plans were closed to

new union hires at UPPCO and WPS respectively In addition changes in

the WPS union contract resulted in plan amendment in December 2009

Effective January 152010 the defined benefit pension plans were closed

to new Local 12295 union hires at MGU

The following tables provide reconciliation of the changes in the

plans benefit obligations and fair value of assets during 2010 and 2009

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

Millions 2010 2009 2010 2009

Reconciliation of benefit obligation

Obligation at January $1337.4 $1230.5 $475.5 $432.7

Service cost 40.1 38.9 16.3 14.3

Interest cost 80.0 80.9 27.5 26.5

Plan amendments 3.0

Plan curtailment 0.2

Actuarial loss net 98.4 78.6 41.1 23.2

Participant contributions 10.7 9.8

Benefit payments
137.4 94.7 34.9 33.0

Federal subsidy on benefits paid 2.3 2.0

Obligation at December31 $1418.5 $1337.4 $538.5 $475.5

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January
933.6 $830.3 $230.8 $191.1

Actual return on plan assets 119.1 174.5 23.8 33.1

Employer contributions 166.0 23.5 35.8 29.8

Participant contributions 10.7 9.8

Benefit payments 137.4 94.7 34.9 33.0

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $1081.3 $933.6 $266.2 $230.8

In connection with the reduction in workforce discussed in Note Restructuring Expense an insignificant curtailment loss was recognized

$423.9

63.5

27.0

1.7

50.5
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Amounts recognized on Integrys Energy Groups Consolidated Balance Sheets at December31 related to the funded status of the benefit plans consisted of

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

December31

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension

plans was $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit

obligation in excess of plan assets is presented in the following table

Millions 2010 2009

Projected benefit obligation $1418.5

1225.9

Fair value of plan assets 1081.3

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

Millions 2010 2009 2010 2009

Prior service costs credits

Total 39.5 37.1 0.6 $1.8

Net regulatory assets

Net actuarial loss $429.3 $368.6 $98.6 $66.2

Prior service costs credits 16.1 21.1 20.0 23.4

Transition obligation 0.5 0.8

Merger related regulatory adjustment 71.5 38.7

Regulatory deferral 4.5 1.3

Total $445.4 $465.7 $79.1 $81.0

Integrys Energy Group recorded the PEC pension assets acquired and

liabilities assumed at fair value at the February 2007 acquisition date

However through 2009 PGL and NSG continued to have rates set based

on their historical basis of accounting including amortizations of prior

service costs credits actuarial losses and transition obligations which

were recognized on the consolidated financial statements as regulatory

assets at the purchase date Therefore the amounts reflected in net

periodic benefit cost through 2009 were based on the amount used in

the rate-setting process for PGL and NSG The difference in the basis

of accounting is shown as merger related regulatory adjustment for

2009 in the table above Effective with the 2010 rate order PGL and NSG

reflect pension and other postretirement benefit costs in rates using

Integrys Energy Groups accounting basis which was established at the

time of the February 2007 PEC merger As result the merger related

regulatory adjustment was eliminated Pursuant to the 2010 rate ordet

new regulatory asset was established for the remaining cumulative

difference that existed between the accounting bases of PGL/NSG and

Integrys Energy Group in the pension and other postretirement benefit

obligations This regulatory asset comprised of unrecognized benefit

costs that existed prior to the PEC merger is not included in the 2010

amounts in the table above Also the amortization of this regulatory

asset over the average remaining service lives of the participating

employees is not included as component of net periodic benefit cost

The estimated net actuarial losses and prior service costs for defined

benefit pension plans that will be amortized as component of net

periodic benefit cost during 2011 are $19.0 million and $5.3 million

respectively The estimated net actuarial losses prior service credits and

transition obligation for other postretirement benefit plans that will be

amortized as component of net periodic benefit cost during 2011 are

$4.6 million $3.8 million and $0.3 million respectively

Millions 2010 2009 2010 2009

5.8 7.5 0.3 0.3

331.4 396.3 272.0 244.4

$337.2 $403.8 $272.3 $244.7

Accumulated benefit obligation

$1337.4

1147.0

933.6

The following table shows the amounts that had not yet been recognized in Integrys Energy Groups net periodic benefit cost as of December31

Amounts related to the nonregulated entities are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss while amounts related to the utilities are

recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities

Accumulated other comprehensive loss pre-tax

Net actuarial loss 38.8 36.2

0.7 0.9

2.0

1.4 1.8

The PSCW authorized recovery for net increased 2009 WPS
pension

and other
post

retire rnent benefit costs related to plan asset losses that occurred in 2008 Amortization and recovery of these

deferred costs occurred in 20t
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The following table presents the components of the consolidated net periodic benefit costs for the plans

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

Millions 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

Pension Benefits

2010 2009 2008

6.15%

8.50%

4.26%

5.95%

8.50%

8.0%

5.0%

2013

8.5%

5.5%

2013

5.0%

6.45%

8.50%

4.26%

6.48%

8.50%

9.0%

5.0%

2013

9.5%

5.5%

2013

5.0%

6.40%

8.50%

4.27%

6.40%

8.50%

10.0%

5.0%

2013

10.5%

5.5%

2013

5.0%

Net periodic benefit cost

Servicecost $40.1 $38.9 $38.4 $16.3 $14.3 $15.7

Interest cost 80.0 80.9 76.2 27.5 26.5 26.4

Expected return on plan assets 92.3 92.5 101.0 19.0 17.7 19.0

Amortization of transition obligation 0.3 0.3 0.3

Amortization of prior service cost credit 5.3 5.0 5.1 3.8 3.8 3.8

Amortization of net actuarial loss gain 8.1 1.9 0.7 1.9 1.5

Amortization of merger related regulatory adjustment 20.0 9.6 3.3 2.1

Regulatory deferral 4.5 4.5 1.3 1.3

Net periodic benefit cost $45.7 $49.7 29.0 $21.9 $22.7 $21.7

The pscw authorized
recovery

for net increased 2009 WPS
pension

and other postretirement benefit costs related to plan asset losses that occurred in 2008 Amortization and recovery of these

defened costs occurred in 2010

Assumptions Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The weighted-average assumptions used at December31 to determine benefit obligations for the plans were as follows

2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.80% 6.15% 5.66% 5.96%

Rate of compensation increase 4.29% 4.26% N/A N/A

Assumed medical cost trend rate under age 65 N/A N/A 7.5% 8.0%

Ultimate trend rate N/A N/A 5.0% 5.0%

Ultimate trend rate reached in N/A N/A 2016 2013

Assumed medical cost trend rate over age 65 N/A N/A 8.0% 8.5%

Ultimate trend rate N/A N/A 5.5% 5.5%

Ultimate trend rate reached in N/A N/A 2016 2013

Assumed dental cost trend rate N/A N/A 5.0% 5.0%

N/A Not Applicable

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the plans were as follows for the years ended December31

Discount rate

Expected return on assets

Rate of compensation increase

Other Benefits

2010 2009 2008

Discount rate

Expected return on assets

Assumed medical cost trend rate under age 65

Ultimate trend rate

Ultimate trend rate reached in

Assumed medical cost trend rate over age 65

Ultimate trend rate

Ultimate trend rate reached in

Assumed dental cost trend rate
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Integrys Energy Group establishes its expected return on assets assumption

based on consideration of historical and projected asset class returns as well

as the target allocations of the benefit trust portfolios Beginning in 201 the

expected return on assets assumption for the plans is 8.25%

Assumed health care cost trend rates have
significant

effect on the

amounts reported by Integrys Energy Group for the health care plans

For the year ended December31 2010 one-percentage-point change in

assumed health care cost trend rates would have had the following effects

One-Percentage-Point

Millions Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement health care benefit cost $6.4

Effect on the health care component of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 68.2

Pension and Other Postretirement

Benefit Plan Assets

lntegrys Energy Groups investment policy includes various guidelines

and procedures designed to ensure assets are invested in an appropriate

manner to meet expected future benefits to be earned by participants

The investment guidelines consider broad range
of economic

conditions Central to the policy are target allocation ranges by major

asset categories The policy is established and administered in

manner that is compliant at all times with applicable regulations

The objectives of the target allocations are to maintain investment

portfolios that diversify risk through prudent asset allocation parameters

and to achieve asset returns that meet or exceed the plans actuarial

assumptions and that are competitive with like instruments employing sirrrilar

investment strategies The portfolio diversification provides protection

against significant concentrations of risk in the plan assets The target asset

allocations for pension and other postretirement benefit plans that have

significant assets are 70% equity securities and 30% fixed income securities

Equity securities primarily include investments in large-cap and small-cap

companies Fixed income securities primarily include corporate bonds of

companies from diversified industries United States government securities

and mortgage-backed securities

The Board of Directors established the Employee Benefits Administrator

Committee composed of members of management to manage the

operations and administration of all benefit plans and trusts The committee

periodically reviews the asset allocation and the
portfolio is rebalanced

when necessary

Pension and other postretirement benefit plan investments recorded at fair

value were as follows by asset class See Note 1s Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies Fair Value for information on the fair value hierarchy

and the inputs used to measure fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 3.4 34.0 37.4 9.8 $9.8

Equity securities

125.3 299.1

75.9 247.6

424.4

323.5

28.3 73.8

14.6 48.7

102.1

63.3

Fixed income securities

United States government

Foreign government

Corporate debt

Asset-backed securities

73.1

13.1

143.2 2.0

52.8 0.2

73.1 9.4 33.9

7.8 20.9

43.3

Other 5.1 5.1 3.0 3.0

Real estate securities 30.0 30.0

204.6 868.0 40.0 1112.6 55.3 188.5 243.8

401h other benefit plan assets

invested as pension assets 4.3 18.2 0.8 23.3 4.3 18.2 0.8 23.3

Total $200.3 $849.8 $39.2 $1089.3 $59.6 $206.7 $0.8 $267.1

Pension trust assets are used to pay otter postretirement benefits as allowed under Internal Revenue code Section 401h

5.2

56.6

December 31 2010

Asset Class

Pension Plan Assets Other Benefit Plan Assets

Millions Level Level Level Total Level Level Level Total

United States equity

International equity

145.2 21.9 21.9

53.0 0.4 0.4
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Asset Class

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity securities

United States equity

International equity

Fixed income securities

United States government

Foreign government

Corporate debt

Asset-backed securities

Other

109.6

12.4

124.9

39.3

109.6

0.4 12.8

2.9 127.8

39.3

1.1 1.1

$20.1

48.0 39.6

26.9

32.4

1.5

0.9 31.6

9.0

2.3

$20.1

87.6

26.9

32.4

1.5

32.5

9.0

2.3

212.3

Foreign Asset- Other Fixed Real

Government Corporate Backed Income Estate

Millions Debt Debt Securities Securities Securities Total

Beginning balance at December 31 2008 $0.7 $1.8 $0.1 $1.5 $35.8 $39.9

Actual return on plan assets

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 0.8 1.1 1.2 12.2 9.1

Relating to assets sold during the period 0.4 0.5 0.9

Purchases sales and settlements 0.1 0.7 1.1 1.3 1.0

Transfers in and/or out of Level 1.2 0.3 0.1 1.6

Ending balance at December3l2009 $0.4 $2.9 $1.1 $24.9 $29.3

Actual return on plan assets

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date 0.2 0.3 3.8 3.9

Relating to assets sold during the period 0.1 0.1

Purchases sales and settlements 7.6 1.2 0.2 1.0 1.3 6.9

EndingbalanceatDecember3l2010 $7.8 $2.0 $0.2 $30.0 $40.0

Cash Flows Related to Pension and Other
Postretirement Benefit Plans

Integrys Energy Groups funding policy is to contribute at least the minimum

amounts that are required to be funded under the Employee Retirement

Income Security Act but not more than the maximum amounts that are

currently deductible for income tax purposes Integrys Energy Group expects

to contribute $90.9 million to pension plans and $41.2 million to other

postretirement benefit plans in 2011 dependent upon various factors affecting

Integrys Energy Group including its
liquidity position and tax law changes

The following table shows the payments reflecting expected future service that

Integrys Energy Group expects to make for pension and other postretirement

benefits In addition the table shows the expected federal subsidies provided

under the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of

2003 which will
partially

offset other postretirement benefits

$107.9 29.7 2.4

33.6 2.8

35.6 3.0

114.2 38.1 3.2

December 31 2009 Pension Plan Assets Other Benefit Plan Assets

Millions Level Level Level Total Level Level Level Total

2.1 32.9 35.0

261.7 171.3 433.0

31.0 144.3 175.3

Real estate securities 24.9 24.9

294.8 634.7 29.3 958.8 48.9 163.4

401h other benefit plan assets

invested as pension assets 0.8 17.6 0.1 18.5 0.8 17.6 0.1 18.5

Total $294.0 $617.1 $29.2 $940.3 $49.7 $181.0 $0.1 $230.8

Pension trust assets are used to pay other
pOstretirement

benefits as allowed under Internal Revenue code Section 401h

The following table sets forth reconciliation of changes in the fair value of pension plan assets categorized as Level measurements

Pension Other Federal

Millions Benefits Benefits Subsidies

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016-2020

31.6113.0

115.7

109.0

2.6

619.1 229.7 18.6
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Defined Contribution Benefit Plans

Integrys Energy Group maintains 401k Savings Plans for substantially all

full-time employees and matches percentage of employee contributions

through an employee stock ownership plan ESOP or cash contribution up

to certain limits Certain union employees receive contribution to their

ESOP account regardless of their participation in the 401k Savings Plan

The ESOP held 3.3 million shares of Integrys Energy Groups common stock

market value of $158.6 million at December 312010 Certain employees

participate in discretionary profit-sharing contribution and/or cash match

Certain employees who are not eligible to participate in the defined benefit

pension plan participate in defined contribution pension plan in which

Integrys Energy Group contributes certain amounts to an employees

account based on the employees wages age and years of service Total

costs incurred under all of these plans were $16.9 million in 2010

$16.8 million in 2009 and $17.4 million in 2008

Integrys Energy Group maintains deferred compensation plans that enable

certain key employees and non-employee directors to defer payment of

portion of their compensation or fees on pre-tax basis Non-employee

directors can defer up to 100% of their director fees Compensation is

enerally deferred in the form of cash indexed to certain investment options

or Integrys Energy Group common stock with deemed dividends paid on the

common stock automatically reinvested

All shares of preferred stock of all series are of equal rank except as to

dividend rates and redemption terms Payment of dividends from any

earned surplus or other available surplus is not restricted by the terms of

any
indenture or other undertaking by WPS Each series of outstanding

preferred stock is redeemable in whole or in part at WPSs option at any

time on 30 days notice at the respective redemption prices WPS may not

redeem less than all nor purchase any of its preferred stock during the

existence of any dividend default

In the event of WPSs dissolution or liquidation the holders of preferred

stock are entitled to receive the par value of their preferred stock out of

The deferred compensation arrangements for which distributions are

made solely in Integrys Energy Groups common stock are classified as an

equity instrument Changes in the fair value of the deferred compensation

obligation are not recognized The deferred compensation obligation

associated with Integrys Energy Group common stock was $26.3 million at

December31 2010 and $24.2 million at December31 2009

The portion of the deferred compensation obligation associated with

deferrals that allow for distribution in cash is classified as liability on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets and adjusted with charge or credit to

expense to reflect changes in the fair value of the deferred compensation

obligation The obligation classified within other long-term liabilities was

$36.2 million at December 31 2010 and $32.1 million at December 31 2009

The costs incurred under this arrangement were $3.5 million in 2010

$4.0 million in 2009 and $1.9 million in 2008

The deferred compensation programs are partially funded through shares

of Integrys Energy Groups common stock that are held in rabbi trust The

common stock held in the rabbi trust is classified as reduction of equity in

manner similar to accounting for treasury stock The total cost of Integrys

Energy Groups common stock held in the rabbi trust was $18.5 million at

December 31 2010 and $17.2 million at December 312009

the corporate assets other than profits before any of such assets are paid or

distributed to the holders of common stock and the amount of dividends

accumulated and unpaid on their preferred stock out of the surplus or net

profits before any of such surplus or net profits are paid to the holders of

common stock Thereafte the remainder of the corporate assets surplus

and net profits shall be paid to the holders of common stock

The preferred stock has no pre-emptive subscription or conversion rights

and has no sinking fund provisions

NOTE 18PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARY

Integrys Energy Groups subsidiary WPS has 1000000 authorized shares of preferred stock with no mandatory redemption and $100 par value

Outstanding shares were as follows at December31

Millions except share amounts 2010 2009

Series Shares Outstanding Carrying Value Shares Outstanding Carrying Value

5.00% 130692 $13.1 130692 $13.1

5.04% 29898 3.0 29898 3.0

5.08% 49905 5.0 49905 5.0

6.76% 150000 15.0 150000 15.0

6.88% 150000 15.0 150000 15.0

Total 510495 $51.1 510495 $51.1
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NOTE 19COMMON EQUITY
Integrys Energy Groups reconciliation of shares outstanding at December31 2010 and 2009 was as follows

2010 2009

Shares Average Cost Shares Average Cost

Common stock issued 77781685 76418843

Less

Deferred compensation rabbi trust 425273 $4355 402839

Restricted stock 6333 $58.65 35861 $5533

Total shares outstanding 77350079 75980143

Based on Integrys Energy Groups stock price on the day the shares entered the deferred compensation rabbi trust Shares paid out of the trust are valued at the
average

cost of shares in the trust

Based on the grant date fair value of the restricted stock

Beginning February 11 2010 Integrys Energy Group issued

new shares of common stock to meet the requirements of its

Stock Investment Plan and certain stock-based employee benefit

and compensation plans These stock issuances increased equity

$55.8 million in 2010 From January 12010 to February 10 2010

and during 2009 and 2008 Integrys Energy Group purchased shares

of its common stock on the open market to meet the requirements

of these plans

Integrys Energy Groups common stock shares

Balance at December 31 2007 76434095

Restricted stock shares cancelled 4058

Balance at December 312008 76430037

Restricted stock shares cancelled 11194

Balance at December 31 2009 76418843

Shares issued

Stock Investment Plan 752360

Stock-based compensation 592237

Rabbi trust shares 35000

Restricted stock shares cancelled 16755

Balance at December 31 2010 77781685

Earnings Loss Per Share

Basic earnings loss per share is computed by dividing net income

loss attributed to common shareholders by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted

earnings loss per share is computed by dividing net income loss

attributed to common shareholders by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the

exercise and/or conversion of all potentially dilutive securities Such

dilutive items include in-the-money stock options performance stock

rights and restricted stock The calculation of diluted earnings per

share for 2010 excluded 1.4 million out-of-the-money stock options

that had an anti-dilutive effect The effects of an insignificant number

of in-the-money securities were not included in the computation for

2009 because there was net loss during the period which would

have caused the impact to be anti-dilutive The 2009 calculation of

diluted earnings per share also excluded 2.7 million out-of-the-money

stock options that had an anti-dilutive effect The calculation of diluted

earnings per share for 2008 excluded 2.2 million out-of-the-money stock

options that had an anti-dilutive effect

$42.58
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The following table reconciles the computation of basic and diluted earnings loss per
share

Millions except per share amounts 2010 2009 2008

Numerator

Net income loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations net of tax

Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary

$223.5 $70.3 $114.8

0.2 2.8 4.7

3.1 3.1 3.1

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries 0.3 1.0 0.1

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders $220.9 $69.6 $116.5

Denominator

Average shares of common stock basic 77.5 76.8 76.7

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock-based compensation
0.5 0.3

Average shares of common stock diluted 78.0 76.8 77.0

Earnings loss per common share

Basic $2.85 $0.91 $1.52

Diluted
2.83 0.91 1.51

Dividends per common share declared $2.72 $2.72 $2.68

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss net of tax at December31 2010 and 2009 were

Millions
2010 2009

Cash flow hedges
$20.4 $24.9

Unrecognized pension and other postretirement benefit costs 24.3 21.5

Foreign currency translation 2.4

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $44.7 $44.0

Includes tax benefits of $13.9 million and $18.6 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Zindudes tax benefits of $15.8 million and$13.8 million at December31 2010 and 2009 respectively

NOTE 20STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In May 2010 lntegrys Energy Group shareholders approved the 2010

Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan 2010 Omnibus Plan Under the

provisions of the 2010 Omnibus Plan the number of shares of stock that

may be issued in satisfaction of plan awards may not exceed 3000000

shares plus any shares remaining or forfeited under prior plans and no

more than 900000 shares of stock plus shares remaining or forfeited under

prior plans can be granted as full value shares in the form of performance

shares or restricted stock No additional awards will be issued under prior

plans although the plans continue to exist for purposes of the existing

outstanding stock-based compensation awards At December 31 2010

stock options performance stock rights and restricted shares and

restricted share units were outstanding under the various plans

Performance stock rights restricted shares and restricted share units were

accounted for as equity awards through June 30 2010 However in the

third quarter of 2010 Integrys Energy Group determined that these awards

should have been accounted for as liability
awards due to certain changes

to the deferred compensation plan approved by Integrys Energy Groups

Board of Directors in the fourth quarter of 2007 In the third quarter of

2010 consistent with the guidance in the Stock Compensation Topic of

the FASB ASC Integrys Energy Group began accounting for performance

stock rights restricted shares and restricted share units as liability awards

which are required to be recorded at fair value each reporting period The

cumulative effect of this change related to periods prior to the third quarter

of2OlOwas decrease in net income from continuing operations and net

income attributed to common shareholders of $2.4 million Management

determined that this amount was not material to prior periods and

recorded the cumulative effect in earnings in the third quarter of 2010
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Stock Options

Under the provisions of the 2010 Omnibus Plan no single employee

who is the chief executive officer of Integrys Energy Group or any of the

other three highest compensated officers of Integrys Energy Group and

its subsidiaries can be granted options for more than 1000000 shares

during any calendar year No stock options will have term longer

than ten years The exercise price of each stock option is equal to the

fair market value of the stock on the date the stock option is granted

Generally one-fourth of the stock options granted vest and become

exercisable each year on the anniversary of the grant date

The fair values of stock option awards granted were estimated using

binomial lattice model The expected term of option awards is

calculated based on historical exercise behavior and represents the

period of time that options are expected to be outstanding The risk-

free interest rate is based on the United States Treasury yield curve

The expected dividend yield incorporates the current and historical

dividend rate Integrys Energy Groups expected stock price volatility

was estimated using its 10-year historical volatility

The following table shows the weighted-average fair values per stock

option along with the assumptions incorporated into the valuation models

2010 2009 2008

Weighted-average fair value per option

Expected term

Risk-free interest rate

$5.30

years

2.38%

$3.83 $4.52

8-9years years

2.50% 2.78% 3.40%

Compensation cost recognized for stock options during 2010 2009

and 2008 was $2.3 million $2.0 million and $2.6 million respectively

Compensation cost capitalized during these same years was not

significant As of December31 2010 $1.3 million of compensation cost

related to unvested and outstanding stock options was expected to be

recognized over weighted-average period of 2.6 years

Cash received from option exercises was $18.8 million during 2010 Cash

received from option exercises during 2009 was not significant and was

$3.3 million during 2008 The tax benefit realized from these option

exercises was not significant in 2010 2009 and 2008

Asummaryofstockoption activityfor20l0 and information related

to outstanding and exercisable stock options at December31 2010 is

presented below

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remaining Aggregate Intrinsic

Exercise Price Per Contractual Life Value

Stock Options Share in Years Millions

3133286

554092

486624

110808
97247

$47.06

41.58

38.56

41.58

The aggregate intrinsic value for outstanding and exercisable options in

the above table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value that would have

been received by the option holders had they all exercised their options

at December 31 2010 This is calculated as the difference between

lntegrys Energy Groups closing stock price on December 31 2010

and the option exercise price multiplied by the number of in-the-

money stock options The intrinsic value of options exercised was not

significant during 2009 and 2008

Performance Stock Rights

Performance stock
rights vest over three-year performance period and

are paid out in shares of lntegrys Energy Groups common stock or an

employee may elect to defer the value of the award into the deferred

compensation plan No single employee who is the chief executive

officer of Integrys Energy Group or any of the other three highest

compensated officers of lntegrys Energy Group and its subsidiaries can

receive payout in excess of 250000 performance shares during any

calendar year The number of shares paid out is calculated by multiplying

performance percentage by the number of outstanding stock rights

at the completion of the vesting period The performance percentage

is based on the total shareholder return of lntegrys Energy Groups

common stock relative to the total shareholder return of peer group of

companies The payout may range from 0% to 200% of target

Performance stock rights are accounted for as liability awards and are

remeasured each reporting period throughout the requisite service period

Expected dividend yield 5.46% 5.50% 5.00%

Expected volatility 25% 19% 17%

Outstanding at December31 2009

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Expired

Outstanding at December 31 2010 2992699 $47.59 6.27 $8.0

Exercisable at December 31 2010 1852573 $49.75 5.09 $2.2

48.55 0.1

$4.9

0.8
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Restricted Shares and Restricted Share Units

portion of the long-term incentive is awarded in the form of restricted

shares and restricted share units Most of these awards haves four-year

vesting period with 25% of each award vesting on each anniversary of

the grant date During the vesting period restricted share recipients

have voting rights
and are entitled to dividends in the same manner as

other common shareholders whereas restricted share unit recipients

receive dividend credits and do not have voting rights Restricted shares

and restricted share units are accounted for as liability awards and are

5.50% 5.50% remeasured each period based on lntegrys Energy Groups closing stock

26% 17% price at the reporting date Compensation cost recognized for these

awards was $10.1 million $4.9 million and $4.2 million during 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively Compensation cost capitalized during these

same years was not significant As of December31 2010 $11.7 million

of compensation cost related to these awards was expected based on

the value of these awards at the reporting date to be recognized over

weighted-average period of 2.5 years

summary of the activity related to restricted share and restricted share

unit awards for the year ended December 31 2010 is presented below

Expected dividend yield 5.34%

Expected volatility
20% 34%

NOTE 21VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

Effective January 12010 lntegrys Energy Group implemented Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 167 Amendments

to FASB Interpretation No.46 now incorporated as part of the

Consolidation Topic of the FASB ASC Integrys Energy Group has

variable interests in two entities through power purchase agreements

relating to the cost of fuel One of these purchased power agreements

reimburses an independent power producing entity for coal costs relating

to purchased energy There is no obligation to purchase energy under

the agreement This contract expires in 2016 The other agreement

contains tolling arrangement in which Integrys Energy Group supplies

the scheduled fuel and purchases capacity and energy
from the

facility

This contract also expires in 2016 As of December 31 2010 and

December31 2009 Integrys Energy Group had approximately

535 megawatts of capacity available under these agreements

Integrys Energy Group has evaluated each of these variable interest

entities for possible consolidation In these cases Integrys Energy Group

considered which interest holder has the power to direct the activities that

most significantly impact the economics of the variable interest entity

this interest holder is considered the primary beneficiary of the entity
and

is required to consolidate the entity For variety of reasons including

qualitative factors such as the length of the remaining term of the contracts

compared with the remaining lives of the plants and the fact that Integrys

Energy Group does not have the power to direct the operations and

ForFeited 46265

Outstanding at December 31 2010 405362

maintenance of the facilities Integrys Energy Group determined it is not

the primary beneficiary of these variable interest entities

At December 31 2010 the assets and liabilities on the Consolidated

Balance Sheets that related to the involvement with these variable

interest entities pertained to working capital accounts and represented

the amounts owed by Integrys Energy Group for current deliveries of

power Integrys Energy Group has not provided or guaranteed any debt

or equity support liquidity arrangements performance guarantees

or other commitments associated with these contracts There is no

significant potential exposure to loss as result of its involvement with

the variable interest entities

In 2008 lntegrys Energy Groups subsidiary Integrys Energy Services

contributed certain assets to LGS Renewables L.C LGS in exchange

for 50% interest in the entity Simultaneously Integrys Energy Services

entered into loan agreement with LGS to finance the development and

construction of pipeline project to provide landfill gas to customer

Integrys Energy Group determined at the time that the entity was

variable interest entity and that Integrys Energy Services was the primary

beneficiary of the entity Integrys Energy Group updated its conclusion

upon implementation of the new standard and continued to conclude

that Integrys Energy Services was the primary beneficiary In July 2010

Integrys Energy Services purchased the remaining 50% ownership interest

in LGS from LGS Development L.P and became the sole owner

The fair values of performance stock rights were estimated using

Monte Carlo valuation model incorporating the assumptions in the table

below The risk-free interest rate is based on the United States Treasury

yield curve The expected dividend yield incorporates the current and

historical dividend rate The expected volatility was estimated using three

years of historical data

Risk-free interest rate

2010 2009 2008

0.21% 0.56% 1.38% 2.18%

Compensation cost recorded for performance stock rights for 2010 2009

and 2008 was $10.0 million $4.6 million and $5.2 million respectively

Compensation cost capitalized during these same years was not

significant As of December31 2010 $3.1 million of compensation

cost related to unvested and outstanding performance stock rights was

expected based on the value of these awards at the reporting date to be

recognized over weighted-average period of 1.8 years

summary of the
activity

related to performance stock rights for the year

ended December 31 2010 is presented below

Performance

Stock Rights

Outstanding at December 31 2009 301090

Granted 150481

Restricted Shares

and Restricted

Share Unit Awards

Distributed 45847

Outstanding at December31 2009

Granted

Adjustment for final payout 26009

Vested 106153

346858

210922

Forfeited 38077

Outstanding at December 31 2010 341638
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NOTE 22FAIR VALUE

Fair Value Measurements

The following tables show Integrys Energy Groups financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on recurring basis categorized

by level within the fair value hierarchy

December3l2010

Millions Level Level Level Total

Assets

Risk management assets $284.9 $439.6 $1593.0 $2317.5

Other 0.1 0.1

Liabilities

Risk management liabilities 336.4 582.2 1471.6 2390.2

Long-term debt hedged by fair value hedge 52.6 52.6

The risk management assets and liabilities listed in the tables above

include options swaps futures physical commodity contracts and

other instruments used to manage market risks related to changes in

commodity prices and interest rates For more information on Integrys

Energy Groups derivative instruments see Note Risk

Management Activities

Millions Level Level Level Total

Risk Management Assets

Utility Segments

FTRs

Natural gas contracts

Petroleum product contracts

Coal contract

Nonregulated Segments

Natural gas contracts

Electric contracts

Interest rate swaps

Foreign exchange contracts

Total Risk Management Assets

Risk Management Liabilities

Utility Segments

FTRs

0.6

0.6

60.7

29.5

0.1

91.5

3.2

100.7

69.8

0.9

1.4

$176.0

3.1

3.7

34.6

17.4

$58.8

3.1

3.8

0.6

3.7

196.0

116.7

0.9

1.5

$326.3

$0.2 $0.2
Natural gas contracts 3.7 22.3 26.0

Coal contract 1.2 1.2

Nonregulated Segments

Natural gas contracts 66.8 110.4 4.4 181.6

Electric contracts 45.0 101.5 32.3 178.8

Foreign exchange contracts 1.4 0.1 1.5

Total Risk Management Liabilities $116.9 $234.3 $38.1 $389.3

Long-term debt hedged by fair value hedge 50.9 50.9

December3l2009
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The following tables show net risk management assets liabilities transferred between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during 2010

Nonregulated Segments Electric Contracts

Millions
Level Level Level

Transfers into Level from N/A

Transfers into Level from $0.2

Transfers into Level from 4.9 N/A

Nonregulated Segments Natural Gas Contracts

Millions
Level Level Level

Transfers into Level from N/A 0.1

Transfers into Level from N/A 0.8

Transfers into Level from 1.7 N/A

N/A Not Apprcbie

Derivatives are transferred between the levels of the fair value hierarchy The following tables set forth reconciliation of changes in the fair

primarily due to changes in the source of data used to construct price value of items categorized as Level measurements

curves as result of changes in market liquidity

Nonregulated Segments Utility Segments

2010

Millions Natural Gas Electric FTRs Coal Contract Total

Balance atthe beginning of the period $31.4 $86.5 $3.5 $121.4

Net realized and unrealized gains losses included in earnings 38.9 65.1 5.3 20.9

Net unrealized losses gains recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities 1.1 2.5 1.4

Net unrealized losses included in other comprehensive loss 3.1 3.1

Net purchases and settlements 41.0 43.7 4.8 89.5

Net transfers into Level 1.7 4.9 3.2

Net transfers out of Level 0.8 15.4 14.6

Balance at the end of the period $30.2 $14.9 $2.9 $2.5 20.7

Net unrealized gains losses included in earnings related to

instruments still held at the end of the period $38.9 $65.1 $26.2

Unrealized gains and losses included in earnings related to Integrys

Energy Services risk management assets and liabilities are recorded

44.6
through nonregulated revenue on the Consolidated Statements of

Income Realized gains and losses on these same instruments are

320 447 recorded in nonregulated revenue or nonregulated cost of fuel natural

gas
and purchased power depending on the nature of the instrument

Unrealized gains and losses on Level derivatives at the utilities are

2.2 8.7 deferred as regulatory assets or liabilities Therefore these fair value

measurements have no impact on earnings Realized gains and losses

163 350
on these instruments flow through utility cost of fuel natural gas and

purchased power on the Consolidated Statements of Income

36.0 2.5

$10.1

N/A

$18.0

2.6

Millions 2009 2008

$182.0Balance at the beginning of period

Net realized and unrealized gain loss

included in earnings

Net unrealized gain loss recorded as

regulatory assets or liabilities

Net unrealized gain loss included in

other comprehensive loss

Net purchases and settlements

Net transfers in/out of Level 75.1 223.3

Balance at the end of the period $121.4 $182.0

Net unrealized gain loss included

in earnings related to instruments

still held at the end of the period 35.4 55.3
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table shows the financial instruments included on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets of Integrys Energy Group that are not

recorded at fair value

2010 29

Long-term debt $2638.5 $2687.8 $2511.2 $2543.6

Preferred stock of

subsidiary 51.1

The fair values of long-term debt instruments are estimated based

on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues or on the

current rates offered to Integrys Energy Group for debt of the same

remaining maturity without considering the effect of third-party credit

enhancements The fair values of preferred stock of subsidiary are

estimated based on quoted market prices when available or by using

perpetual dividend discount model

Due to the short maturity of cash and cash equivalents accounts

receivable accounts payable notes payable and outstanding

commercial paper the carrying amount approximates fair value

NOTE 23MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Integrys Energy Groups total miscellaneous income was as follows at December31

Millions 2010 2009 2008

Equity earnings on investments

Gain loss on foreign currency translation

Interest and dividend income

Key executive life insurance income

Equity portion of AFUDC

Weston ATC interconnection agreement interest

Loss gain on sale of property

NOTE 24REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

Wisconsin

2011 Rates

On January 13 2011 the PSCW issued final written order for WPS

authorizing an electric rate increase of $21.0 million excluding the

impact of $15.2 million estimated fuel refund including carrying costs

from 2010 and requiring an $8.3 million decrease in natural gas rates

effective January 14 2011 The new rates reflect 10.30% return on

common equity and common equity ratio of 51.65% in WPSs regulatory

capital structure The order also adopted new electric fuel rules effective

January 12011 The rulemaking process to implement the new fuel rules

is expected to be complete in March 2011

2010 Rates

On December 22 2009 the PSCW issued final written order for WPS

authorizing an electric rate increase of $18.2 million offset by an $18.2 million

refund of 2009 and 2008 fuel cost over-collections and retail natural

gas rate increase of $13.5 million effective January 12010 Based on

an order issued on April 12010 the remaining $10.0 million of the total

2008 and 2009 fuel cost over-collections plus interest of $1.3 million

were refunded to customers in April and May 2010 and the 2010 fuel

cost over-collections were made subject to refund as of that date As of

December31 2010 the balance of the 2010 fuel cost over-collections to

be refunded to customers throughout 2011 was $15.2 million which was

recorded as short-term regulatory liability

2009 Rates

On December 30 2008 the PSCW issued final written order for WPS

authorizing no change in retail electric rates from the fuel surcharge adjusted

rates authorized effective July 42008 and $3.0 million decrease in retail

natural gas rates The PSCW also approved decoupling mechanism as

four-year pilot program which allows WPS to defer and recover or refund in

future rate proceedings all or portion of the differences between the actual

and authorized margin per customer impact of variations in volumes The

annual deferral or refund is limited to $14.0 million for electric service

and $8.0 million for natural gas service The mechanism does not adjust

for changes in volume resulting from changes in customer count and

does not cover large commercial and industrial customers

2008 Rates

On January 15 2008 the PSCW issued final written order for WPS

authorizing retail electric rate increase of $23.0 million and on

February 11 2008 WPS filed an application with the PSCW to adjust its

2008 electric rates for increased fuel and purchased power costs The

PSCW approved an interim annual fuel surcharge increase of $29.7 million

on March 20 2008 and an additional final fuel surcharge increase of

$18.3 million effective July 42008

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Millions Amount Value Amount Value

46.8 51.1 44.3

$78.3 $76.1 $67.8

4.7 0.1 0.9

3.7 5.0

3.1 2.7

1.6 5.5

5.6

2.3

6.0

0.1 1.8

Other 0.2 2.7 1.9

Total miscellaneous income $91.5 $89.0 $87.3

The foreign currency
translation gains that had accumulated in Ocl were reclassified from OCl to miscellaneous income when Integrys Energy Services substantially completed the

liquidation
of its

Canadian subsidiaries during 2010 At December 312010 no amounts remained in accumulated OCI related to foreign currency translation

2.5

4.8
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On September 30 2008 the PSCW reopened the 2008 fuel surcharge

to review forecasted fuel costs as WPSs current and anticipated

annual fuel costs were below those projected in the fuel surcharge

As result of the lower fuel and purchased power costs WPSs rates

from September 30 2008 through December 31 2008 were subject

to refund On February 2009 WPS filed request with the PSCW to

refund approximately $5 million of 2008 fuel costs to Wisconsin electric

retail customers which resulted in credit to customers bills in March

and April 2009

Michigan

2011 UPPCO Rates

On December 21 2010 the Michigan Public Service Commission

MPSC issued an order approving settlement agreement for

UPPCO authorizing retail electric rate increase of $8.9 million

effective January 2011 The new rates reflect 10.30% return on

common equity and common equity ratio of 54.86% in UPPCOs

regulatory capital structure The order requires that UPPCO terminate

its uncollectibles expense tracking mechanism discussed below

after the close of December 2010 business but retains the

decoupling mechanism

2010 UPPCO Rates

On December 16 2009 the MPSC issued final written order for

UPPCO authorizing retail electric rate increase of $6.5 million effective

January 12010 The new rates reflected 10.90% return on common

equity and common equity ratio of 54.83% in UPPCOs regulatory

capital structure The order included approval of decoupling

mechanism as well as an uncollectibles expense tracking mechanism

which allows for the deferral and subsequent recovery or refund of 80%

of the difference between actual write-offs net of recoveries and bad

debt expense included in utility rates both effective January 12010

2010 MGU Rates

On December 16 2009 the MPSC issued final written order

authorizing MGU retail natural gas rate increase of $3.5 million

effective January 12010 The new rates reflect 10.75% return on

common equity and common equity ratio of 50.26% in MGUs

regulatory capital structure The order included approval of an

uncollectibles expense tracking mechanism which allows for the

deferral and subsequent recovery or refund of 80% of the difference

between actual write-offs net of recoveries and bad debt expense

included in utility rates effective January 12010 The MPSC also

granted decoupling mechanism for MGU which adjusts for the impact

on revenues of changes in weather-normalized use per customer for

residential and small commercial customers effective January 2010

2009 MGU Rates

On January 13 2009 the MPSC issued final written order for MGU

approving settlement agreement authorizing an annual retail natural

gas rate increase of $6.0 million effective January 14 2009 The new

rates reflected 10.45% return on common equity and common equity

ratio of 50.01% in MGUs regulatory capital structure

2008 WPS Rates

On December 2007 the MPSC issued final written order for

WPS authorizing retail electric rate increase of $0.6 million effective

December 2007 The new rates reflected 10.60% return on common

equity and common equity ratio of 56.39% in WPSs regulatory

capital structure

Illinois

2011 Rate Cases

On February 15 2011 PGL and NSG filed applications with the ICC

to increase retail natural gas rates $125.4 million and $8.7 million

respectively with rates expected to be effective in January 2012 The

filings for both PGL and NSG include requests for an 11.25% return on

common equity and common equity ratio of 56.00% in their regulatory

capital structures PGL and NSG each requested that the ICC make their

decoupling mechanisms permanent

2010 Rates

On January 21 2010 the ICC issued final order authorizing retail

natural gas rate increase of $69.8 million for PGL and $13.9 million for

NSG effective January 28 2010 The rates for PGL reflect 10.23%

return on common equity and common equity ratio of 56.00% in PGLs

regulatory capital structure The rates for NSG reflect 10.33% return on

common equity and common equity ratio of 56.00% in NSGs regulatory

capital structure The ICC approved rider mechanism to recover the

costs above an annual baseline of an accelerated natural gas main

replacement program by PGL through special charge on customers

bills known as Rider Infrastructure Cost Recovery ICR The rate order

also approved the recovery
of net dismantling costs of property plant

and equipment over the life of the asset rather than when incurred In

June 2010 the ICC issued rehearing order approving PGLs proposed

baseline of $45.28 million with an annual escalation factor Recovery of

costs for the accelerated gas main replacement program
will begin in

2011 with the first Rider ICR charges being effective April 12011 The

AG the Citizens Utility Board PGL and NSG filed appeals with the Illinois

Appellate Court First District

On September 30 2010 the Illinois Appellate Court Second District

issued decision which among other things rejected the ICCS approval

of Commonwealth Edison Company CornEd cost recovery mechanism

for system modernization in the form of advanced metering technology

also called smart grid because it was improper single issue ratemaking

Single issue ratemaking is one of the arguments raised in the pending

appeal of NSGs and PGLs decoupling mechanism approved in the 2008

rate case and the pending appeal of Rider ICR Integrys Energy Group

is evaluating the decision of the Illinois Appellate Court Second District

in light of other contrary precedents and whether differences in the

decoupling mechanism and Rider ICR distinguish them from ComEds

rider The appeal involving the decoupling mechanism is pending before

the Illinois Appellate Court Second District The appeal involving Rider

ICR is pending before the Illinois Appellate Court First District

2009 Illinois Legislation

In July 2009 Illinois Senate Bill SB l9l8was signed into law Under

SB 1918 PGL and NSG filed rider with the ICC in September 2009 to

recover or refund the incremental difference between the rate case

authorized uncollectible expense and the actual uncollectible expense

reported to the ICC each year
The ICC approved the rider in

February 2010 SB 1918 also requires percentage of income payment

plan for low-income utility customers which PGL and NSG began offering

as transition program in 2010 with permanent program to begin no

later than September 12011 Additionally SB 1918 requires an on-bill

financing program that PGL and NSG will begin in June 2011 which

allows certain residential customers of PGL and NSG to borrow funds

from third party lender to purchase energy efficiency measures and

pay
back over time through charge on their utility bill Finally SB 1918

requires an EEP to meet specified energy efficiency standards which is

pending before the ICC with the first program year beginning June 2011
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2008 Rates

On February 2008 the ICC issued final order authorizing retail natural

gas rate increase of $71.2 million for PGL and requiring retail natural gas

rate decrease of $0.2 million for NSG both effective February 142008 The

rates for PGL reflected 10.19% return on common equity and common

equity ratio of 56.00% in PGLS regulatory capital structure The rates for NSG

reflected 9.99% return on common equity and common equity ratio of

56.00% in NSGs regulatory capital structure The order included approval of

decoupling mechanism effective March 12008 as four-year pilot program

which allows PGL and NSG to adjust rates going forward to recover or refund

the difference between the actual and authorized margin impact of

variations in volumes

The ICC denied PGLs and NSGs request for rehearing of their rate orders

and all but one such request from interveners which only affected PGL

The ICC approved stipulation resolving the rehearing issue Following

the stipulation approval PGL NSG and four other parties filed appeals

with the Illinois Appellate Court regarding the decoupling mechanism In

December 2010 the Illinois Appellate Court First District concluded it

lacked jurisdiction over the appeals and transferred the matter to the Illinois

Appellate Court Second District

Minnesota

2011 Rates

On November 30 2010 MERC filed an application with the Minnesota

Public Utility Commission MPUC to increase retail natural gas rates by

$1.2 million with interim rates effective February 2011 and final rates

effective during the first quarter of 2012 The filing includes request for

an 11.25% return on common equity and common equity ratio of 50.20%

in MERCs regulatory capital
structure On January 28 2011 the MPUC

approved an interim rate order authorizing MERC retail natural gas rate

increase of $7.5 million effective February 12011 The interim rates reflect

10.21% return on common equity and common equity ratio of 50.20% in

MERCs regulatory capital structure

2010 Rates

On December 2009 the MPUC approved final written order authorizing

MERC retail natural gas rate increase of $15.4 million effective

January 12010 The new rates reflected 10.21% return on common

NOTE 25SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

The Segment Reporting Topic of the FASB ASC requires that companies

disclose segment information based on how management makes decisions

about allocating resources to segments and measuring their performance

During the fourth quarter of 2010 Integrys Energy Group changed its

method of accounting for lTCs from the flow-through method to the

deferral method As such certain previously reported amounts have been

retrospectively adjusted See Note 1d Change in Accounting Policy for

more information

Integrys Energy Group manages its reportable segments separately

due to their different operating and regulatory environments At

December 31 2010 Integrys Energy Group reported five segments which

are described below

The natural gas utility segment includes the regulated natural gas utility

operations of WPS MGU MERC PGL and NSG

equity and common equity ratio of 48.77% in MERCs regulatory capital

structure Since the final approved rate increase was lower than the interim

rate increase that went into effect in October 2008 refunds of $5.5 million

were made to customers in March 2010 MERC also received MPUC

approval in 2010 to increase its per therm cost recovery charges related to

its conservation improvement program

Federal

Through series of orders issued by the FERC Regional Through and

Out Rates for transmission service between the MISO and the PJM

Interconnection were eliminated effective December 12004 To compensate

transmission owners for the revenue they would no longer receive due to this

rate elimination the FERC ordered transitional pricing mechanism called

the Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment SECA be put into place

Load-serving entities paid these SECA charges during 16-month

transition period from December 2004 through March 31 2006

Integrys Energy Services initially expensed all but$4.5 million of the total

$19.2 million of billings received for the 16-month transitional period as

it was considered probable that at least $4.5 million of the billings
would

be recovered due to inconsistencies between the FERCs SECA order and

the transmission owners compliance filings Subsequent to receiving the

billings Integrys Energy Services reached settlement agreements with

vendors for combined $1.6 million reducing the $4.5 million receivable

balance to approximately $3 million

In August 2006 the administrative law judge hearing the case issued an

Initial Decision that was in substantial agreement with all of Integrys Energy

Services positions and on May21 2010 the FERC issued its Final Order

on the Initial Decision In the Final Order the FERC ruled favorably for

Integrys Energy Services on two issues which are anticipated to result in

additional refunds of approximately $2 million but reversed the rulings of

the Initial Decision on nearly every other substantive issue As result of

this ruling Integrys Energy Services expensed as component of margin

approximately $1 million in the second quarter of 2010 as only about

$2 million of the approximate $3 million receivable balance remained

probable of collection from counterparties Integrys Energy Services and

numerous other parties filed for rehearing of the FERCs Final Order

number of related orders will be considered for judicial review Any

refunds to Integiys Energy Services will include interest for the period

from payment to refund

The electric utility segment includes the regulated electric utility

operations of WPS and UPPCO

The electric transmission investment segment includes Integrys Energy

Groups approximate 34% ownership interest in ATC ATC is federally

regulated electric transmission company with operations in Wisconsin

Michigan Minnesota and Illinois

lntegiys Energy Services is diversified nonregulated retail energy

supply and services company that primarily sells electricity
and natural

gas to commercial industrial and residential customers in deregulated

markets In addition Integrys Energy Services invests in energy assets

with renewable attributes

The holding company and other segment includes the operations of the

Integrys Energy Group holding company and the PEC holding company

along with any nonutility activities at WPS MGU MERC UPPCO PGL

NSG and lBS Equity earnings from Integrys Energy Groups investment

in WRPC are also included in the holding company and other segment
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The tables below present information for the respective years pertaining to Integrys Energy Groups reportable segments

Income Statement

External revenues

Intersegment revenues

Impairment losses on property

plant and equipment

Net loss on lntegrys Energy

Services dispositions

related to strategy change

Restructuring expense

Depreciation and

amortization expense

Miscellaneous income expense

Interest expense income

Provision benefit for income taxes

Net income loss from

continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Preferred stock dividends

of subsidiary

Noncontrolling interest in

subsidiaries

Net income loss attributed to

common shareholders

Total assets

Cash expenditures for

long-lived assets

$2056.4 $1312.1

0.8 26.8

14.1

7.9

265.8

91.5

147.9

148.2

223.5

0.2

3.1

0.3

Income Statement

External revenues

Intersegment revenues

Impairment losses on
property

plant and equipment

Net loss on lntegrys Energy

Services
dispositions

related to

strategy change

Restructuring expense

Goodwill impairment loss

Depreciation and

amortization expense

Miscellaneous income expense

Interest expense income

Provision benefit for income taxes

Net income lore from

continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Preferred stock dividends

of subsidiary

Noncontrolling interest

in subsidiaries

Net income loss attributed to

common shareholders

Total assets

Cash expenditures for

long-lived assets

6.9 8.6

291.1

Nonutility and

Nonregulated Operations

28.9

43.5

291.1

230.6

89.0

164.8

83.7

70.3

2.8

3.11

1.0

Regulated Operations

Nonutility and

Nonregulated Operations

Natural Electric Total Integrys Holding Integrys

Gas Electric Transmission Regulated Energy Company Reconciling Energy Group
2010 Miions Utility Utility Investment Operations Services and Other Eliminations Consolidated

0.2 0.3

130.9

1.6

49.7

65.3

0.1

23.0

41.9

87.8

15.2

$3368.5 $1822.5 12.2 $5203.2

27.6 1.2 28.8

43.2 43.2

14.1

0.5 8.3

94.7 225.6 17.2

1.5 77.6 80.7 9.1 40.2

43.9 93.6 6.7 40.2

63.1 31.4 159.8 3.6

46.2 243.1

3.1

0.3

46.2 240.0 3.3

416.3 8174.2 1234.8 1258.9

84.6 112.3

0.6 2.5

84.0 109.8

4828.1 2929.8

133.6 87.2

2.8 22.4

0.2

22.4

1666.7

220.8

Regulated Operations

15.2 22.8

220.9

9816.8

258.8

Natural Electric Total Integrys Holding Integrys

Gas Electric Transmission Regulated Energy Company Reconciling Energy Group
2009 Miiona Utility Utility Investment Operations Services and Other Eliminations Consolidated

7499.8

0.7

$2236.9 $1258.9 $3495.8 $3992.5 11.5

0.6 42.7 43.3 1.5 44.8

0.7

28.9

15.5 27.2 0.8

291.1

106.1 90.3 196.4 19.0 15.2

3.1 4.8 75.3 83.2 6.0 46.5 46.7

52.2 41.6 93.8 13.1 104.6 46.7

7.8 51.4 29.8 89.0 19.0 24.31

171.5 91.4 45.5 34.6 35.7

2.8

3.1

1.0

45.5 37.7 3.8 35.7

395.9 7906.3 3547.5 1462.7 1071.9

0.6 2.5

172.1 88.9 69.61

4675.7 2834.7 11844.6

136.9 250.4 387.3 22.4 34.5 444.2
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Income Statement

External revenues

Intersegment revenues

Impairment losses on property plant and

equipment

Goodwill impairment loss

Depreciation and amortization expense

Miscellaneous income expense

Interest expense income

Provision benefit for

income taxes

Net income loss from

continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries

Net income loss attributed to

common shareholders

Total assets

Cash expenditures for long-lived assets

0.5

6.5

192.6 14.5

79.1 8.7

93.3 12.1

131.6

39.7 219.9 75.4

39

3.1

0.1

0.5

6.5

221.4

87.3

158.1

61.1

114.8

4.7

3.1

0.1

116.5

14268.7

532.8

Geographic Information Millions Revenues Long-Lived Assets Revenues Long-Lived Assets Revenues Long-Lived Assets

United States $5199.7 $7677.0 $6628.5 $7537.0 $11639.3 $7572.6

Canada 3.5 871.3 2408.5 20.0

Total $5203.2 $7677.0 $7499.8 $7537.0 $14047.8 $7592.6

Revenues and assets of Canadian subsidiaries Includes the impact in 2009 of the sale of Canadian operations at Integrys Energy
Services

Regulated Operations

Nonutility and

Nonregulated Operations

Natural Electric Total Integrys Holding Integrys

Gas Electric Transmission Regulated Energy Company Reconciling Energy Group
2008 Millions Utility Utility Investment Operations Services and Other Eliminations Consolidated

$3025.3 $1284.6

0.6 44.3

$4309.9 $9726.5 11.4

44.9 8.7 0.6 54.2

6.5

108.3

7.0

56.6

84.3

6.0 66.1

36.7

$14047.8

57.1 48.1 26.4

14.3

454

98.6

85.5 94.7

1.0 2.1

46.3 24.2

84.5

5173.8

237.3

92.6

2752.4

207.4

45.9

145.9

11195.1

397

346.9

129.7

0.8

28.9

2144.3

20.0

216.8

8273.1

444.7

171.4

5046.4

68.1

2010 2009 2008
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NOTE 26QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION Unaudited

During the fourth quarter of 2010 lntegrys Energy Group changed its method of accounting for ITCs from the flow-through method to the deferral method

As such certain previously reported amounts have been retrospectively adjusted See Note 1d Change in Accounting PoJic for more information

As Computed Under Deferral Method

Millions except share amounts First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total

2010

Total revenues $1903.4 $1014.8 997.9 $1287.1 $5203.2

Operating income 119.4 136.2 39.2 133.3 428.1

Net income loss from continuing operations 50.4 79.6 21.1 72.4 223.5

Netincomeloss 50.5 79.6 21.1 72.5 223.7

Net income attributed to common shareholders 49.7 79.1 20.4 71.7 220.9

Earnings per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations 0.65 1.02 0.26 0.92 2.85

Earnings loss per common share basic 0.65 1.02 0.26 0.92 2.85

Earnings per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations 0.64 1.02 0.26 0.91 2.83

Earnings loss per common share basic 0.64 1.02 0.26 0.91 2.83

2009

Total revenues $3200.8 $1427.6 $1297.8 $1573.6 $7499.8

Operating income loss 145.0 74.5 93.4 66.3 89.2

Net income loss from continuing operations 179.3 36.2 49.3 23.5 70.3

Net income loss 179.3 36.5 51.6 23.7 67.5

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders 180.0 35.9 51.3 23.2 69.6

Earnings per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations 2.35 0.47 0.64 0.30 0.95

Earnings loss per common share basic 2.35 0.47 0.67 0.30 0.91

Earnings per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations 2.35 0.47 0.64 0.30 0.95

Earnings loss per common share basic 2.35 0.47 0.67 0.30 0.91

Earnings per share for the individual quarters
do not total the

year
ended earnings per

share amount because of changes to the average number of shares outstanding
and

changes in incremental

issuable shares throughout the year
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As Computed Under Flow-Through Method

Millions except share amounts First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total

2010

Total revenues $1903.4 $1014.8 997.9 $1287.1 $5203.2

Operating income 119.3 136.1 39.1 133.2 427.7

Net income loss from continuing operations 50.2 79.4 20.9 72.1 222.6

Net income loss 50.3 79.4 20.9 72.2 222.8

Net income attributed to common shareholders 49.5 78.9 20.2 71.4 220.0

Earnings per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations 0.64 1.02 0.26 0.92 2.84

Earnings loss per common share basic 0.64 1.02 0.26 0.92 2.84

Earnings per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations 0.64 1.01 0.26 0.91 2.82

Earnings loss per common share basic 0.64 1.01 0.26 0.91 2.82

2009

Total revenues $3200.8 $1427.6 $1297.8 $1573.6 $7499.8

Operating income loss 145.1 72.9 93.3 66.3 87.4

Net income loss from continuing operations 179.5 35.0 49.1 23.8 71.6

Net income loss 179.5 35.3 51.4 24.0 68.8

Net income loss attributed to common shareholders 180.2 34.7 51.1 23.5 70.9

Earnings per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations 2.35 0.45 0.64 0.31 0.96

Earnings loss per common share basic 2.35 0.45 0.67 0.31 0.92

Earnings per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations 2.35 0.45 0.63 0.31 0.96

Earnings loss per common share basic 12.35 0.45 0.66 0.31 10.92

Earnings loss
per

share for the individual
quarters

do not total the
year

ended earnings loss per
share amount because of

changes to the average number of shares outstanding and changes in

incremental issuable shares throughout the
year

Because of various factors the quarterly results of operations are not necessarily comparable
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

DeIoitte
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Integrys Energy Group Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Integrys Energy Group Inc and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements

of income equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects
the financial

position of Integrys Energy Group Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America

Milwaukee Wisconsin

February 23 2011
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Financial and Other Statistics

As of or for Year Ended December 37

Millions except per
share amounts stock price

return on average equity and number of

shareholders and employees 2010 2009 2008 11 2007 12 2006 31

Total revenues $5203.2 $7499.8 $14047.8 $10292.4 $6890.7

Net income loss from continuing operations 223.5 70.3 114.8 181.0 147.8

Netincomelossaftributedtocommonshareholders 220.9 69.6 116.5 251.3 155.8

Total assets 9816.8 11844.6 14268.7 11234.4 6861.7

Preferred stock of subsidiary 51.1 51.1 51.1 51.1 51.1

Long-term debt excluding current portion 2161.6 2394.7 2285.7 2265.1 1287.2

Shares of common stock less treasury stock and shares

in deferred compensation trust

Outstanding 77.4 76.0 76.0 76.0 43.1

Average 77.5 76.8 76.7 71.6 42.3

Earnings loss per common share basic

Net income loss from continuing operations $2.85 $0.95 $1.46 $2.49 $3.51

Earnings loss per common share basic 2.85 0.91 1.52 3.51 3.68

Earnings loss per common share diluted

Net income loss from continuing operations 2.83 0.95 1.45 2.48 3.50

Earnings loss per common share diluted 2.83 0.91 1.51 3.50 3.67

Dividends per common share declared 2.72 2.72 2.68 2.56 2.28

Stock price at year-end $48.51 $41.99 $42.98 $51.69 $54.03

Book value per share $37.57 $37.51 $40.66 $42.58 $35.61

Return on average equity 7.7% 2.4% 3.6% 8.5% 10.6%

Number of common stock shareholders 30352 32755 34016 35212 19837

Number of employees 4612 5025 5191 5231 3326

certain amounts have been retrospectively adjusted due to change in accounting policy in 2010 See Note 1d change in Accounting Policy for more information

Si Includes the
impact

of the Peoples Energy corporation merger on February 21 2007

the
impact

of the
acquisition

of natural gas distribution operations by Michigan Gas Utilities corporation on April
2006 and Minnesota Energy Resources corporation on July 12006

COMPARATIVE FIVE-YEAR INVESTMENT
PERFORMANCE GRAPH

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
The following graph presents five-year comparison of ___________________________________________________________________

Integrys Energy Groups common stock cumulative total return Integrys Energy Group 100 113 114 100 106 130

Standard Poors SP 500 Index and SP 500 Index 100 116 122 77 97 112

Edison Electric Institute EEl Gas and Electric Index for the last
EEl Gas and Electric Index 100 121 141 102 117 125

five fiscal
years Assumes $100 invested on December31 2005 in Integrys Energy Group Common

Stock SP 500 Index and EEl Gas and Electric Index

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return

200
111This performance graph is not to be deemed to be filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission except to the extent specifically requested by lntegrys

Energy Group or incorporated by reference in documents otherwise filed

150 1Total return assumes reinvestment of dividends

100

_A..___
........

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

YEAR

Integrys Energy Group SP 500 Index EEl Gas and Electric Index
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Board of Directors

Keith Bailey

Age 68 Tulsa Oklahoma

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Williams Companies Inc

Director since 2005

Audit Committee

Financial Committee Chair

Richard Bemis

Age 69 Sheboygan Wisconsin

Co-chairman of the Board of Directors

Bemis Manufacturing Company

Director since 1983

Compensation Committee Chair

William Brodsky

Age 66 Chicago Illinois

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Chicago Board Options Exchange

Director since 1997

Compensation Committee

Financial Committee

Albert Budney Jr

Age 63 Dover Massachusetts

Former President Niagara Mohawk Holdings

Inc and Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation

Director since 2002

Compensation Committee

Environmental Committee

Pastora San Juan Cafferty

Age 70 Chicago Illinois

Professor emerita University of Chicago

Director since 1988

Audit Committee

Environmental Committee

Ellen Carnahan

Age 55Chicago Illinois

Principal

Machrie Enterprises LLC

Director since 2003
Financial Committee

Governance Committee Chair

Robert Gallagher

Age 72 Green Bay Wisconsin

Former Chairman of the Board
Associated Banc-Corp

Director since 1992

Audit Committee

Governance Committee

Kathryn Hasselblad-Pascale

Age 62 Green Bay Wisconsin

Managing Partner Hasselblad Machine

Company LLP

Director since 1987

Environmental Committee Chair

Governance Committee

John Higgins

Age 64 Chicago Illinois

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Higgins Development Partners

Director since 2003

Compensation Committee

Governance Committee

James Kemerling

Age 71 Wausau Wisconsin

President and Chief Executive Officer

Riiser Oil Company Inc

Director since 1988

Lead Director

Michael Lavin

Age 64 Chicago Illinois

Former Midwest Area Managing Partner

KPMG LLP

Director since 2003

Audit Committee Chair

Financial Committee

William Protz Jr

Age 66 Lake Forest Illinois

Former President and Chief Executive Officer

Santas Best LLP

Director since 2001

Environmental Committee

Governance Committee

Charles Schrock

Age 57 Chicago Illinois

Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer

Integrys Energy Group

Director since 2009

Information is as of December 312010 Years as director

take into consideration service with Integrys Energy Droop

or Peoples Energy corporation

Will retire from the Board of Directors on May 112011 at

the conclusion of our Annual Shareholders Meeting

Management Team

Lawrence Borgard

President and Chief Operating Officer

Utilities

Age 49 7/ Years of service 26

Charles Cloninger

President Minnesota Energy Resources

Corporation and

President Michigan Gas Utilities Corporation

Age 52 7/ Years of service 29

Willard Evans Jr

PresidentThe Peoples Gas Light and Coke

Company and

President North Shore Gas Company

Age 55 7/ Years of service 33

Diane Ford

Vice President and Corporate Controller

Age 57 II Years of service 35

William Guc

Vice President and Treasurer

Age 41 I/Years of service

William Laakso

Vice President Human Resources

Age 48 I/Years of service

Phillip Mikulsky

Executive Vice President Business

Performance and Shared Services

Age 62 /7 Years of service 39

Barbara Nick

President Upper Peninsula Power Company

Age 52 I/Years of service 26

Joseph OLeary
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Age 56/I Years of service

Mark Radtke

Executive Vice President and

Chief Strategy Officer

Age 49 II Years of service 27

James Schott

Vice President External Affairs

Age 53 II Years of service

Charles Schrock

Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer

Age 57 7/Years of service 31

Daniel Verbanac

President lntegrys Energy Services Inc

Age 47 /7 Years of service 26

Barth Wolf

Vice President Chief Legal Officer and Secretary

Age 53 /7 Years of service 22

Title age and
years

of service are as of

December31 2010 Years of service take into

consideration service with lntegrys Energy Group

or system company
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Investor Information

COMMON STOCK
The New York Stock Exchange is the principal market for Integrys Energy

Group Inc common stock which trades under the ticker symbol of TEG

On December 31 2010 we had 77350079 shares of common stock

outstanding which were owned by 30352 holders of record

DWIDENDS
We have paid quarterly cash dividends on our common stock since

1953 and we expect to continue that trend subject to Board approval

regulatory limitations earnings capital requirements cash flows and

other financial considerations

Year Ended December 31 By Quarter

DivHends Price Range

Per Share High Low

2010 1st quarter .68 $47.67 $40.53

2nd quarter .68 50.92 42.81

3rd quarter .68 52.74 42.92

4th quarter
54.45 46.73

$2.72

2009 1st quarter .68 $45.10 $19.44

2nd quarter
.68 30.40 24.95

3rd quarter .68 36.75 28.31

4th quarter
42.99 34.20

$2.72

STOCK INVESTMENT PLAN
We maintain Stock Investment Plan for the purchase of common stock

which allows persons who are not already shareholders to become

participants by making minimum initial cash investment of $100 Our

Plan enables you to maintain registration with us in your own name

rather than with broker in street name As participant in the Stock

Investment Plan you may transfer shares of common stock registered in

your name into Plan account for safekeeping

The Stock Investment Plan also provides you with options for reinvesting

your dividends and making optional cash purchases of common stock

directly through the Plan without paying brokerage commissions

fees or service charges Optional cash payments of not less than $25

per payment may be made subject to maximum of $100000 per

calendar year An automatic investment option allows you to authorize

the deduction of payments from your checking or savings account

automatically once each month on the third day of the month by

electronic means for investment in the Plan Cash for investment must

be received by the 3rd or 18th day of the month Investment generally

commences on or about the 5th or 20th day of the month or as soon

thereafter as practicable

The shares you hold in our Stock Investment Plan may be sold by the

agent for the Plan as you direct us or you may request certificate for

sale through broker you select We will accumulate sale requests

from participants and approximately every five business days will

submit sale request to the independent broker-dealer on behalf of

those participants

Participation in the Stock Investment Plan is being offered only by means

of prospectus If you would like copy of the Stock Investment Plan

prospectus you may use the American Stock Transfer Trust Company

LLC website at www.amstock.com call American Stock Transfer Trust

Company LLC at 800-236-1551 contact us by sending an e-mail to

investor@integrysgroup.com or order or download the prospectus and

enrollment forms from our website at www.integrysgroup.com

under Investor

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Our transfer agent American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

can be reached via telephone between a.m and 6p.m Central time

Monday through Thursday or am and 4p.m Central time Friday

by calling 800-236-1551 You also have direct access to your account

24 hours day through the Internet at www.amstock.com

Questions about transferring stock lost certificates or changing the

name in which certificates are registered should be directed to American

Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC at the addresses or telephone

numbers listed on the back cover If your address changes write to

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC at the address on the

back of this report or use their website at www.amstock.com

AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION
Company financial information is available on our website at

www.integrysgroup.com under Investor

You may obtain without charge copy of our 2010 Form 10-K without

exhibits as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by

contacting the Corporate Secretary at the corporate office mailing

address listed on the back cover or by using our website

INTERNET
Visit our website at www.integrysgroup.com to find wealth of

information about our company and its subsidiaries The site will give

you instant access to Annual Reports SEC filings proxy statements

financial news presentations news releases corporate governance

information career opportunities and much more You may also

download copy of the prospectus for the Stock Investment Plan and the

associated forms for participation in the Plan

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING
Our Annual Shareholders Meeting will be held on Wednesday May 11 2011

at 10a.m Central daylight time at the Weidner Center on the campus of

the University of Wisconsin Green Bay 2420 Nicolet Drive Green Bay

Wisconsin Proxy statements for our May 11 2011 Annual Shareholders

Meeting were mailed to shareholders of record on April 2011

ANNUAL REPORT
If you or another member of your household receives more than one

Annual Report because of differences in the registration of your accounts

please contact American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC so account

mailing instructions can be modified accordingly

This Annual Report is prepared primarily for the information of our

shareholders and is not given in connection with the sale of any security

or offer to sell or buy any security

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INFORMATION
Corporate governance information including our Corporate Governance

Guidelines our Code of Conduct charters for the committees of our

Board of Directors By-Laws and Articles of Incorporation is available on

our website at www.integrysgroup.com under Investor You may also

obtain the information by written request to the Corporate Secretary at

the mailing address for the corporate office indicated on the back cover

of this report

CERTIFICATIONS
We have filed as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December31 2010 the certifications of our Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act We also submitted to the New York Stock Exchange

during 2010 the Annual CEO Certification required by Section 303A.12a

of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

ntegrys Energy Group Inc

130 East Randolph Street

Chicago IL 60601

Telephone 800-228-6888

Fax 312-228-5404

E-Mail investor@integrysgroup.com

FINANCIAL ANALTST INQUIRIES

Steven Eschbach CFA

Vice President Investor Relations

Integrys Energy Group Inc

130 East Randolph Street

Chicago IL 60601

Telephone 312-228-5408

E-Mail speschbach@integrysgroup.com

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

New York Stock Exchange

Ticker Symbol TEG

Listing Abbreviation IntegrysEngy

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

For General Information

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn NY 11219

Website www.amstock.com

E-Mail info@amstock.com

Telephone 800-236-1551 toll free

718-921-8124 international

Fax 718-236-2641

For Dividend Reinvestment and

Direct Stock Purchase

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

Wall Street Station

Box 922

New York NY 10269-0560

Telephone 800-236-1551 toll free

WISCONSIN UTILITY INVESTORS INC

With over 16000 members Wisconsin Utility

Investors Inc CvVUI is an independent non

profit organization representing the collective

voices of all shareholders in Wisconsin utilities

It monitors and evaluates industry issues and

trends and is resource for its members

regulators and the public WUI can be reached

by calling 608-663-5813 or by e-mail at

contact@wuiinc.org

MINNESOTA UTILITY INVESTORS INC

Minnesota Utility Investors Inc MUI is

an independent non-profit organization

representing
the collective voices of nearly

27000 shareholders in electric and natural

gas utilities operating in Minnesota For more

information MUI can be reached by calling

toll free 888-850-5171 or by e-mail at

muimnutilityinvestors.org

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Integrys Energy Group Inc is committed

to equal employment opportunity for all

qualified individuals without regard to race

color religion sex national origin age
sexual orientation gender identity genetic

information disability disabled veterans

recently separated veterans other protected

veterans and armed forces service medal

veterans or any other protected class To this

end we support and will cooperate fully
with

all applicable laws regulations and executive

orders in all of our employment policies

practices and decisions

Corporate Office

130 East Randolph Street

Chicago IL 60601

Telephone 312-228-A400

Website www.integrysgroup.com
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